HOM.ES.

A Charitable Organization

APPLICATION
for CDBG FUNDS

From City of Fort Lauderdale for use in CENTRAL CITY CRA

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

APPLICANT NAME:

BUSINES ADDRESS:
PROPERTY OWNER:
OWNED SINCE:

CONTACT PERSON:
BUSINESS PHONE:
E-MAIL ADDRESS:
DATE of INCORP:
TAX STATUS:

DEV. EXPERIENCE:

H.O.M.E.S,, Inc., a d/b/a legally registered with the State of Florida for
Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood
Solutions, Inc.)

690 NE 13" St., Suite 101, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33304
H.O.M.E.S,, Inc.

May 2006, as part of purchase of 2.3 acres of mixed use & vacant
property located at 13™ St. & Dixie Hwy.

Katharine S. Barry, President
954-563-5454
kbarry@homesfl.org
10-15-1998
501(c)(3) charitable organization since 1998

H.O.M.E.S., Inc. has built or renovated for sale approx. 225 single
family homes since its inception (often in non-profit development
partnerships); and has purchased and renovated 45 units of rental
property (including 6 commercial units), which it owns and manages.

APPLICANT INVESTMENT:

H.O.M.E.S. paid $3.1M for its 2.3 acre Campus of property located at
13" St. & Dixie Hwy. in 2006, and has since invested another approx.

$600,000 in property improvements. It currently employs 12 people on
its staff.

Additionally, H.0.M.E.S. has invested another approx. $1,000,000. in the
purchase and rehab of other housing in the Central City neighborhood.
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PROJECT OVERVIEW & DESCRIPTION:

PROJECT ADDRESS: 600 NE 13™ St., Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33304 (part of H.O.M.E.S. 2006

Campus purchase of 2.3 acres).

SQUARE FOOTAGE: The 600 Building is approx. 1,560 SF in size.

INTENDED USE:
600 BLDG. TENANT:

Restaurant.

Eat the Tea LLC (Eat the Tea Café) is the intended restaurant Tenant,
with which H.0.M.E.S. currently has a Memorandum of Understanding,
regarding the terms & conditions of a Lease to be entered into for the
renovated premises (should the City approve this Application). The
proprietor is Maureen Ruggeri, and her business partner is James
Campbell. Ms. Ruggeri has been operating £at the Tea at another
location in Ft. Lauderdale for 5 years, and has 20 years of restaurant &
catering experience.

ZONING & PARKING: The property is located in a CB Commercial zoning area, which

FUNDING REQUEST:

includes restaurant uses. Applicant is working with the City and its
various departments to have available parking comply with City
requirements, as such rules are being made more flexible to deal with
the Central City CRA area as it currently exists, while planning for the
future.

$100,000. (min.) which will be used to fund needed renovations to the
600 Bldg., to convert it into a restaurant (complying with code
requirements).

DESCRIPTION of RENOVATIONS/IMPROVEMENTS TO BE MADE:

The 600 Bldg. was built in the 1940s, At this point, it needs a new
roof, new electric service, and new plumbing. For restaurant use, it
will need a new commercial kitchen, a grease trap, proper venting, a
handicap entrance ramp, and appropriate garbage & delivery areas.
Handicap accessible bathrooms, as well as hurricane impact
resistant windows and doors need to be installed. A bike rack will be
added, as well as a handicap parking space.

PROJECT OVERSIGHT: A General Contractor will be hired by H.O.M.E.S. to implement the

renovations, in accord with City, CDBG & Davis Bacon requirements.

PUBLIC TRANSPORT: The nearest public bus stop is located at 13™ St. & 15 Ave.
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(Page 2 of 4)
CONSISTENCY with CRA PLAN:

A new retail business/restaurant located along 13" St. is absolutely
consistent with the Central City CRA Redevelopment Plan, and in fact
contemplated by the 13" St. CompleteStreets grant application
submitted

by the City to Broward County (which project is currently being
implemented). The City anticipated that new resident & pedestrian
friendly businesses would be attracted to 13 St., if the infrastructure of
a new streetscape was put into place.

LOCAL BSNS ASSOC SUPPORT & CRA ADVISORY BOARD SUPPORT:

The Central City Alliance is the local business association, and has been
fully supportive of the Project.

The Central City CRA Advisory Board has voted in support of the
Project.

EST. PROJECT START & COMPLETION TIMETABLE:

Architectural work is underway, and meetings have been held with City
Transportation & Mobility, as well as Sustainable Development, regarding
parking and zoning requirements.

We expect to have all plans, specs, and related documents ready to turn
in for permitting within approx. 30 days, and will begin permitting
process when City Commission approves Project, and Applicant is able to
enter into a Grant Contract with the City.

It is feasible that permits can be obtained by end of July, and work can
then begin immediately, in which case completion can be by end of
September 2017.

ESTIMATED (PRELIMINARY) PROJECT COST BUDGET: $173,500.

Actual costs cannot be obtained until final architectural plans and specs
(containing the electrical, plumbing, mechanical, etc.. pages), and a City
Contract for funding have been obtained, so that we can go out for bid.
However, the following is a preliminary estimated Project Budget:

$17,500. Metal Roof (new)
$20,000. Windows & Exterior Doors (new, hurricane impact)

$18,000.  Plumbing (larger pipes reconfigured to fit re-designed
interior, 2 toilets, 2 bathroom sinks, 3 sinks for kitchen:
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$18,000.

$10,000.
$ 7,500.
$17,500.

$ 7,500.
$12,000.
$ 7,500.
$ 3,000.
$10,000.
$10,000.
$15,000.

$173,500.

mop-sink, hand-sink & three-compartment sink for dishes,
hook-ups for dishwasher & refrigerator, etc..)

(Page 3 of 4)
Electric (new service, re-wiring, lighting fixtures)

Mechanical (a.c. & duct replacement, vents, stove-hood)
Grease-Trap

Structural (moving walls, new interior doors, built-ins,
adding wheelchair ramp to front door, etc)

Flooring (patch current wood, bathroom tile, finish floors)
Painting (interior & exterior)

Dumpster Enclosure

Landscape & Sprinkler System (repair/upgrade)
Architectural & Engineering services

Permitting Fees

Contingency & Miscellaneous (walkways, bike-rack, on-site
parking including handicap space, etc..)

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT COST (Except for Kitchen
appliances and equipment, which will be furnished by the
Lessee of the restaurant.)

SOURCES of FUNDS: H.O.M.E.S., Inc. has available lines of credit totaling $350,000., and is
planning to use advances on these lines for the construction/rehab
costs related to the 600 Bldg. Any costs beyond what the City is able
to fund ($100,000 or more) will be paid for by H.0.M.E.S. from other
non-City funds.

ADDITIONAL BENEFIT TO CITY:

The 600 Bldg. will be added to the property tax rolls, because after
rehab it will be used for non-charitable purposes, and thus no longer
property tax-exempt.

ATTACHMENTS:

(1) Preliminary Architectural Plan (Michael Fontana, A & F Architectural Design, Inc.)

(2) Memorandum of Understanding with £at the Tea LLC.
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(3) Central City CRA Minutes of Meeting approving recommendation of this Grant.

(4) Letter of Recommendation of Project from Central City (business) Alliance.

(Page 4 of 4)
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HOME.S.

A Charitable Organization

600 House — Proposal of Primary Lease Terms

Synopsis: This Proposal is for a 5 year Lease of 600 NE 13t St., Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304
by H.O.M.E.S., Inc. as Lessor, and Eat the Tea, LLC, as the Lessee, for use as a restaurant/café.
Currently, the building is in use as a single family resident; however, it is located on a
commercial street and has a City of Ft. Lauderdale Community Business (CB) zoning
classification which permits a restaurant use.

Proposed Responsibilities & Representations of H.0.M.E.S., Inc. (hereinafter
HOMES) as Lessor:

1) HOMES is a 501(c)(3) charitable organization with the _IRS'and a not-for-profit Florida
corporation, which has been in business in Broward County continuously since 1998.

2) HOMES legal name is: Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, & Effective
Neighborhood Solutions, Inc., and H.O:M.E.S., Inc. is its legal fictitious name registered
with the State of Florida, under which it does business.

3) HOMES owns the house and property located at the corner of NE 13t St. and 6% Ave,,
known as 600 NE 13™" Street, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33304 (hereinafter, the 600 House), as
well as the adjacent property on the same block to the east and south.

4) The 600 House (currently 3 bedrooms, 2 baths, and approx. 1200 sf) is believed to have
been built in the 1940's, and although repairs and upgrades have been made to it over
the years, it is in need of significant improvements to make it suitable for a restaurant.

5) The 600 House is located within the physical boundaries of the City of Fort Lauderdale’s
Central City Community Redevelopment Agency (CCCRA), and HOMES intention is to
apply for its current allotment of $100,000 in funding, for the purpose of utilizing it to
renovate the 600 House to an acceptable standard agreeable to the parties and the City,
appropriate to the intended use of a restaurant.

6) HOMES understands the terms of the CCCRA $100,000 to be a mortgage on the 600
House property for a 5 year term, which will be satisfied via proof that at least three (3)
persons have been employed full-time at the business located where the lmprovements
were made, for the entire 5 year period.
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7) HOMES will take the responsibility of engaging an architect and contractor(s), as

8)

9)

appropriate, in accord with City requirements, and overseeing the improvements to the
600 House, as agreed upon with the City, and accommodating the needs of the Lessee
to the extent possible with the funding available. Lessee shall be kept apprised of
progress toward completion at all stages during the 600 House construction work.

It is anticipated that the new Lease with Lessee.can take effect within the timeframe of
between Sept. 15t and Sept. 15%, 2017. Factors include the following:

a) The 600 House is currently under lease until the ehd of Feb. 2017 to the current
residential tenants, and will continue to be rented thereafter on a month to month

basis to one of these tenants, Todd Schwing, until approximately June 30%, 2017. [He

~ is committed to complete, as Lead Artist, a public art project to be located in a traffic round-about at
the intersection of NE 13t St. & Dixie Hwy (a/k/a NE 7% Ave.), Ft. Lauderdale (one block from the 600
House), in conjunction with HOMES as Lead Agency and other community partners (including the City
itself) — and we believe that the art component will be finished by approx. that date.]

b) While some or most of the exterior improvements contemplated can be implemented
while the 600 House is still occupied by tenant residents, there are other exterior and
interior improvements which will be too disruptive or intrusive, and these will have to
wait until the House is vacant. HOMES will make every effort to have necessary
building permits in place for these improvements/renovations, so they can begin
immediately after the house is vacated, and completed within the desired timeframe.

¢) 13" Street itself is currently being re-done (from the railroad tracks west to NE 4th
Ave.) in a Complete Streets model by the City of Fort Lauderdale, with funding from
the City itself and a Broward County redevelopment grant, and the street is required
by the grant terms to be completed no later than the end of September 2017.

With regard to parking which will be available to the 600 House: Two (2) parking spaces
are currently located on the house site. Also, on-street parking is part of the streetscape
plan, which calls for five (5) new on-street parking spaces directly in front of HOMES
property on 13% St. between NE 6t & 7th Avenue. Weekends and most evenings, HOMES

- 690 Office Building parking lot can be available for 600 House shared parking use.

Additional on-street parking on adjacent blocks wil be incorporated into the streetscape.

10) HOMES will maintain the exterior landscaping surrounding the 600 House and provide

water for same, at its expense, during the duration of the Lease.

11) HOMES shall be responsible for the maintenance of the structure of the 600 House after

_ construction is complete, for all items which are not caused by the intentional acts or
negligence of Lessee, its principals, employees, or guests.

2
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12) HOMES shall continue to maintain the hazard/wind/hurricane/flood insurance on the 600
House during the Least term.

Proposed Responsibilities & Representations of Eat the Tea, LLC (hereinafter Eat
the Tea Café) as Lessee:

1) Eat the Tea Café is a Florida limited liability corporation, in good standing.
2) Eatthe Tea Café is not a party to any current litigation.
3) The principals of Eat the Tea Café are Maureen Ruggeri and James Campbell.

4) The current lease of Fat the Tea Café at its current location (900 NE 20" Ave., Ft.
Lauderdale, FL) expires June 30t, 2017.

5) The Lease period shall be for five (5) years, and shall begin within within three (3)
business days of HOMES notification that all agreed-upon improvements have been
completed.

6) Fat the Tea Café will pay the first and last month’s rent and a security deposit in the
amount of one month’s rent in full (in agreed-upon installments, if necessary) by no later
than (a date to be agreed upon by the parties), 2017.

7) The above principals of Fat the Tea Café shall make themselves available (to the best of
their ability) to accompany a representative of Lessor to meetings with the City, as
needed, in order to move the project forward in a positive and timely manner. '

8) Rent shall be payable to Lessor on the first of each month (or such other date agreed
upon by the parties). The Rent Amount for the 5 Year Lease Term shall be as follows:

a) Year One: $2,000 per month;

b) Year Two: $2,100 per month;

¢) Year Three: $2,200 per month;

d) Year Four: $2,300 per month; and
e) Year Five: $2,400 per month.

9) The above Principals of Eat the Tea Café shall both sign a Personal Guaranty of the
Lease, which shall be called upon in the event of Lessee’s breach of the Lease by (a)
moving out of the 600 House prior to expiration of the Lease, or (b) ceasing to operate
(except for a hiatus due to emergency reasons) during the Lease term, or (c) failing to
maintain at least 3 full-time employees at Fat the Tea Café. [Said breaches will cause
HOMES to default on its anticipated Agreement with the City regarding the $100,000.]

3
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10) Eat the fea Caré shall be responsible for paying, in addition to the Rent stated above,
the following periodic charges during the Lease Period:

a) Any Real Estate taxes (ad valorem tax) due on the 600 HoUse (including the Fire
Rescue Fee ) levied by the Broward County Property Appraiser;

b) Insurance Premiums on the 600 house for $1,000,000 in general liability, and for the
contents of the building (listing HOMES as an additional insured, and providing
HOMES with current Certificates of Insurance).

c) Electric bills (FPL account shall be in the name of £at the Tea Café );

d) Water & Sewer bills (City of Ft. Lauderdale water/sewer account shall be in name of
Eat the Tea Café).

e) Garbage Service, as required, for the 600 House utilized as a restaurant.

11) Eat the Tea Café shall be responsible for obtaining/fulfilling any restaurant licensing
and/or opening requirements of the State of Florida (through either the Dept. of
Agriculture or the Dept. of Professional Regulations’s Division of Hotels & Restaurants),
and any fees related to same. (Lessor will, however, provide exterior venting from the
kitchen as part of the improvements to be made to the 600 House. Grease trap
requirements, if any, can be discussed by the parties once known.)

12) Fat the Tea Café shall be responsible for the purchase and/or installment of any
restaurant kitchen equipment either desired and/or required by the State of Florida,
Broward County, or City of Ft. Lauderdale, pursuant to applicable laws, ordinances, and
regulations.

Conclusion & Moving Forward: The above Proposal from HOMES is not intended to be
an actual Lease Agreement or legally binding contract, but merely an initial statement of
primary terms upon which HOMES is willing to rent the 600 House to Fat the Tea, LLC, for
use as a restaurant. It is not intended as an exhaustive statement of each and every term
upon which the parties may decide to agree.

Nonetheless, in the spirit of moving forward, if the above-stated terms are acceptable to £at
the Tea, LLC, then HOMES requests that £at the Tea, LLC sign and return this Proposal to
HOMES by no later than Thursday at noon, Eastern Standard Time, January 26%, 2017
(scanned and returned via e-mail is acceptable).

4
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This timing will allow the matter to be presented in principal to the HOMES Board of
Directors at its Regular Monthly Meeting being held at 5:30 p.m. on that same date of Jan.
26, 2017. Time is of the essence regarding whether this proposal can move forward at all

because of the CCCRA’s requirement that a Project using its $100,000 has to be completed
no later than 9-30-17.

H.O0.M.E.S., Inc.
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CCRAB Approved Minutes
03/01/2017

Members asked about the current road closures that result in commuters cutting
through the neighborhood.

Ray Thrower made a comment that NW First Avenue is the only street between
Andrews and Powerline that's currently open, so the 9-block stretch of road has a high
volume of traffic. He continued by saying that most of the street closures in the area
were used to deter criminal activity.

Members discussed the best time to conduct the traffic count.
AA Eat the Tea Restaurant

“Eat the Tea Restaurant” is a vegetarian restaurant formerly located at 900 NE 201
Avenue. Former board member Katharine Barry, HOMES, Inc. infroduced the owner,
Maureen Ruggeri; then shared with the board a power-point presentation and the
conceptual plans of the project, (see attached).

The property needs a new roof, windows, doors, updated plumbing and electricity,
wheelchair access and new floors.

There are a number of hurdles in getting this project approved, like lack of parking; so
shared parking was discussed. The CDBG funding will not be sufficient for the number
of improvements that will be needed:; they're also additional expenses such as DRC,
Architects, Change of Use, etc. Assistance with expediting the process was also
discussed. TAM Director, Diana Alarcon explained that there are a number of
processes that because of laws and regulations that have to be followed ; however,
there are things that can be done in house like parking reduction.

Chair Vonder Meulen inquired about the ‘employment generating grant’ and was told by
staff that this program is not available at this time.

Vice Chair Greenbaum asked about the impact that this project might have on the “non-

profit” status of HOMES, Inc. Ms. Barry said that the restaurant property would be put
on the tax rolls.

Members also want to make sure that the establishment stays open past 4:00 p.m.
since this would be beneficial for the neighborhood to have “eyes on the street”.

Motion made by Vice Chair Greenbaum, seconded by member Thrower to recommend
that the CRA Board approve funding assistance from the City of Fort Lauderdale in the
amount of $100,000 from the Department of Housing and Urban development (HUD)
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to assist with this project.

V. Old/New Business
Page | 3
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May 2, 2017

Mrs. Katharine S. Barry
HOMES, Inc.

690 NE 13 Street

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304

Dear Katharine,

It is with great pleasure that the 13% Street Alliance supports your application
with the City of Fort Lauderdale for the $100,000 grant for business development.
HOMES has created a great deal of value along the corridor in the last ten years.
We, the Alliance look forward to continuing a long and fruitful relationship.

If the City selects HOMES for this funding opportunity, it will add to the economic
growth and development of the corridor and assists us in accomplishing our vision
for total community revitalization.

Sincerely,
Tim Smith

President
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CITY OF
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CRA-CDBG

CAPITOL IMPROVEMENT
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FY 2017-2018 CAPITAL IMPEOVEMENT FUNDING APPLICATION

Date Submitted by Applicant: | June 2, 2017

Date Received by City:

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Organization/Agency Name: H.O.M.E.S., Inc.

Funding Requested: $100,000 Number of Clients To Be Served: 4

Address Where Public Service Activity To Be Administered: 600 NE 13™ Street, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33304

Primary Contact Person:

Katharine S. Barry Title: President
. th . City: Ft. Lauderdale, FL
Agency Address: 690 NE 13" Street, Suite 101 Zip Code: 33304

Phone #: (954) 563--5454

E-mail: kba; homesfl.or:
Fax #: (954) 764-5303 rry@ g

Printed Name of Authorized Official Signing: Linda Taylor

Title of Authorized Official Signing: Interim CEO

Employer Identification Number (EIN): Dun & Bradstreet Number (DUNS)I:
65-0870180 0547-60801

CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION (CCR)2 XYes [No

! All recipients who are awarded federal funding must have a DUNS Number. To request a DUNS Number, access: http:/mycredit.dnb.com/establish-your-
business/

2 All recipients who are awarded federal funding must be registered on the CCR website prior to receiving a grant. Once a DUNS Number has been obtained you
must register at https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/#1

PLEASE NOTE: CDBG funds cannot be used to purchase equipment, machinery, software or vehicles.
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Attachment B8: Evidence of sufficient funding to carry out project, if awarded by the City
(e.g. current bank / investment statement)

Attachment B9: If applicable, attach homeless statistical data

Attachment B10: If applicable, Instructor Certificates, Approved Curriculum.
Attachment B11: Other Attachments
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Section #1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (limit 2000 characters)

Include a project overview of the services to be provided and the planned recipients (target
population(s)) of the service (i.e. youth, homeless, disabled, etc.).

This Project will convert an existing single family home into a new commercial business (1,200 sq. ft.) as a
restaurant for Eat The Tea, LLC. Eat the Tea, is currently located at 900 NE 20" Avenue and their lease will
not be renewed. They are looking to relocate to the NE 13™ Street corridor as a participant in the current
neighborhood revitalization efforts that are taking place. Eat The Tea will join three (3) new businesses to
the corridor within the past 2 years. The NE 13" Street corridor is currently undergoing redevelopment
through a Broward County/City of Ft. Lauderdale Complete Streets makeover which includes street, median
and sidewalk improvements and an art sculpture at the roundabout as a part of the neighborhood’s desire to
give an “Artsy” flare to the corridor in an effort to create a more user friendly/foot traffic environment. This
project joins 2 others that have added art sculptures to the medians and fagade improvements by several
businesses to make the street more attractive. This Project will retain and create new jobs for local residents.

L)BJ
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Section #2: STATEMENT OF NEED gimit 6000 characters)

Describe the Fort Lauderdale community’s need for the populations that will be served. Include
information on the history and severity of the need in this city and, if applicable previous successful or
unsuccessful attempts to meet these needs. Provide specifics regarding the demographics of the
population to be served including the number of people experiencing this need and their location.
NOTE: If you are targeting the homeless population, please attach data that deals with homeless
statistics in Fort Lauderdale, crime rate for applicants providing those types of services, drop-out rate,
pregnancy rate should be placed as attachment B.

Once a slum and blighted community with high crime, drugs and prostitution, the NE 13th Street corridor
has been greatly improved since H.O.M.E.S. relocated to the neighborhood in 2006. There was a 5% decline
in population in the area from 1990 to 2000. Fifty to fifty-nine percent of households were renter households
in 2000, the last US Census data shows. New housing units are being constructed daily in this area but

. low/mod income wage earners are being priced out of that market. New businesses and new jobs with
increased wages are needed to help these households keep pace with the costs of living as they support the
growth and redevelopment of the area. Revitalization to this corridor will assist in providing the economic
boost for these low/mod income families as restaurants and other goods and services needed to support them
are opened. Though much has been completed through improved housing, street and swale improvements,
there is much more work required if we are to address this need for jobs and the concerns/desires of the
neighborhood to give NE 13" Street a mini “Las Olas Boulevard” environment. To date, three (3) new
businesses (Warsaw Coffee House, Art Studio and Odd Balls Thrift Store) have found a home on NE 13
Street. Itis anticipated that as downtown Ft. Lauderdale becomes more and more congested because of the
shortage of available land, and rent/homeownership prices increase, the NE 13" Street corridor, just north of
Sunrise Boulevard, will become the new community of choice.

H.O0.M.ES., Inc. has undertaken several Neighborhood Revitalization Strategies in partnership with the City
and Broward County in an effort to further enhance the quality of life for neighborhood residents and create
that environment that is desirable for new businesses. This was accomplished by securing community
engagement (hosted a Charette to obtain neighborhood consensus for the future of the neighborhood);
obtained and installation of art sculptures in the medians; encouraged local businesses to make facade
improvements to their buildings/businesses; created a community garden, rehabilitated buildings; held social
activities for the neighborhood and worked with the Police Department to reduce crime in the area.. The NE
13™ Street corridor is currently undergoing one such revitalization strategy through the Complete Streets
makeover project between NE 4™ Avenue and the railroad tracks. Investors are already calling our office
and other businesses along the corridor looking for investment opportunities. Once this Project is completed,
we know that this Project for the establishment of Eat The Tea Restaurant on the corridor will be the impetus
for many more new businesses and jobs to come.
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Section #4: PROJECT BENEFTT (imit of 6000 characters)

Using data and research explain how the project is expected to result in long term as well as short-
term benefit to the population(s) to be served. Include both an overview of the scope of services to be
provided as well as specific information as to the goals, objectives, activities, timelines and measurable
outcomes for the project, using the chart below. -

This Project is consistent with the City’s CRA Redevelopment Plan for the Central City CRA. As noted
earlier, there was a 5% decline in population from 1990 to 2000. Zip Code 33304 was one of only three Zip
Codes in Broward County that experienced this decline. Median household income in this area ranges from
$30,001 to $41,691 and the revitalization efforts will in the short and long term provide economic
opportunity for these households to increase and retain a good earning potential.

The long term goal/benefits are: .
1. Total revitalization of the area and the realization of the neighborhoods’ vision of a
more pedestrian friendly, “artsy” community and more attractive for tourist.

2. The creation of jobs to benefit the low/mod income residents.
3. Growth of existing local businesses and,

4. Incentives for business owners to invest capital for the further
redevelopment/improvement of the community.

The short term benefits are the retention of jobs for existing businesses as they anticipate that the
redevelopment efforts will spur more business for them.

&=
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Section #5: AGENCY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT
CAPACITY (imit of 7500 characters)

Describe the history and current status of the applicant agency, specifically providing
information which demonstrates the agency’s ability to successfully implement the program,
including, if applicable, data from previous year’s funded grant. Include information as to
whether the proposer operates in other cities, counties and/or states. Using the chart on the next
page, (add additional rows as needed) identify the key agency personnel; identify their
responsibilities in the project and key prior experience implementing similar projects. (Note: If
funding will be used to hire staff, indicate such in the staff column and complete all but the last
column) Note — Resumes of Program Administrator(s) and Chief Financial Officer are required in
Attachment BS.

'The Mission of H.O.M.E.S., Inc. is: Providing quality Community & Economic Development Programs
which benefit at-risk, disadvantaged, lower-income residents and neighborhoods in Broward County,
FL. -

History & Prior Experience: H.0.M.E.S, Inc. was founded in 1998 as a 501(c)(3) not-for-profit
Florida corporation and 501(c)(3) tax-exempt charitable organization. Through a collaborative
model with community partners, H.O.M.E.S. has participated in the building and rehab of 230+
rentals and for sale housing units and several commercial spaces successfully over the last nearly
twenty-year span in Broward County.

Current Work:
e Supportive Housing & Self-Sufficiency Program for Youth Aged Out of Foster Care

Provides quality furnished apartments at a highly subsidized rate for up to 23 young adults
(and their young children) at any one time, plus job coaching, paid internships, financial
capability classes, life coaching, monthly bus passes, and emergency help. Program goals
include the avoidance and prevention of homelessness, incarceration, substance abuse, and
lack of education completion which is the statistical likelihood among these at-risk youth
exiting state foster and relative care at age 18. Instead, we provide them with a stable base
from which they can work, attend school, learn essential life skills, and become independent
contributing members of our community.

e Commercial Revitalization of the 13tk Street, Ft. Lauderdale, Corridor

Working with local businesses & civic groups, we helped create the 13t STREET ALLIANCE -
its mission is to develop & implement plans to improve & transform our business
district. Since mid-2008, we helped install outdoor sculptures; obtain a City “area slum &
blight” study, a Neighborhood Redevelopment Plan & approval as the new Central City CRA
(Community Redevelopment Area); produced a “Green Dog Day Festival”; impiement a
Business Property Landscape Pilot Program; an “Outdoor Gallery” of murals executed by
residents and local artists; and a “Funky Fun Run” 5K and festival. Our CRA has obtained a
$1.5M Grant for a “Complete Streets” streetscape of 13t St,, and is working on a new district-
wide flex zoning plan.
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e Homeownership Program (Purchase, Kehab, & Kesale Of dIngle ramily romes)

Since 2009, H.0.M.E.S. has been one of four development partners in the BAND Neighborhood
Stabilization Program (NSP) Team selected by Broward County, and the Cities of Plantation,
Hollywood and Sunrise, to administer over $26M in federal funds aimed at preventing
neighborhood deterioration caused by the foreclosure crisis. 160+ foreclosed homes have
been purchased, renovated, and resold to new homebuyers. The Program includes
Homebuyer Education, Financial Counseling, and Down-Payment and Closing Cost Assistance
to buyers.

e Rental Program

H.O.M.E.S. owns and manages approx.. 40 units of rental property, for lower income residents
and for non-profit commercial tenants.

e “Art Collective”

A dilapidated commercial building H.O.M.E.S. purchased was renovated into 2,500 sf studio
space housing three local artist. Promoting these and other small businesses within the
corridor serves multiple purposes within H.0.M.E.S." mission. The rehab helped eliminate
blight and the studio space adds a new viable business to a depressed area.

e “CITY FARM" Community Garden

A vacant lot has been transformed into a garden of flowers and vegetables, tended by
‘neighborhood residents. Several months ago more than three hundred volunteers came from
Kaplan University and helped paint buildings, landscape our campus and made improvements

in our garden adding a gazebo and orchid pergola.

‘Relationships & Collaborations:

In 2002, H.0.M.E.S, Inc. was a founding member of BAND (Broward Alliance for Neighborhood
Development, Inc.), a non-profit umbrella group supporting Broward non-profits’ community
development work, and acting with them in a “collaborative development model” to accomplish
housing projects. H.O.M.E.S. led a BAND development team in Hollywood on an 18 single-family in-
fill home project; and since 2009 has been a development team member in BAND’s NSP project (see
above), along with Neighborhood Housing Services of South Florida and the Urban League of
Broward.

Under the leadership of the Broward County Children Services Council HOMES Inc. has entered into
an MOU with ChildNet and other local continuum of Care members to continue providing self-
sufficiency services to youth aged from foster care. The Jim Moran Foundation, the City of Ft.
Lauderdale, United Way of Broward County, HANDY, and SOS Children’s Village, are a few of the
partners in H.0.M.E.S.’ Self-Sufficiency Program for Youth aged out of foster care, begun in 2009.
Convening a neighborhood charrette with stakeholders in 2008, then founding the 13t St. Alliance of
neighborhood businesses and civic associations, is indicative of our collaboration to advocate for, and
create, positive change in the area where our charitable campus is located. This resulted in the City of
Ft. Lauderdale’s 2011 creation of the Central City CRA (H.0.M.E.S. founder/CEO is a Board member),
which has secured a StreetScape grant of $1.5M and is now working on a flexible zoning plan for the
district.

10
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Funder Priority Funding Amount of Award Status
Area
The Jim Moran TIL Self-Sufficiency & $199,000 Current Programming
Foundation Supportive Housing
The Children’s Services TIL Self-Sufficiency & $75,000 Current Programming
Council of Broward Supportive Housing :
City of Fort Lauderdale TIL Self-Sufficiency & $374,000 Current Programming
Supportive Housing
City of Ft. Lauderdale Acquisition, rehab and $1,136,923.00 Projects completed;
rental of affordable units occupied
housing
Broward County Housing | Affordable Housing Acq 285,010 Acquisition & rehab
& Community & Rehabilitation completed; units
Development Occupied
The William Watts - TIL Self-Sufficiency & $40,000
Foundation Supportive Housing
Program :
The McBride Foundation Financial Literacy $50,000 Ongoing Program
Education
The Salah Foundation TIL Program Self $100,000 Funding ended
Sufficiency &
Supportive Housing
. The United Way of TL Internships $100,000 Funding Ended
Broward
Community -Neighborhood 75,000 Project Underway
Foundation of Broward | Revitalization/ Arts
Grant

GEOGRAPHY:

HOMES, Inc. operates Broward County wide with our offices being located in the City limits of
Fort Lauderdale. We also own 42 units of affordable housing in the Fort Lauderdale
community. We do not operate in other Counties or States.

"
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AGENCY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT CAPACITY CHART

TITLE PROJECT RESPONSIBILTIES PRIOR EXPERIENCE

President& Founder Program Administrator. Responsible for | Forty plus years of experience in the
identifying local business owners to business community. Nineteen years
operate business in the 13" Street operating a business in the City of Fort
corridor and negotiate contract. Also Lauderdale
responsible for fulfilling the economic
and community mission of the
organization

Interim CEO Day to Day management of all aspects | Thirty years’ experience in the business
of the business. community and 20 years
Fiscal responsibility for all programs Ten plus years of experience in all

Chief Financial Officer

and contracts

facets of accounting and contract
management

QEHw & Construction
Manager

To work with business owner,
contractors, suppliers and government to
maintain compliance and a systematic
approach to completing all work in as
required by grant contract rules and
guidelines. ,

Thirty plus years working with business
and community and economic
development. Specific experience
working with the compliance of NSP,
CDBG and HOME streams of funding.

Facilities Manager

To maintain the premises providing all
maintenance and repairs, work orders
for repairs and communication
regarding such work.

More than thirty years experience
working with property management
companies providing handyman type
works
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Section #6: FINANCIAL INFORMATION
PLEASE ANSWER QUESTIONS A through I

Describe the current financial stability of the agency and the systems, which are currently in
place or will be put in place to monitor the use of, grant funds (limit 2000 characters)

H.O.MLE.S., Inc. is financially sound as evidenced from our most recent audits for 2013 -2014
and 2014 & 2015. Our 2015 — 2016 Audit is in its current “Draft” status awaiting review and
approval of the Board of Directors but that Audit has been deemed good with no findings.
We have borrowed and repayed several loans and have established two (2) lines of credit
based on our creditworthiness.

What is your agency’s annual revenue for the current fiscal year? (limit 15 characters)

H.0.M.E.S., Inc. annual revenue for the current fiscal year is $1,368,235.

How much of that funding is being dedicated to this Capital project? (limit 15 characters)
$100,000 of our Line of Credit (LOC) will be dedicated to this Capital project.

What other goods and services (in kind) will be leveraged for this Capital project? (limit 2000
characters)

H.O.M.E.S., Inc. will provide in-kind construction management/oversight; Davis-Bacon
Compliance Monitoring and general property maintenance services for this Capital project.

Is this is a continuation grant? No.

Describe how this Capital project will be maintained in subsequent years without the
assistance of CDBG Capital funds (limit 3500 characters)

This Capital project is a one-time only project to prepare the 600 house for use as a
restaurant. H.O.ML.E.S., Inc. will be responsible for the routine maintenance and upkeep of
the building thereafter.

Describe briefly how grant funds will be allocated to silpport the goals identified in the grant
application. If grant funding will be used to support the organization’s infrastructure, explain
how existing organizational funds will be reallocated for the project. (Limit 3500 characters)

Grant funds will be used only for the renovation of the 600 house in preparation for use by Eat The
Tea Café which will create three (3) new jobs and retain current jobs for staff that will be relocating
with her to the 13™ Street corridor.

HUD requires all property, furniture, computers, and equipment purchases to be tracked
when purchased and disposed of. Please describe your process in tracking purchased assets.
(Limit 3500 characters).

13
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H.O.M.E.S., Inc. will not be using any of these funds to purchase any assets. Funds will be used for
the renovation of the building only..

CDBG is a reimbursement program. Historically, agencies who are awarded CDBG funding
may not receive the October, November, and Decembers reimbursement checks until
January. What capacity does your agency have in place to cover the cost associated with the
implementation of the program? (Limit 3500 characters)

H.0.M.E.S., Inc has available lines of credit totaling $350,000, and is planning to use advances on
these lines for the construction/rehab costs related to the 600 Building. Any costs beyond what the
City is able to fund ($100,000 or more) will be paid for by H.O.M.E.S. from other non-City funds.

14
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Section #7: APPLICANT CERTIFICATION

If this application is approved for funding, the organization agrees to comply with all required federal laws and
regulations. The organization confirms that it is fully capable of fulfilling the obligations as stated in this
proposal and in any attachments or documents included with this application.

By applying for this CDBG grant, applicant affirms they currently, or by the time of award, possess knowledge
and understanding of the following:

1. Proficient administration of the program in full compliance with all Federal, State and local
regulations and guidelines.

2. CDBG National Objectives and Eligible Activities.

3. Playing by the Rules: A Handbook for CDBG Sub recipients - We encourage you to

download a copy from the HUD website at:
http: .hud.gov/offices/cpd/communitydevelopment/library/subrecipient/plaving/total.nd

As a duly authorized representative of this organization, I submit this application to the City of Fort
Lauderdale’s Housing and Community Development Division and verify that the information herein is true,
accurate and complete.

PENALTY FOR FALSE OR FRADULENT STATEMENT: U.S. Code Title 18. Section 1001, provides
that a fine up to $10,000 or imprisonment for a period not to exceed 5 years, or both, shall be the penalty for
willful misrepresentation and the making of false statement, knowing same to be false.

Name of Organization: H.O.M.E.S.. INC.
Signature: %@ %
T

Title: Interim CEO

Date: June 2, 2017

18

CAM # 17-0708
Exhibit 2
Page 33 of 192



CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE

FY 2017 CDBG PUBLIC SERVICES
Attachments and Supplemental Questions

Name of Organization:

In addition to submitting the application, each agency must also submit the required documents and label them as
follows. Agencies that do not provide the required documents, as labeled and mstructed will not be
considered for funding.

Documents for the “Original’ proposal package, must include the following “A” numbered attachments. The
“Original’ proposal package is for City staff only, as a result, the "A” attachments are nof required in the “Copied’

proposal packages. Theses page must be returned: ONLY with your original application packet that is signed
in blue ink.

These two columns
are for use only. by
City Staff

Yes No

A1-IRS Letter confirming the Non-Profit Organization tax exempt status

A2- Articles of |ncorporat|on

A3- By Laws

A4- Occupational License (if required by the City, County, State or Federal Government)

AS5- Proof of zoning from the municipality (to ensure your project is zoned for its location)

A6- Board of Director Resolution or agency lettered authorizing the submission of the CDBG
application

-1 A7- Proof of project address (deed, lease, etc.)

A8- Signed W9 form

A9- Vendor Central Contractor Registration (CCR) Verlflcatlon

-A10-1RS 990

Documents for the “Original’ proposal package and all “Copied” proposal packages must include the following “B”
numbered attachments. S '

These two columns
are. for use only by
City Staff

Yes No

B1- A list of the agency’s Board of Directors

B2- Audited Financial Statements for the past 2 years (if applicable for your agency) If not applicable,
an explanation is required.

B3- A copy of the most recent agency audit / monitoring report (if applicable). If not applicable,
an explanation is required.

B4- Organizational Chart

B5- Resumes of key staff involved in the administration of the CDBG g@nt award

B6- Conflict of Interest Statement (please declare any conflicts of interest, (e.g. if your program will
permit your staff to benefit or if you are a relative to any City Commissioner or City employee)

B7- Evidence of current funding commitment / funding match from other funding sources

B8- Evidence of sufficient funding to carry out project, if awarded by the Clty (e.g. current bank /
investment statement)

B9- If applicable, attach homeless statistical data

B10- If applicable, Instructor Certificates, Approved curriculum

B11-Other Attachments

19

CAM # 17-0708
Exhibit 2
Page 34 of 192




FY 2017

V),

CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE
CDBG PUBLIC SERVICES
Attachments and Supplemental Questions

1. Describe your organization’s experience in administering programs funded by Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG). (Limit 3500 characters or 500 words)

HOMES, Inc, has participated with the City of Fort Lauderdale in the administration of Community
Development Block Grant funds through our Self-Sufficiency and Supportive Housing Program for
low/mod income residents for four (4) years and for the CDBG-R Economic Recovery Program
for our Employability Skills Training Program. HOMES was last monitored for its CDBG

Programs in the 2015 - 2016 Program Year and has successfully complied with all program
requirements and spent all funds awarded within the prescribed timelines.

2. What is the organization’s annual budget for the most recently completed fiscal year?

$ 1,200,000.

3. Please disclose your current and historical funding sources in the table provided below

 Funding Source

- Current -

Amount.$

Historical
“Amount $

“Comment on Outcome

City of Fort
Lauderdale CDBG

175,000

$549.000

CDBG: Self Sufficiency
& Supportive Housing
Program to include an
Employability Skills
Training Program

Other CDBG
Please identify Municipality

$90,000

City of Ft. Lauderdale;
CDBG-R:
Rehabilitation of
delipated structure and
open as Thrift Store for
use in Employability
Skills Training
Program:

Other Local Govt.

Funding
Please identify type

State Funding

$659,913

City of Ft. Lauderdale -
& Broward County
State of Florida SHIP
Funds: Rehabilitation
of multifamily
affordable rental units
for low/mod income
households and for
property insurance

Federal Funding

$967,220

City of Ft. Lauderdale,
HOME CHDO Funds:

“acquisition and

rehabilitation of single

20
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D

CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE

FY 2017

- CDBG PUBLIC SERVICES

Attachments and Supplemental Questions

family and multifamily
housing units for rental
to low/mod income
households.

Private Funding

$415,000

$739,000

Children's Services
Council of Broward:;
The Jim Moran
Foundation;
Community Foundation
of Broward; The Salah
Foundation; Bank
United; BB&T Bank:
The William Watts
Foundation; The
McBride Foundation;
Comerica Bank; and
private donations

4. How many years have you been awarded CDBG funds past? 3

5. If you have been awarded CDBG funds i

amounts received.

n the past, please state the fiscal year/s and the

L 7 CDBGFiscalYears " TotalCDBG Award
Lo v e T Begln with the most current fiscal year . SR S AT R
2015-2016 $175,000

2014 - 2015 $200,000

2013 -2014 $175,000

2010 - 2011

CDBG-R: $90,000

21
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CERT

TTICATIONS

22



ATACH
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IRS Letter confirming the

Non-profit organization

Tax exempt status
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Y0 TID> Q Depariment of ike Trensury
&m IRS lu('t-rnul Revenue Sun'lc?

£

0724

P.0. Box 2508 In reply refer to: D24B132325
Cincinnati OH 45201 Sep. 21, 2010 LTR 4168C EO
65-0870180 000000 OO
00013272
BODC: TE

HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES MORTGAGE
ASSISTANCE & EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOO
H OMES INC

% KATHARINE S BARRY

690 NE 13TH ST STE 102

FT LAUDERDALE FL 33304-1107

Employver Identification Number: 65-0870;80
Person to Contact: Paul M Perry
Toll Free Telephore Number: 1-877-829~5500

Dear Taxpaver:

This is in response to vour Sep. 10, 2010, request for information

regarding vour tax-exempt status,

Our records dindicate that you were recognized as exempt under

section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in a determination
letter issued in February 1999.

Our records also indicate that vou are ndt a private foundation within
the meaning of section 509(a)' of the Code because you are described in

section(s) 509(a)(1l) and 170Ch) (1) CAX Cvid,

Donors may deduct contributions to vou as provided in section 170 of
the Cade. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to vou or
for your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and
2522 of the Code, .

Please refer to our website www.irs.gov/es for information regarding
filing reguirements. Specifically, section 6033(i) of the Code
provides that failure to file an annual information return for three
consecutive years results in revocation of tax-exempt status as of
the filing due date of the third return for organizations required to
file. :

If vou have any questions, rlease call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of this latter.

Sincerely vours,

Michele M. Sullivan, Oper. Mgr.
Accounts Management Operations I
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I certify the attached is a true and correct copy of the Articles of Incorporation, as
amended to date, of HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC., a corporation organized
under the laws of the State of Florida, as shown by the recordg of this office.
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Given under my hand and the
Great Seal of the State of Florida
at Tallahassee, the Capitol, this the

Thirtieth.day of October, 2009

OOz
.t%?@-s.

Raurt 3. Brofoitry
Serretary of State 2
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES & MORTGAGES:

EFFECTIVE SOLUTIONS, INC.
AFLORIDA NOT-FOR-PROFIT CORPORATION

ARTICLEI
NAME

The name of the Corporation is Housing Opportunities & Mortgages: Effective Solutions, Inc.

ARTICLE I
DURATION

The term of existence of the Corporation is perpetual, and the corporate existence will
commence on the filing of these Articles by the Department of State.

ARTICLE IIT
PURPOSE 3
The Corporation is organized exclusively for charitable purposes, as specifiedin §501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Spécifically; the purpose of the Corporation shall be to
participate and assist inthe development, stabilization and restoration of lower income nejghborhoods
and communities; by creating home ownership opportunities and arranging mortgage financing for
low (and sometimes moderate) income families in nieed of safe, decent, attractive and affordable
housing. The Corporationmay also participate in related projects benefitting residents and businesses
located in lower income communities and neighborhoods; and may participate in'the provision of
housing for special needs populations existing in the community.

(8  No part of the riet eanings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be
distributable to, any memiber, trustee, director, or officer ofthe Corporation, or any private individual
(except that reasonable compensation may be paid for services rendered to or for the. Corporation),
and no member, trustee, director, or officer of the Corporation ‘or any private individual shall be
entitled to share in the distribution of any of the. corporate assets on dissolution of the Corporation.

. N CAM # 17-0708
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(b)  No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be carrying on
propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation (except as otherwise provided by
Internal Revenue Code §501(h)), or participating in, or intervening in (including the publication or
distribution of statements), any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office,

(©)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of these articles of incorporation, the
Corporation shall not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on () by a corporation
exempt from Federal income tax under §501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 of (i) by
a corporation contributions to which are deductible under §170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code
0£ 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law).

(@  Intheeventoftheliquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation, whether
voluntary or involuntary or by operation of law;, all of the remaining assets and property of the
Corporation shall, after necessary expenses thereof, be distributed to organizations which qualify as
tax-exempt organizations under §501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(®  Not withstanding any other provisions of these articles of incorporation, neither the
Corporation nor any member, trustee, director, officer, or private individual shall engage in any act
of self-dealing as defined in §4941 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or corresporiding
provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws; nor fail to distribute an amount of income required to
avoid incurring tax liability under §4942 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or corresponding
provisions of subsequent federal tax laws; nor retain any excess business holdingsasdefined in §4943
of the Internal Revenue: Code of 1986, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal fax
laws; nor make any investment in such a manner as to subject the Corporation to tax under §4944
of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax Jaws; nor
make any taxable expenditures.as defined in §4945 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or

corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws.

IRECTORS

There shall be not less than three (3) members of the Board 6f Directors of the Corporation
and not more than eleven (11), one of which shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation.
Directors may be elected from time to time by the majority vote of Directors then serving. Oge or
more non-voting advisory Directors, which are representatives of neighborhoods where housing is
being or will be constructed, may also be appointed from time to ime by the Board of Ditectors.

The names and addresses of the persons who are to serve as Directors until the first election
thereof, as appointed by the Incorporator; are as follows:

" 28 . CAM # 17-0708
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—— e e jmats tmess e e s odees i mssengs

Katherine S. Barry 2665 N.E. 26" Terrace, Ft. Lauderdale, FL. 33306
Jobn D. McElligott 3200 N. Ocean Blvd., #2308, Ft. Lauderdale, FL. 33308 ' e -
Harris K. Solomon 200 E. Las Olas Blvd., #1800, Ft. Lauderdale, FL. 33301

Any action required or permitted to be'taken by the Board of Directors under any provision
oflaw may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Board shall individually or collectively
consent in writing to such action. Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes
ofthe proceedings of the Board, and any such action by written consent shall have the same force and
effect as if taken by unanimous vote of the Directors. Any certificate orother document filed under
any provision of law which relates to action so taken shall state that the action was taken by
unanimous ‘written consent of the Board of Directors without a meeting, and that the Articles of
Incorporation and the Bylaws of this Corporation authorize the Board to so act. Such a statement
shall be prima facie evidence of such authority.

ARTICLEY

PRINCIPAL, PLACE OF BUSINESS AND MAILING ADDRESS

The principal place of business and mailing address of the Corporation shall be at 2665 N.E.
26" Terrace, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306.

ARTICLE VI
REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT

The initial registered office of the Corporation. shall be located at 200 East Las Olas
Boulevard, Suite 1800, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301. The initial registered agent of the
Corporation at that address shall be Harris K. Solomon, Esq., of Brinkley, McNerney, Morgan,
Solomon & Tatum, LLP, Attorneys at Law.

ARTICLE VII
MEMBERSHIP

Unless otherwise provided in the Corporation's Bylaws, the Corporation shall not have any
members, and shall be considered a non-membership organization.

ARTICLE VIII
MEMBERSHIP.CONTROL , _

The Corporation shall be governed by its Board of Directors; the Diréctors of which shall
serve indefinitely, unless sooner removed by their ownresignation, by the majority vote ofa quorurn
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of'the Board of Directors or as otherwise pro'Vided.by in the Bylaws. The Board of Directors may,
however,. delegate so much of its. authority to particular Directors, officers, or agents, or any
combination thereof, as it deems advisable to fulfill its tax exempt putposes.

ARTICLE IX |
NONSTOCK CORPORATION

'I'heCorppraﬁon shall be considered organized on anonstock basis, and, therefore; certificates
of shares of stock in the Corporation shall not be issued.

BYLAWS
The first Bylaws of the Corporation will be adopted by the Board of Directors named herein.

Upon proper notice, the Bylaws may be amended, altered, or rescinded by the affirmative vote of
fifty-one (51%) percent of the Board of Directors.

AMENDMENTS
These articles of Incorporation may be amended at any meeting of the Board of Directors,
by the affirmative vote of fifty-one (51%) percent of its members, atany regular meeting or at any

special meeting called for that purpose, provided that such proposed amendments shall be plainly
stated in the call for the meeting in which they are to be considered.

ARTICLE X1
The name and residence address of the subscriber of these Articles of Incorporation is:

Katharine S. Barry 2665 N.E. 26" Terrace
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have subscribed our names this 13th day of October,

1998.

Katharine S, Barry, Incorporator ———
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STATEOFFLORIDA )’

COUNTY OF BROWARD ) :
The foregoing instrument was.aj(owledged before me this 13" day of October, 1998, by

Katharin‘e S. Barry, as Incorporator, [] who is personally known to me, [ ] who has prodiced
. asidentification and who [did/did not] take an oath, and who
acknowledged before me that [he/she/they] executed the same as [hxs/her/the:r] free and voluntary
act for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

K 0 'ARY PUBLfC STATE OF FLOR.IDA

SEAL: @t% SUSANLYNN BROWN
$ & MY, COMMISSION 3700473001 BFIRES
June 7, 189

BOEMEDHWTMYFNRNSUWCE INC,
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CERTIFICATE’DESIGNA’I-‘ING‘ PLACE OF BUSINESS

FOR THE SERVICE OF PROCESS WITHIN FLORIDA. NAMING AGENTZ» %775
UPON WHOM PROCESS MAY BE SERVED Y

b2

- 5 A

In compliance with Sections 607.0501 and. 617.0501 Florida Statutes, the following is <> /0/{9
submited: D

Housing Opportunities & "Mortgages: Effective Solutions, Inc., 2 Florida Not-For-Profit
Corporation, desiring to organize under the laws of the State of Florida, with its principal place of
business at 2665 N.E. 26" Terrace, Fort Lauderdale, State of Florida, has named Harris K. Solomon,
Esq., located at 200 East Las Olas Boulevard, Suite 1800, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301, as ifs
agent to accept service of process within Florida,

DATE: October 13, 1998

Katharine S. Barry, Incorpoﬁifor'"

Having been named to accept service of process for the above stated Corporation, at the place
designated in this Certificate, I hereby agree to act in this capacity, and I further agreeto comply with
the provisions of all statutes relative to the proper and complete performance of my duties,

DATE: October 13, 1998 4 /_//"""_ ' -

Hardis X. Solomon, Registered Agent

STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF BROWARD )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me thisjgdh day of October, 1998, by
Harris K. Solomon, Esq,, [X] who is personally kdown to me or [ ] who has produced
___asidentification, and who fd/did not] take an oath,
and who acknowledged before me that he executed the same ashis free and voluntary act for theuses”

and purposes therein set forth.
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA
) SEAL: . NacyBums
GAWPFILESVennifer\Sean\HOMES\ast-ino.wpd | v Nmme. mm
My Conunission Epires 06/14100
13003 HOTARY + Fla; Notesy Servico & Diesclty G,
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ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
- _ ' to
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
of

Housing Opportunities & Mortgages: Effective Solutions v
(present name)

Pursuant to the provisions of section 617,10
nonprafit corporation adopis the  following
FIRST:

DELETED,)

Inc.

06, Florida Statutes, the undersigned Florida
articles of aniendment to its articles of incorporation.
Amendment(s) adopted: (INDICATE ARTICLE NUI\%B?R;)(S) BEg‘?éNgNDED', ADDED OR
- PP rporeTloN L -vo !
Pleass Ol 9 Qo P‘ o Assistadee
+ e /‘(af“t" Aqe FrSSi tale,
Housivg Opportuwsities, hotyg

Uit iows, Toe.
preeliive Neighborkod Sobwtions, T

i .
w
=

. e

gl B 8- AW 00
LERIE

SECOND: The date of adoption of the ame.ndment(s) was:.

January 13, 7 2000
THIRD:  Adoption of Amendment (CHECK ONE)

L The amendment(s) was(were) adopted b the members and the number of votes
cast for the amendment was suﬂigient‘ or-approval,
“Ihere are no members or members entitled to vote onthe amendment, The
amendment(s) was(were) adopted by the board of directors.

o a -
Siguature of Chairman, Vice Chairman, Presiden:

Katharine s. Barry, President/CED

Typed or printed name

April 24, 2000
Title T Die

33
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Division of Corporations

October 30, 2009

H.O.M.E. S. ‘

ATTN: KATHERINE S, BARRY B
690 NORTHEAST 13TH STREET SUITE #102
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33304

Pursuant to your recent inquiry, we are enclosing the certification you requested.

Should you have any questions regarding this matter you may contact our office at
(850) 245-6053.

YASHIRA C COLSON : o
Certification Section Letter No. 409A00034447

P.0. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314
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BY- LAWS
of

HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE, & EFFECTIVE
NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.

d/b/a H.O-M.E.S., InC.
a Florida not-for profit corporation

ARTICLES ONE:
INTRODUCTION

These By-Laws constitute the code of rules adopted by Housing Opportunities,
Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc. for the regulation and
management of its affairs. :

ARTICLE TWO:
OFFICES AND AGENCY

2.01 Principal and Branch Offices.

The principal place of business of this Corporation will initially be located at
3471 North Federal Highway, Suite 611, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306. In addition, the
Corporation may maintain other offices either within or without the State of Florida as it
business requires.

2.02 Location of Registered Office.

The location of the initial registered office of this Corporation is 200 East Las
Olas Blvd, Suite 1800, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301. Such office will be continuously
maintained in the State of Florida for this Corporation. The Board of Directors may from
time to time change the address of its registered office by duly adopted resolution and
filing the appropriate statement with the State.

ARTICLES THREE:
MEMBERSHIP

3.01 Membership.

The Corporation shall perform and fulfill its exempt purpose on a nonmembership
basis and shall not have any Members.

36
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ARTICLE FOUR:
DIRECTORS

4.01 General Powers.

The business affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of
Directors.

4.02 Number, Tenure, and Qualifications.

The number of Directors of the Corporation shall not be less than three (3) nor
more than eleven (11). Each Director shall hold office for a period of one (1) year from
the date of election, until resignation, or until removed by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the
Board of Directors, whichever shall occur first. A Board member may serve consecutive
terms of office.

4.03 Advisory Board Members.

The Board my invite one (1) or more persons to serve as Advisory Board
Members, from time to time, on such reasons as the Board may establish from time to
time by Resolution, for the purpose of furthering the mission of the Corporation. Such
Board members will be non-voting. A representative of the neighborhood owners
association(s) in areas where the Corporation intends to actively participate in affordable
housing projects and/or neighborhood restoration efforts would, for example, be
appropriate Advisory Board Members.

4.04 Regular Meetings.

An annual meeting, at which new officers and directors will be held during _
September of each year. Regular meeting will be held at least quarterly by the Board of
Directors, upon at least ten (10) days written notice.

4.05 Special Meetings.

Special Meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of
the Board Chair, President/CEO, or any three (3) directors. The person authorized to call
special meetings of the Board of Directors may fix the place for holding any special
meeting of the board of Directors called by them. Notice of any special meetings shall be
given at leas two (2) days previously thereto by written notice delivered personally or
each Director at his or her business address, or by telephone.

4.06 Notice.

Any Director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a Director at
the meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director
attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business
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because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. The business to be transacted at,
or the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be
specified in the notice of notice of such meeting.

4.07 Quorum.

Two-thirds (2/3) of the elected Directors shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, but if less than such
number is present at a meeting, the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time
to time without further notice.

4.08 Manner of Action.

The act 51% of the Directors present at the meeting at which a quorum is present
shall be the act of the Board of Directors.

4.09 Meeting by Conference Call and Action Without a Meeting.

Any meeting may be held in person or by telephone conference call when
necessary or desirable for the Board. Any action that may be taken by the Board of
Directors af a meeting may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting
forth the action to so be taken, shall be signed before such action by all Directors.

4,10 Vacancies.

Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be fulfilled by the
affirmative vote of the remaining directors of the Board of Directors. Any directorship to
be fulfilled by reason of an increase in the number of directors may be filled by election
of the Board of Directors.

411 Compensation.

No Director shall receive compensation for his services to the Corporation in the
capacity of Directors, except that the President/CEO shall receive compensation as set by
the Board, for his or her services. This section shall not preclude any Director from
serving the Corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefrom, as
long as full disclosure is made to the Board regarding any sum arrangement, and the
Board votes to affirm the terms of said arrangement.

412 Presumption of Assent.

Any Director of the Corporation present at a meeting of the Board at which action
on any corporate meter is taken, shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken
unless his dissent is entered in the minutes of the meeting, or unless he files hi written
dissent to such action with the person acting as secretary of the meeting before the
adjournment thereof, or he forwards such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of
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the Corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent
shall apply to Director who voted in favor of such action.

ARTICLE FIVE:
OFFICERS

5.01 Roster of Officers.
The Officers of this Corporation will consist of the following:

a. Board Chair.
b. Board Vice Chair.
c. Board Secretary.
d. Board Treasurer.
e. President and Chief Executive Officer.

5.02 Selection of Officers.

Each of the Officers of this Corporation will be elected and appointed annually by
the Board of Directors from among its members. Each Officer will remain in office until
a successor to such office has been selected and qualified. Such election will take place at
the annual meeting of the Board of Directors taking place each year.

5.03 Multiple Officeholders.

In any election of Officers, the Board of Directors may elect and appoint a single
person to any two offices simultaneously, except that the offices of Board Chair,
President/ CEP and Secretary must be held by separate individuals.

5.04 Board Chair.

The Board Chair shall chair all meetings of the Board, and work closely with the
President/ CEO to insure that policies of the Board and mission of the Corporation are
carried out. The Chair may appoint Committee Chair from among Board members.

5.05 President/ Chief Executive Officer.

The President will be the Chief Executive Officer of this Corporation and will
subject to the control of the Board of Directors or Directorial Committees, manage,
supervise and control the day to day affairs of the Corporation. The President will
perform all duties incident to such office and such other duties as may be provided in
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these By-Laws or as may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors. The
President/ CEO may be compensated by the Board for his/her duties in these capacities.

5.06 Board Vice Chair.

The Vice Chair shall perform all duties and exercise all power of the Chair when
the Chair is absent or is otherwise unable to act. The Vice President will perform such
other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

5.07 Board Secretary.

The Secretary will keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors, will
be the custodian of the corporation records, will give all notices as are required by law or
by the By-Laws, and, generally, will perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary
and such other duties as my be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, by these
By-Laws, or which may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors.

5.08 Board Treasurer.

The Treasurer will have charge and custody of all funds of this Corporation; will
deposit the funds as required by the Board of Directors, will keep and maintain adequate
and correct accounts of the Corporation’s properties and business transaction, will render
reports and accountings to the Directors as required by the Board of Directors or by law,
and will perform in general all duties incident to the office to of Treasurer and such other
duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these By-Laws,
or which may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors.

5.09 Removal of Officers.

Any Officer elected or appointed to office may be removed by two-thirds (2/3)
vote of the Board, whenever in their judgment the best interests of this Corporation will
be served. However, such removal will be without prejudice to any contract rights of the
Officer so removed.

ARTICLE SIX:
INFOMAL ACTION

6.01 Waiver Notice.

Whenever any notice whatsoever is required to be given under the provisions of
the law, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, or these By-Laws, a waiver of
such notice in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to notice, whether before
or after the time stated in such waiver, will be deemed equivalent to the giving of such
notice.
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6.02 Action by Consent.

Any action required by law or under the Articles of Incorporation of this
Corporation or these By-Laws, or any action which otherwise may be taken at a meeting
if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, is signed by all of the persons
entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter of such consent, or all Directors in
office, and filed with the Secretary of the Corporation.

ARTICLE SEVEN:
COMMITTEES

7.01 Definition of Directorial Committees.

This Corporation may have certain Committees, each of which shall be chaired by
a Director, or such other person as approved and appointed by the Board. Such
Committees will have and exercise some prescribed authority of the Board of Directors in
the management of this Corporation. However, no such Committee will have the
authority of the Board to accomplish any of the following:

1. Filling of vacancies in the Board.

2. Adoption, amendment, or repeal of By-Laws

3. Amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board.

4. Action on matters committed by By-Laws or resolution of

the Board to another Committee of the Board.

7.02 Appointment of Committees.

The Board of Directors, by resolution duly adopted by the majority of the
Directors in office, may designate and appoint one or more Directorial Committees and
delegate to such Committees specific and prescribed authority of the Board of Directors
to exercise in management of this Corporation. However, the creation of such Directorial
Committees will not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any individual Director,
of any responsibility imposed on such personnel otherwise by law.

ARTICLE EIGHT:
OPERATIONS

8.01 Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Corporation will end September 30™ each year.
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8.02 Execution of Documents.

Except as otherwise provided bylaw, checks, drafts, promissory notes, orders for
the payment of money, and other evidence of indebtedness of this Corporation may be
signed by the President, Board Chair, or Board Treasurer. Contract, leases, or other
instruments executed in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation may be signed by
the President, or the Board Chair, and will have attached copies of the resolutions of the
Board of Directors certified by the Secretary authorizing their execution.

8.03 Books and Records.

This Corporation will keep correct and complete books and records of account,
and will also keep minutes of the proceedings of its Board of Directors and Directorial
Committees. The corporation will keep in its registered office a copy of its By-Laws,
including amendments to date, certified by the Secretary of the Corporation.

8.04 Inspection Books and Records.

All books and records of this Corporation may be inspected by any Director, or
his agent or attorney, for any proper at any reasonable time on written demand under oath
stating such purpose.

8.05 Nonprofit Operations — Compensation.

This Corporation will not have or issue shares of stock. No dividend will be paid,
and no part of the income of this Corporation will be disturbed to its Directors or
Officers. However, the corporation may pay compensation in a reasonable amount to
Officers or Directors for services rendered.

8.06 Loans to Management.
This Corporation will make no loans to any of its Directors or Officers.

8.07 No Property Rights.

No Incorporator of Corporation may have any vested right, interest, or privilege
of, in or the assets, functions, affairs, or franchises of the Corporation, or any right,
interest, or privilege which may be transferable or inheritable, or which will continue if
his affiliation or office ceases, or while he is not in good standing.
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ARTICLE NINE:
AMENDMENTS

9.01 Amendment of Articles of Incorporation.

The power of alter, amend, or repeal the Articles of Incorporation of this
Corporation is vested in the Board of Directors. Such action must be taken pursuant to a
resolution approved by a majority of the Directors.

9.02 Amendment to By-Laws.

The power to alter, amend, or repeal these By-Laws, or to adopt new By Laws,
insofar as is allowed, is vested in the Board of Directors.
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c

CITY OF
FORT LAUDERDALE BUSINESS TAX YEAR 2016-2017

BusiNESS TAX DivisiOoN
100 N. ANDREWS AVENUE, 1ST FLOOR, FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301
(954) 828-5195

Business ID: 9602233 NE 13B§§I;i.ness Name: B O M E S INC
Business Addreggrrcm USE ONLY » 724587
Tax Category: Taxi#: Fee:

HOME S INC

690 NE 13 ST
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33304

*++DETACH AND POST THIS RECEIPT IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE***

....... > x
Business ID: 9602687
Tax Number: 724587
Business Name: HOME S INC
Business Address: 690 NE 13 ST
Business Owner: KATHARINE S BARRY

» This Receipt is issued for the period commencing October 1st and ending September 30th of
the years shown above.

= |f you have moved out of the city, please provide a written statement.

= Atransfer of business Idi:ation within the city limits is subject to zoning approval. Please
complete a Business Tax Transfer Application and bring it to our office to obtain the necessary
approval.

= A Transfer fee applies of 10% of the annual business tax fee. The fee shall not be less than
$3.00, nor greater than $25.00.

= If you have sold your business, please provide us with a copy of the Bill of Sale.

Please be advised that this issuance of a Business Tax Receipt establishes that the business
you intend to conduct is a use permitted by the City Zoning Code for the location at which
you intend to operate. The issuance of a Business Tax Receipt in no way certifies that the
property located at this address is in compliance with other provisions of the City Code of
Ordinances.

BusINESS TAX DIVISION
100 N. ANDREWS AVENUE, 1sT FLOOR,” T LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301
TeL (954)828-519F ° ‘54)828-5881
wo OR" =.GOV
Rev. 5/20/2016 45 CAM # 17-0708
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Clty of Fort Lauderdale Property Reporter GIS

Y g s P IR Y F SRR P ) SRS 05

Seamh & Resuﬂts

By Attribute By Shape Results %
Features selected: 1 Clear Export List E

Address:1218 NE 6th AVE, BLDG P634, Fort Lauderdale,

L v,

Expand All Fold All Print Details County Appraiser

R | Kot M

Location

690 NE 13Th ST, Fort Lauderdale Property Details

Addr

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304 Folio 1494234031450 3
Owner(s): H.O.M.E.S. Inc; | [Parcel ID 9234031450 =
Folio: 494234031450 Address 1218 NE 6th AVE, BLDG -

Parcel ID: 9234031450 P634, Fort Lauderdale, FL .

33304 4
Owner(s) H.O.M.E.S. Inc; =
Property Description PROGRESS02-18 D LOT 1 -
LESS R/W,2 LESSR/W, 3 .
THRU 8,30 THRU 48 BLK o
112 Iy
BCPA GIS SQFT 87176 :
City GIS SQFT n/a -
Millage Code 10312
Detailed Use 112 - Commercial - Mixed use | B
— store and office or store and :

residential or residential
combination :
Year Builtof Property 11975
Number of Buildings 9

Bed Count n/a k
Bath Count n/a [
Number of Units 22

Building Adjusted SQFT 24538
Building Total SQFT 24538

oo

Planning and Community Development

KA L RV R R}

Service Delivery

Administrative/Regulatory

Assessments

100m Sales History
400ft 26.144 -80.129 Degrees
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CORPORATE RESOLUTION

I, Eric Servaites, as Co-Chair of the Board of the Corporation, Housing Opportunities,
Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc., d/b/a H.O.M.ES., Inc., a
Florida not-for-profit corporation, do hereby certify that the following is a true and correct copy
of a Resolution adopted by consensus of the Directors of the Corporation on June 1, 2017.

By unanimous consent, the Directors agreed by vote, which represented a quorum of the
Board, to adopt the following Resolution after discussion and full disclosure of the City of Fort
Lauderdale’s Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), Community Development Block
Grant 2017 Capital Improvement Grant Application guidelines for Economic Development
activities. The Corporation certifies that they have met all of its applicable requirements and
that the information contained in the Application is accurate and true to the best of their
knowledge. Further, this Resolution has not in any way been modified or rescinded, but is in full
force and effect; and the said Directors of the Corporation have duly ratified and affirmed the
same in the form hereinafter set forth:

The Board of Directors of H.O.M.E.S., Inc. hereby authorizes Katharine S.
Barry, its President and/or Linda Taylor, Interim CEO, to submit this grant
application for consideration under the FY 2017 City of Fort Lauderdale
Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) Community Development
Block Grant Capital Improvement Grant for the purpose of economic
development, job creation/retention activities. Such activities are in
keeping with the mission of the Corporation.

It is further resolved that, in keeping with the long-established policy of
the Board, the Corporation’s President and Interim CEO has the authority
to sign all documents and applications in connection with the above, on
behalf of the Corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, as Co-Chair of the Board of Directors of
H.0.M.E.S., Inc., hereby attests to the foregoing corporate action on this 1 of June, 2017.

-

/. ‘
Bric Servaites, Co-Chair
(Seal) e

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘
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MARTY KIAR
BRIGVWARD

& COUNTY SR
APPRAISER
Site Address 600-690 NE 13 STREET, FORT LAUDERDALE FL 33304 D # 4942 34 03 1450
Property Owner |H.O.M.E.S.INC Millage 0312
Mailing Address |690 NE 13 ST STE 102 FORT LAUDERDALE FL 33304-1107 | [Use 12
Abbreviated PROGRESS0 2-18 D LOT 1 LESS R/W,2 LESS R/W, 3 THRU 8,30 THRU 48 BLK 112
Legal Description
The just values displayed below were set in compliance with Sec. 193.011, Fla. Stat., and include a
reduction for costs of sale and other adjustments required by Sec. 193.011(8).
Property Assessment Values
Click here to see 2016 Exemptions and Taxable Values to be reflected on the Nov. 1, 2016 tax bill.
vear | Land mprovoment | “Vaue - | ‘sonvame Tex
2017 $871,760 $1,882,310 $2,754,070 $2,626,310
2016 $871,760 $1,631,940 $2,503,700 $2,387,560 $6,458.00
2015 $871,760 $1,298,750 $2,170,510 $2,170,510 $5,641.00
2017 Exemptions and Taxable Values by Taxing Authority
County School Board Municipal Independent
Just Value $2,754,070 $2,754,070 $2,754,070 $2,754,070
Portability 0 0 0 0
Assessed/SOH $2,626,310 $2,754,070 $2,626,310 $2,626,310
Homestead 0 0 0 0
Add. Homestead 0 0 0 0
Wid/Vet/Dis 0 0 0 0
Senior 0 0 0 0
Exempt Type 34-15 $2,626,310 $2,754,070 $2,626,310 $2,626,310
Taxable 0 0 0 0
Sales History _ Land Calculations
Date Type Price Book/Page or CIN Price Factor Type
5/25/2006 | WD* $3,100,000 42252 | 554 $10.00 87,176 SF
12/5/2000 wD $450,000 31084 /218
311975 WD $46,000 52751242
11/11971 WD $43,500
Adj. Bldg. S.F. (Card, Sketch) | 24538
* Denotes Multi-Parcel Sale (See Deed) Units 22
Eff/Act. Year Built: 1976/1975
Special Assessments
Fire Garb Light Drain Impr Safe Storm Clean Misc
03
S
24538
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INSTR # 106180883
OR BK 42252 Pages 554 - 555
RECORDED 06/20/06 12:57:31

Prepared by and return to: . BROWARD gog;{% g:t%MMISSION
Craig Packer DOC STMP-D: !
VicegPr'esidem- DEPUTY CLERK 1034

T #1, 2 Pages

Firm Title Corporation
8751 W. Broward Blvd. #410
Plantation, FL 33324

:954-236-0492

File Number: Hill-Fruchter '
Will Call No.:

[Space Abgve This Line For Recording Data]

Warranty Deed

This Warranty Deed made this 25th day of May, 2006 between T. Hill and M. Fruchter Partnership, a Florida
general partnership whose post office address is PO Box 2130, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301, grantor, and Housing
Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood Soluitions, Inc. d/b/a H.O0.M.E.S., Inc., a Florida not

for profit corporation whose post office address is 3471 North Federal Hwy., , Suite #611, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33306,
grantee: .

(Wheilever used herein the terms "grantor® and "grantee” include all the parti€s: to this instrument and thé heirs, legal Feprcsentntives, and assigns of
individuals, and the successors dnd assigns.of corporations, trusts and trustees)

Witnesseth, that said grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of TEN AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($10.00) and other
good and valuable considerations fo said grantor in hand paid by said grantee, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged,
has granted; bargained, and sold to the said grantee, and grantee's heirs and assigns forever, the following, described land,

situate; lying and being in Broward County, Florida to-wit;

Lots 1 through 8, inclusive, in Block 112, and Lots 30 through 48, inclusive, Less the North 15 feet of
said Lot 48, in Block 112, and Lots 8, 9, 10 and 11, in Block 113, of Progresso__, according to the map
or plat théreof, recorded in Plat Book 2, Page 18, Public Records of Miami-Dade County, Florida,
Less that part of said Lots 1 and 2, which was conveyed to the City of Fort Lauderdale by the
Warranty Deed recorded in O.R. Book 3686, Page 615, Public Records of Broward County, Florida,
deseribed as follows:

Begin at the Northwest corner of said Lot 1; thence go Easterly along the North line thereof, 135 feet
to the Northeast corrner of Lot 1: thence Southerly along the East line of said line of said Lots 1 and 2,
34.99 feet ‘to-the tangent point of circular arc concave to the Southwest; thence NOrthwesterly along
said arc having a radius of 20 feet and a central angle of 89° 58' an arc distance of 31.40 feet tg 2
tangent point on a line 15 fegt.Sou’th‘o_f and parallel to the North‘line of Lot 1; thence Westerly along
said parallel line, 115,01 feet to the West line of Lot 1; thence Northerly along said- West line, 15 feet
to the Point of Beginning. Said lands now lying, being and situate in Broward County, Florida,

Parcel ldeniiﬁgation’ Numbers: 19234-03-14500, 19234-03-14600, 19234-03-16300, 19234-03-16400,
19234-03-16600, 19234-03-16800, 19234-03-17000, 19234-03-17200, 19234-03-17300, 19234-03-17400,.
19234-03-17500, 19234-03-17600, 19234-07-17900, 19234-03-18100

Together with all the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining.
To Have and to Hold, the same in fee simple forpver.

And the grantor hereby covenants with said grantee that the grantor is lawfully seized of said land in ‘fee simple; that the
grantor has good right and lawful authority to sell and convey said land; thai the grantor hereby fully warrants the title to said

DoubleTimes
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land and will defend the same against the: lawﬁql claims of all persons whomsoever; and that said land is free. of all

‘encumbrances, except taxes accruing subsequent to December 31, 2005,

In Witness Whereof, grantor has hereunto set grantor's hand and seal the day and year first above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered in our presence:

" T. Hill and M. Fruchter Partnership, a Florida general
5 A partnership 4 , /
(o Loty Ll
[ Aot [tk “ By: __\f 2 .
Wﬁaﬁsshyme: (Z’wﬁ facy,. Theodore A. Hill, Partner ¢
By VS

Michael D. Fruchter, Parther

State of Florida
County of Broward

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 25th day of Ma’);, 2006 by Theodore. A. Hill, Partner and Michael
D. Fruchter, Partner on behalf of T. Hill and M. Fruchter Partership, a Florida general partnership. They [_] are personally
known to me or [X] have produced a driver's license as identification,

[Notary Seal]

Printed Name:

My Commission Expires:

LTI CRAIG PACKER
&9 4%, NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF FLORIDA

w I COMMISSION # DD193084
R g EXPIRES 03/12/2007

oJ1orn, ‘
BONDED THRU 1-888-NOTARY1

Chadd ]

i

Warranty Deed - Page 2 DoubleTimes
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¥

Form W'g Request for Taxpayer :3;;3 ef:{emr tg :r;eo .
(Rev. October 2007) \ . .

e o ot e Trory Identification Number and Certification send to the IRS,
{nternal Revenue Service

Name (as shown on your. Income tax returm)
HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE, & EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC
Business name, If different from above o

D.B.A: H.O.M.E.S INC

Check appropriate box: [ individual/Sole proprietor 4 Corporation O Partnership Exempt
7 Limited liabliity company. Enter the tax classlfication (D=disregarded entity, C=corporation, P=partnership) » ....... ¥ cayes
] Oher (se0 Instructions) »

Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) Requester's name and address (optional)

680 NE 13TH STREET SUITE 102
City, state, and ZIP code
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33304

List account number(s) here (optional)

Print or type
See Specific Instructions on page 2.

Taxpayer identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN In the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on Line 1 to avoid Soclal securlty number
backup withholding. For individuals, this [s your social security number (SSN), However, for a resident H :
alien, sofe propristor, or disragarded entity, see the Part | instructions on page 3. For other entities, it is y

your employer Identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How fo gef a TIN on page 3. or
Note. If tha account Is In more than one name, ses the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose Employar Identification number
number to enter, 65 ! 0870180

Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:
1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or 1 am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and

2. 1am not subject to backup withhalding because: (3) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has
notified me that | am no longer subject to backup withholding, and

3. | am aU.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below).

GCertification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above If you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup

withholding because you have failed to report all interast and dividends on .your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply.

For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement

arrangement {IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the Certification, but you must

provide your correct TIN. See lhel instructions on page 4. ' :

’ L {
Sign Signature of . _s), h / .
Here U.8. porsan b _ E ) . Date P ,'3/ / 7 ‘
General Instructions eﬂnit;%of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are
° e

el a U.S. person if you are:
?&fmsﬁféﬁgg,es are to the Intemal Revenue Code unless -individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien,

o A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or

Purpose of Form organized in the United States or under the laws of the United
A person who Is required to file an informatlon retum with the States,
IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer Identification number (TIN) o An estate (other than a foreign estate), or
to report, for example, income pald to you, real estate o A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section
trgnsgcﬂons.lm?rtgage lgterest you paid, lalac?ulsitgog gr 301.7701-7).
goﬁﬂi!?&?;gg y%us;‘:a"g: top;?xpﬁ?r:{' cancellation of debt, or Special rules for rartnerst_\ips. Partnerships that conduct a
trade or business In the United States are generally required to
Use Form W-8 only If you are a U.S. person (including a pay a wilhholding tax on any foreign partners' share of Income
resident allen), to provide your correct TIN to the person from such business. Further, in certaln cases where a Form W-9
requesting it (the requester) and, when applicable, to: has not been received, a parinership is required to presume that
1, Certlfy that the TIN you are giving Is correct (or you are a partner is a foreign person, and pay the withholding tax.
walting for a number to be Issued), Tha?t:‘eforﬁ'. if you arela U.St. %ersonbtha't is a_patrgnea l? ad s
2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or groviggngfn?xo\?vc-‘gcttontgh: ;:ngsgghlgigee?ta'glishe yort\J:eU.s.tates,
3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. status and avoid withholding on your share of partnership
axgmpt payee, If ag::llcagle, Kou arfe also certify;r;g tl;lat as af income. .
,S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from The person who gives Form W-9 to the partnership for
:3 %Ishtraaﬁ::s?::t‘reesgflsef?m ﬁs&.ltl)ject to thte :’vi_thholdlng tax on purposgs of estal:?llgh‘llng Itg l'U.S. status andp avoldlngpwghholding
gn p ectively connected income. on its allocable share of net income from the partnership
Note. If a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to conducting a trade or business in the United States Is in the
request your TIN, you must use the raquester's form if it Is following cases: i
substantlally similar to this Form W-8. o The U.S. owner of a disregarded entity and not the entity,
Cat. No. 10231X Form W<9 (Rev. 10-2007)
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Entity Overview | System for Award Management

LAV 1 VL 2

Katharine'Barry  Log Out
HOMES INC 690 NE 13TH ST STE 102
E ntin [ DUNS: 054760801 CAGE Code: 68TVl FORT LAUDERDALE, FL, 33304-1107,
Status: Active UNITED STATES
D h be_a,?/d@ﬂ Expiration Date: 04/10/2018
a s purpose of Registration: Federal Assistance Awards Only
» Entity Registration
’ Core Data Entity Overview
» Assertions
’ eps & Certs e
o POCs Entity Reglistration Summary
N Reports DUNS: 054760801
Name: HOMES INC
» Service Contract Report Business Types Business or Organization
i Last Updated By: Katharine Barry
» BioPrefe Repo Registration Status: Active
. Activation Date: 04/10/2017
» Exclusions . Expiration Date: 04/10/2018
»  Active Exclusions
» Inactive Exclusions
» Excluded Famil Exclusion Summary
Members
Active Exclusion Records? No
Search Records FAPIIS.gov
G S A\ Data Access Disclaimers GSA.gov/IAE
A About Accessibility ~ GSA.gov
Help Privacy Policy USA.gov
1BM v1.P.64.20170330-1550
wwwi
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rom 990

OMB No. 1545-0047

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 2014
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(2){1) of the Internal Revenue Code {except private (oundaﬁons) — ——
Department of tha Treasury > Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it ma be made public, | .~ OpentoPublic:
Intemal Revenus Service » Information about Form 980 and its instructions is at www. rs.gov/form990. - ;lngpaqtjqn. -

A_ For the 2014 calendar year, or tax year beginning Oct 1

,2014,and ending Sep 30 , 2015

B Checkif applicable: C Neme of organization _HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & EFFECT. NBIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. D Employer identification number
Address change Dolngbusinesses ~ H.O.M.E.S., INC. 65-0870180
Name change Number and street (or P.O. box if mall Is not delivared to stret address) Roomisuite E Telephone number
Initial retum 690 N.E. 13TH STREET, 101 (954) 563-5454
Fin relurierminated Cily or town, stale or provinca, countiry, and ZIP or foreign postal code
Amendedretm  |FORT LAUDERDALE FL 33304 G Grossreceipts $1,095,179.
Appiication pending | F Name and address of principal officer. H{a) Is this a group relum for subordinates? H", ﬁm
KATHARINE BARRY 690 L.E. 13TH STREET, FORT LAUDERDALE FL 33304 |"" pmatawadnassnduedt - LJves LN
1 Taxeempstaws  [X[5010@3) | [50169) ( )< nsentno) | J4947@(or | {527
J Website: > WWW.homesfl.orq H{c) Group exemplion numbar ™
K Fom of organization: |X Corporation l ITrusl | | Assoclation l I Other ™ ILYearoi formaton: 1998 lM State of tegal domicile:  F'L,_
Partl: [Summa
I 1 B!'ieﬂy descﬂg The organization's mission or most significant activities: TO PROVIDE QUALITY COMMUNITY AND _ _ _ _
o|  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BENEFITING AT RISK AND DISADVANTAGED RESIDENTS __._.______--
€|  AND NEIGHBORHOODS IN_BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDR: _____ o ommmmmmmmmmmo oo
El T T T T T T T T T T T e m e — e ——— e —————
% 2 Check this box > —D—if_t'h-é a'g_aﬁzzl'i-on— dﬁ&ﬁiiusﬂt;cﬁé}ﬁia\s—é t—!ié;:osed of more than 25% of its net assets.
| 3 Number of voting members of the goveming body (Part VI, ineda). « oo oo v v v v e e e Cen 3 11
‘:: 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VLiine1b) « v v v et e e e . 4 j 11
:}__ﬂ § Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2014 (Part V, line pZ) I I 5 10
=| & Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) - « « « o « o« v v oo 00 e e e e e e ceee |6 350
E 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIHi, column (C), line 12 . + .« « ¢« e v 0 v s e e e e e 7a 0.
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T,line34. . . . . - . - - -« o« = - -+ e 7b 0.
: Prior Year Current Year
ol 8 Conlributions and grants (Part VIIl, line th). . . . . . e e e et e e e e . 357,078, 469, 844.
2| 9 Program service revenue (Part VIll, NE2QG) « v o v v v v v oo st se e 606,719. 506, 959.
% 10 Investmentincome (Part VI, column (A), lines 3,4,and7d) - . » .+« o0 0o e e e e .
e | 44  Other revenue (Part VI, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢c, 10c,and 11€) . « =+ o . - . - . "59,768. 83,610.
12 Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIi, column (A), line 12) . . . . . 1,023,565. 1,060,413,
13 Grants and similar amounts palid (Part IX, column (A),lines 4-3) - « « v o v v v v v v v e
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) . . . .. ... e e e e
ol 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 510) « .00 448,128, 527,117.
§ 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11€) . . . . . . .. e e e
% b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) > 0. | e e
47 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24€). « « o« v o v 00 v e v v e 406,738. 461,119.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 28) . . . .. .. . 854,866. 988,236.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fromline 12 . . . . . . R EEREE 168,699, 72,177.
58 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
%§ 20 Total assets (PartX,lIN@16) « « « « v v v v oo v v e e e 4,630,272, 5,228,546,
32 21 Tolal liabilities (Part X, line 26) . . . . . e e e e e 3,411,238, 3,937,335,
251 22 Netassets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 fromline20 . . . ... ... ..« ... . 1,219,034. 1,291,211.

[Pattill: - || Signature Block

Under penalles of perjury, | declare that | have examined this rel accompanying schedules and stalements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, 1tis true, comect, and
complete. Declaration of pfe(pamr (oyaér than officer) is based mﬁ%f wh!:ch preparer has "ﬂ. knowledge.

_¥/ [ F [o7/18/16
Si gn Sifjnature of oficer 4 / Dalg
Here p KAT PRESIDENT/CEO

Type or print name and title.

Prnt/Type preparer's name Preparer’s signature . Date Check U i |PTIN

Paid RUDOLPH LARRIMORE RUDOLPH LARRIMORE 07/18/16 self-employed P01376163

Preparer |Fimsname ~ RLMOLINA, LLC

Use Only |rimssddess ™ 2000 HOLLYWOOD BOULEVARD SUITE 555-SQUTH

FImsEN> 27-2868892

Hollywood FL 33021 Phoneno.  (954) 843-3512
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instruclions) « « « - - - - + - - - - oo o v v v v 22 2 IX[ves [ INo
BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. TEEAO101 05728114 Form 990 (2014)
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Form 990 (2014)  HOUSING OPP., M1G. ASSIST., & BFFECT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 . Page §

PartV | Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line InthisPatV.. . . . . . . . - e e e e e e e e e I—l
: Yes | No
4 a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . . ... .. ia 0 !
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . . . . .. 1b ol

¢ Did the organization comply with backup witﬁholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . .. .. s e 0 neen .

2 a Enter the number of employees reporied on Form W-3, Transmiltal of Wage and Tax State-
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisretum ... .. 2a

o s s s s 4 0 8 s s v s o s e e . P I S A RN

b if at least one s reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . .+ . o ¢ ¢ ..
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a Is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see Instructions)
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during theyear?. . . . « .+« « - e

b If "Yes' hasit filed a Form 990-T for this year? If ‘No’ o fine 3b, provide an explanalion in SCHEQUI O « « « « v« o v e o v v v e e e e e

4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authorily over, a

financial account in a foreign couniry (such as a bank account, securilies account, or other financlal account)? . . . . . . -

b If "Yes,’ enter the name of the foreign country: >

: 2b 1

3b

See instructions for filing requirements for FInCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financlal Accounts. (FBAR)
§a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the faxyear?. . . . « . v« ¢ ¢« o oo

b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . . . . . . . . ..
¢ I "Yes,’ to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? « - . « « ¢« v v e v v v v v e ev e e e e e
8 a Does the organization have annual gross receipls that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization
soliclt any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? « + « « « ¢ o e e e e o e 6a X
b if'Yes,' did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts were
nottaxdeductible? . . .+« v o e ittt e e e e et e e e e e e e e . 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). |
a Did the organizalion receive a A)aymenl in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and KPR LI A
services provided to the payor?. . .« « . o v o v v o v e e e e s e e e e e e e e 7a X
b If "Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . .. ... e e e 7hb
¢ Did the organizalion sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to file
FOMB282? « v v v v o v v v oo v o s oo oo s s oo e e e e e e e e e e 7¢ X
d If 'Yes,’ indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed duringtheyear . . . . . .« ... .. e | 7d N R R
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?. . . . . . . .. 7¢| | X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?, . . . . . ... . 7f X
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899
asrequired? .. ..... et e e B P I T I A ) . 79
h lfthe oroganlzatlon received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
Form4098C? . . + v v v e v v v v v v o e e e e et e e e e e e e 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the sponsoring | R
organization have excess business holdings at any time during the YEAr? e « o v v v e it e e s c e s s as e 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. l
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . « . .. .. ... ... e e e
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?. + « « « « v o v v v -
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIll, line12. . . . . .« v v v v v v u s 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 980, Part Vill, line 12, for public use of club facilities . . .. . | 10b
11 Section §01(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members orshareholders. « . ¢« o ¢ v o v v v v i i e e 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
againstamounts due or received fromthem.) . « « v« v v v v et a i e 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 890 in lieu of Form 10412 . . . . . . . . .
b If 'Yes,' enter the amount of tax-exempt Interest received or accrued during the year . . . . . . I 12 b]
13 Section 501{c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance Issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one stale? « . v i e e e e e

Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the arganization is required to maintain by the states in

. .J13a EUINE: CAUS:

which the organization Is licensed to issue qualified healthplans . . .. . . v v v 00 e v vvs 13b
c Enter the amountofreservesonhand . . . . .« oo v v e v v v e e o e e 13¢ SR R AO
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year?. . . . .« oo oo v v v v v 14l | X
b If 'Yes, has it filed a Form 720 to report these paymenis? If ‘No,’ provide an explanation in Schedule O. . . . . . . . .. .. 14b
BAA TEEAD105 05/26/14 Form 990 (2014)
61

CAM # 17-0708
Exhibit 2
Page 76 of 192



Form 990 (2014) HOUSING OPP., MPG. ASSIST., & EFFRCT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 6
SFEVI 1Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes' response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for

a 'No’ response o line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in
Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains & response or note to any line in this Part V1. . . - - - R e e e Iﬂ

Section A, Governing Body and Management

1 a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at theend of the tax year. . . . . - 1a

I there are material differences in voting rights among members
of the governing bady, or if the govemin: body delegated broad
authorlty o an executive committee or similar comm ttee, explain in Schedule O.

b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent . . . .. | 1D
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e
3 Did the organizalion delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, or irustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? .« - . . . . Ce e e 3 X
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents
sincethe prior Form 990 was filed?. . + v o v o v oo v oo e B A 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? .o o0 o ‘o 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . + « « + « e e e e s e e e e e 6 X
7 a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect o appoint one or more
members of the governing body? « « « « o ¢« e v oo oo e et e e e e e e 7al X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . . - . . . o I AR e e 7hl X
8 Phld }hﬁa organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or wrilten actions underiaken during the year by e
e following: U !
aThegoverningbody? . « « « « « v v oo v v v v vt e e e e F R R e 8a] X
b Each commiltee with authority to act on behalf of the governingbody? - « « « ¢ o v o v e e v oo o e e e e c e e 8h| X
9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part ViI, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? /f 'Yes,' provide the names and addresses in Schedule O . . . . . . . e e ee e 9
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Intemal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
40a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . . .« e e et e e n e e e .... |10a X
b If Yes,’ did the organization have written poficies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affifiates, and branches to ensure their
operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes?. o - o o - v o e e e e O o0 10D
11 a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 890 to all members of its governing body before fiing theform? . . . . . . veese. |Ma
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. e
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If ‘No,’ go 0NN T13. ¢ v o v ot v o v e v oo e s e c e 12al

b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise

¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If ‘Yes,' describe in

toconflicts? . « ¢ ¢ ¢ e 0 00000 et e e s e c e e s PN veesesess |12 X

Schedule O how this was done . . . . . e r e e e e et e e N vesess [12¢] X
43 Did the organization have a written whisleblower policy? - « + « « =« + v o+« et et e e e e cee X
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? . « ¢ ¢ o ot b s e e e o0 e e e X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent i
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision? ! d =
a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official . .+« o v e e oo e v v e ae e ce.. |83 X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization. . . « « . . v e v v v 0 v v v e e e

418a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a Joint venture or similar arrangement with a

b If 'Yes,' did the organization follow a writlen policy or procedure requiring the organization fo evaluate its

- organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangemems?. W e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ae e Vee e
Section C. Disclosure

..... veeeeeo. {16D] X

If'Yes' to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).

taxableentity duringtheyear? . . . « v« v v e v v v v 0 v e it e e e e e .

pariicipation in joint veniure arrangements under app icable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the

47 Listthe states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required tobe filed >
18 Seclion 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 If applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicale how you made these available. C eck all that apply.
|___| Own website D Another's website Upon request D Other (explain in Schedule O)
19 Describein Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made fts governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial statements available to
the public during the tax year,
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records: >
KATHARINE BARRY 690 N.E. 13TH STREET, FORT LAUDERDALE FL 33304 (954) 563-5454
BAA TEEA0106 1111314 Form 990 (2014)
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Form 990 (2014)  HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & RPFECT, NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 7
iPart VIl [ Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPartVIl . . . . o v o v e v 0 v 00 v oo e e e s e e D
Section A, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.
e List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
e List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of 'key employee.’
® List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/for Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.
e List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
o List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institulional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated
employees; and former such persons.

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensalted any current officer, director, or trustee.

(c) ,
- B e orvass hareon (D) ) (F)
ge Is both an officer and a Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours director/trustes) compensation from compensation from amount of other
ST the oqganiza(lon related or%anlzauons compensation
g LI 3Vl (W-211088-MISC) (W-2/1098-MISC) from the
% 3 organization
% al® and related
g i organizations
&
0. 0. 0.
0. 0. 0.
0 0. 0
0. 0. 0
TREASURER _ X 0. 0. 0.
_(6)_CYNDI COPLEY _ __ _ _ _1.00
SECRETARY X 0. 0. 0
(7)_ANTHONY COX_ _ . e .1.00 ,
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
_(8_EMILIE TRACY _ __ _ ________. _1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
_{9)_DOROTHY JACKSON _ _ _________[ 1.00]
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(19)_MARIE McGINLEY __ _ _ _ _ ______ _1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(01)_TODD_SCHWING _ _ _ _ _ _1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(12) KATHARINE BARRY ___________ 40.00
PRESIDENT/CEO X 31,250, 0. 0.
03 ] -
B S
BAA TEEA0107 02127/14 Form 990 (2014)
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Form 990 (2014)  HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & BRFECT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 2
Part | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Partil . . . . . .- - - A R D
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the prior

FOrMO900FO90-EZP. « « v v v v v v v e mn e e e oanenn [ e [] Yes [x] No
If*Yes, describe these new services on Schedule 0.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?. « « + ¢« D Yes No

1f 'Yes!' describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organizatlon’s rogram service-accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses,
and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4 a (Code: ) (Expenses  $ 923,346 . Including grants of $ 0.)(Revenue $ 0.)

._—_—_——.———-———-——————————.—_—————_.——_—__._—_——.—————.——————— —— o -

s e . o o — s - . o= ———_———————-———_———.————-—-—-——-———————————_--
NN Y S e s e S S m e r e = e m = -
——.—.—.—_—.——————_———_—_—.——.——__...———..._......__..___._—...—————————.—.———-—_—._—._.—

——_.__-_.—_—_.———_—___.—___—._—_—_—.——.——_.————_—_—.——_————————————.———-____

4 b (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of  $ ) (Revenue $ )
4 ¢ (Code: ) (Expenses  $ including grants of  $ ) (Revenue $ )
4 d Other program services. (Describe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses  $ including grants of ~ $ )(Revenue $ )
4 e Total program service expenses  » 923,346. .
BAA TEEA0102 05/28/14 Form 990 (2014)
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Form 990 (2014)  HOUSING OPP., MIG. ASSIST., & BFFECT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 3

‘Part1V: | Checklist of Required Schedules

1 lss t’t:e on;ga;‘ﬂzatlon described In section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a privale foundation)? If 'Yes,’ complele
CHedUIBA. « « « v o v « o s o s st e s s oo s . .

2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see Instructions)? « « « v« ¢ « o v v 0 ot

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect golitical campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates

for public office? If 'Yes,  complete Schedule C, Partl. « . v v oo v e v v v o i

4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election

in effect during the tax year? if 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Partll « <+« « o e v v oo e v n e e e e e e e

5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that recelves membership dues,

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule C, Partill . . . . . .

6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any simitar funds or accounts for which‘donors have the right
to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If ‘Yes,' complete Schedule D,

Partl. « o o o v ot s v o v oo e e e R . s s 8o e e e e e e
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, the
environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Partll. « « o v o v oo 00 v e

8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If ‘Yes,’

complete Schedule D, Partlll. . « « v v v v v oot e s e e a s e s es e s e e e

9 Did the organization report an amount In Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a custodian
for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation

services? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, PartlV . . . . . o oo v v v v v oo v e s e v e e s e e e e e

10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? /f ‘Yes,’ complete ScheduleD,PartV . . . v« v e« v e e v o vt v o v

41 Ifthe organization's answer to any of the following questions is 'Yes', then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIIl, IX,
or X as applicable.

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings and equipment in Part X, line 107 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule

e e e « e e b s e

Yes | No

1 X

. 2 X
. 3 X
. 4 X
5 X
. 6 X
7 X
8 X
. 9 X

10 X

D, Part VI. e e s [ R T cevees |1al X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments — other securities In Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part Vil. . . . . . . Cr e e e e e e 11b X
¢ Did ihe organization report an amount for investments — program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its total
assels reported in Part X, line 162 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part [ P B K X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported |
In Part X; line 167 If 'Yes,’complete Schedule D, PartIX « . «-« « v v v v v v v e v ot v cn o oo et e e 11d} X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, PartX . . « . . . . 11e|] X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a foolnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If *Yes,' complete Schedule D, PartX . . . . . 11f| X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete
Schedule D, PartsXl,andXll. . . . . . . ..o oo et et e et e e e e c e s et e e e st 12a) X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? /f 'Yes,' and
if the organization answered ‘No’ to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xll isoptional . . « « « + « « o« .. 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If 'Yes,' complete ScheduleE. » « « « o v ¢ v o e v v v et 13 X
44a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?. . . . . . . e e 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from granimaking, fundraising,
business, investment, and program service aclivities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued
at $100,000 or more? If ‘Yes,’ complete Schedule F, Parts land IV . . . . . . . P e e e e 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign orgamzatiqn? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule F, Partslland IV . . « . « « e v o v o v o v e vs v s sanes |15 X
16  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregale grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? if 'Yes,’ complete Schedule F, Partsllland IV . . « ««c « e v v v v e v e cviivnn e e 16 X
417 Did the organization r%rort a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part I (seeinstructions) . . . .. v« v v v 00 v v e 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part Vi,
lines 1¢ and 8a? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule G, Partll . . . . . . . ..« ... ot et e e e e e e 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VI, line 8a? If 'Yes,"
complele Schedule G, Partlll. . « « « v v v v v v v v i oo e e e e e e e e P I L] X
20 a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule H . . . . . .. .. ... e e |20 X
b If 'Yes' to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of ils audited financial statements o this retum? . . . . .. . ... .. 20b
BAA TEEA0103 05/28/14 Form 990 (2014)
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Form 990 (2014) _ HOUSING OPP., MG. ASSIST., & BRFRCT. NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 4
~ [PartiV [Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes | No

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 17 If 'Yes,' complete Schedule I, Parts Jandll « . .« « o v v o 0o v e e 21 X

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on Part IX,
column (Ag. line 2? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule |, Parts land il « « « . - . . P e . |22 X

23 Did the organization answer 'Yes’ to Part Vi, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current
a;nc'!I f%rr}le‘r] officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If ‘Yes,' complete 23 %
chedule « « « « o o0 0 n e e s e r e e e e et e e s e e e r e s

242 Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of
the last day of the year, that was Issued after December 31, 20027 If 'Yes,’ answer lines 24b through 24d and

complete Schedule K. If'No,’gotoline25a. « - « v v v v v v e ov oo e vv e e [ 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? .« . . . . . . eo e | 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease

any fax-exemptbonds?. . . . . . ..o oo R e e e e ... | 24c
d Did the organization act as an 'on behalf of issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during theyear? . . .. .. ... eo . | 24d

25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part]. . « « « v c o v v oo v o v v v 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
tga’t' uc)le llra’_ns;cgc}n has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 980-E2? If 'Yes,’ complete 256 X
chedule L, Part! . .. ... Chesa e FR [ .

26 Did the oéganlzalion report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or
former officers, directors, trusfees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons?
If 'Yes', complete Schedule L, Partll « . . « .« « v Vv oo v v v oot Ceeees e e e e ee v 126 X

27 Did the crganization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key emplolyee. substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, orto a 35% controlled entity or family member
of any of these persons? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part /R et et e e e e 27 X

28 Was the organization a FaﬂY to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV - : -'; B
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): R BN

a A curent or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If ‘Yes,’ complete Schedule L, PartlV . . . . . . e |28l T X

b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If 'Yes,’ complete
Schedule L, PartiV. . . . . .. [ C e e s e e e e [ e e e e e e e e 28b X

¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an

officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Partlv .. veer e e |28 X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f 'Yes,' complete ScheduleM . . . . . .. .o |29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation

contributions? If 'Yes,' complete ScheduleM « . « « « + ¢« o o v v e e e e e ch e e 130 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operalions? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule N, Part!. . . . . . . 31 X

32 Didthe or%’anizauon sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If ‘Yes,’ complete
Schedule N, Partll . o v« « v v v o oo i n ettt et e e e, e et e e e 32 X

33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations seclions

301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part! . . . . . e e e et e e . |33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part Ii, Hil, or IV,
andPatV,line 1. . . .. .cv v e e e s e s e a s e s e s e e e s e R .. | 34 X
352 Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? . « . . « . « v v ¢ vt veeeeees |35 X
b If "Yes' to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a conltrolled
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If ‘Yes,' complete Schedule R, PartV,line2 . ... ¢ eveeeeeuaon 35b

36 Section 501 (c)'ga) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related
organization? If 'Yes, complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 . . . . . . e e e e e e e 36 X

37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a relaled organization and that is
trealed as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Patt VI « .+ « « « . « .+« &

v e |37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part Vi, lines 11b and 19?
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete ScheduleO . . . . .. ... I co. . | 38 X
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Form 990 (2014) HOUSING OPP., TG. ASSIST., & RRFECT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 _Page8

. [Part Vi [Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (ontinued)
(8) ©)
@ oo | orasisane | O ® o
Name and title per officer and g directorirustee) wm'}?:ﬁfé‘l?:}l“«om com?::%ggggnsfmm amoan?‘:f :ther
week =TS T 18 I37| iheorganization related organizalions compensation
ustany R 31 21213 S 2| waritesMisc) (W-2/1089-MISC) rom the
hours = g 3 organization
for &Sla |8 12ia and related
related K2 § B I8 a organizations
D-f jons pand ‘2
g | B8P
line) Ag %
08 e S ————
8 ] ————m
N ] _————
M8 e ] ———
0 ————
20 ] ————
2 ] ————
22 ] ————
2 e ] ———
24 ] ———
28 ] ———
1bSubtotal. . . ....... e e e v e ees e > 31, 250. 0. 0.
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VI, SectionA . . . . . A
d Total (add lines1band1c) . . . . . ... .. e e e e cel ™ 31, 250. 0. 0.

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who recelved more than $100,000 of reporiable compensation
from the organization ™

Yes | No

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employe
on line 1a? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule J for such individual « « . « « v v o o e v o v o0t e e e a e

4 Foranyindividual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reporiable compensation and other compensation from
the gr_g?}x\l’iz;ﬁo,n and related organizations greater than $150,000? If 'Yes' complete Schedule J fo
suchindividual . - « « « v v o v 0o oo eee e .

................ s e 4 e s e e 8 s e s v e e e e

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If ‘Yes,’ complete Schedule J for such person . . . . . e e e e e ..

Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete 1his table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A) (8) (C)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization >

BAA TEEA0108 03/09/15 . .Form 996 (201:1)
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Form 990 (2014)  HOUSING OPP., MTG, ASSIST., & EFFRCT. NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 9
Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any fine inthisPartvill . . . . . .. .. - e e .
— —— — @ ) © o
U Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
' exempt business excluded from tax
i function revenue under sections
N R STt S T S revenue 512-514
‘é’:’-’é 1a Federated campaigns . . ... | 1a TR
& 3 b Membershipdues . . . . . . . 1b
3.5 ¢ Fundraisingevents. . . . ... | 1¢
g; d Related organizations . . ... | 1d -
G.E| e Govemment grans (contibutions) . . | 1e 223.223.]
-g(g f Al other contributions, ?iﬂs. grants, and "
3L similar amounts not includedabove. . | 1f 246,621.
E©Q| g Noncash contiburions included in fines 12-1% o 5
SEl hTotalAddlnestatf . . . ... ... ...l > L ‘
] BusinessCode | ° . e e e LR
g 2a ,OAN_FORGIVENESS _ _._ 532310 109,537, 109,537. 0. 0.
< b TRIFT_STORE _ _ _ ___._. 532310 22,718. 22,718, 0. 0.
% ¢ DEVELOPMENT FEES_ _ _ __ 532310 91,262. 91.262. 0. 0.
&S| 9 RENTAL INCOME_ __ ___._ 532310 283,442, 283,442, 0. 0.
E| e
&| f Aroherprogram service revenue . .
o, | gTotal. Addlines2a-2f . ........... [ 506,959. il
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest and
othersimilaramounts) . « « « - ¢« o v o v e e .-
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds . . *
5 Royalties. « <« ¢ v v v v o v v vt et R
(i) Reat (if) Personal

6aGrossrents .. ...
b Less: rental expenses
¢ Rentalincome or {loss) .

d Netrental income or (foss) . . . . . Ch e e e e e e e. >
() Securities {ii) Other

7 a Gross amount from sales of
assels other than inventory

b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses .

c Gainor(loss) . ...
d Netgalnor(loss). « « « « « + o v e e e >

% 8a Gross income from fundraising events
{(notincluding. . $
% of contributions reported on line 1c). i . .
E SeePartiV,line18. . . . . ... .. a|l 110,518.0
8| bless:directexpenses .. .. .... b 34,766, 0. . .
8 | ¢ Netincome or (loss) from fundraisingevents . . . . . . . - 75,752, |

9a Gross income from gaming activities.
SeePart IV, line19. . . . . .. ...

b Less: directexpenses . . « . . ... b g
¢ Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities. . . . . . . . >

10a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances . .. . . e e e a

b Less: costofgoodssold . . . . ... b S
¢ Netincome or (loss) from sales of inventory . . . . . .
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code R

112 QTHER 532310 7.858.1

e e = o= - o> e o=

———— " o - —————— —— oo -

e Total. Add lines 11a-11d. . . . . . e > 7.858. 0. o ook T
12 Total revenue. See instructions . . . . . . C e *| 1.060,413. 514,817. 0. 75,752
BAA TEEA0109 11/13/14 Form 990 (2014)
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Form 990 (2014)

HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & BRFECT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.

65-0870180 Page 10

[PartiX ] Statement of Functional Expe

nses

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note fo any line in this Part X

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complele column (A).

.....

...............

Do not include amounts reported on lines
6b, 7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIl

(A)
Total expenses

(B)
Program service
expenses

()

dra
Management and Fundraising

1 Granls and other assistance to domestic
organizations and domestic governments.
SeePartiV,fine21. . . - v . o -0

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22. . . . . . .«

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and for-

eign Individuals. See Part IV, lines 15and 16 . .

4 Benefils paid to or for members. . . . . . . .

§ Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees . . .« + . . - ¢

¢ Compensation not included above, to
disqualiﬁed ersons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1 ;) and persons described

in seclion 4958(C)(3)(B): « + « « v ¢ o oot

Other salaries and wages. « « « « « « - e

g Pensionplan accruals and contributions
(include section 401(k) and 403(b)
employer contributions). « « « « . o . . .. .

9 Otheremployee benefits . . .
10 Payrolitaxes . . « .+« . N
14 Fees for services (non-employees).

.......

dlobbying. . .« v v e v v i v v e
© Professional fundralsing services, See Part v, fine 17 .
f Investment management fees

g Other. (If ine 11g amt exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, fist line 11g expenses on Schedule 0). . .

12 Advertising and promotion . .
13 Office expenses
14 Informationtechnology . . . . . e
15 Royalties. . . . . . PR
16 Occupancy .
17 Travel

18 Payments of trave| or entertainment
exgenses for any federal, state, or local
public officials

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings . . .
20 Interest.

21 Paymentsto affiliates. . . .. ... ... ..
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. . .

23 Insurance
24

................

...................

..................

Other expenses. ltemize expenses not
covered above (List miscellaneous expenses
in line 24e. If line 24e amount exceeds 10%
of line 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e
expenses on ScheduleO.) . . . . ... .. .

@ANONErexpenses « « « « « ¢« v v o0 0o
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e. .

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if
the organization reported in column (B)

joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here > if following

SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

general expenses expenses

31,250,

31,250,

393,890.

337,253,

56,637, 0.

71,199.

56,138,

15,061.

(=]

30.778.

23,627,

7,152, 0.

7.647.

3,218,

4,429, 0.

46,078.

35,532,

10,546.

9,697.

9,697,

88,749.

88,749,

95,874.

93,889.

1,985, 0.

48,5551

48,555.]

59,973

59,973

15,883

15,883

51,132

49,540

35,131

35,131

2.,400.

2,400,

988,236,

890,835,

0
0
0
Q 0
0
0.

BAA
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Form 990 (2014 & BPFECT. NBIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC 65-0870180 Page 11
Part.X .|| Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPatX . . . . . . . - . e e e e e D
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—nondnterest-bearing. . « « « v e ¢ v o v v v v v v v et e e e . 124,884.| 1 28,990.
2 Savings and temporary cashinvestments . . . . . .o oo e e e e . 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable,net. . . .. . ... .o i e . 3 25, 889.
4 Accountsrecelvable,net. . . . . v oo oo et e e e 3,362. 4 3 ,”7’95._.
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, N ‘
trustees, key em logees. and highest compensated employees. Complele
Part il of Schedule - .'. « - v o o o« » NN
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c) 3)SB). and contributing )
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) volunta employees’ - e
beneficiary organizations (see instructions). Complete Part I of Sche! ulel ..... 6
@1 7 Notesand loans receivable, net . . . .. et e s 7
ﬁ_ 8 Inventoriesforsaleoruse . . « + « v o v v oot oo . e 8
< | ¢ Prepaidexpensesanddeferredcharges - . « o+« « v o oo oo e e oo 9
10a Land, bulldings, and equipment: cost or other basis. s
Complete Part VI of ScheduleD . . . . .. .. ... .| 10a 5,561,862, e e
b Less: accumulated depreciation . . .+ . ¢ v 000 0. 10b 462,987. 4,445,706.110¢c 5,098,875.
14 Investments — publicly traded securitles . . . . .. . o o o000l e e
412 Investments — other securities. See Part IV, line11 . . . . .« v o v v v v v v el
43 Investments — program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . .« v v v o v e v oo
414 Intangibleassets . . . . . .. ... e e e 36,400, 46,971.
45 Otherassets. SeePartIV,line11 . . . .. v v o v i c v v vt v v v e 19,920, 24,026.
16 _Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line34) v v oo o v e v o v oo . 4,630,272. 5,228,546,
47 Accounls payable and accrued €Xpenses. « . « o - s e o0 e e s s e .o 12,282, 50,287.
18 Granls payable. . . . . B . e : 22,294,
19 Deferredrevenue . ... ..... B I e 56,728,
20 Tax-exemptbondliabllities . . - -+« « o o v vttt i e e .
g. 24 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of ScheduleD . . . . .. ..
£ 22 Loans and other paxables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, . S
a key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons. : SN S BRI
3 Complete Partil of ScheduleL.. . . .« c v v v v v v v v v v R 25,000. 10, 000.
‘| 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . .. ... .
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . . . .« .« ...t 3,291,694.| 24 3,796,324,
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third parties,
and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of Schedule D . . . 25,534.| 25 58,450.
26 _Total liabilities. Add lines 17through26. . . . .. .. .. .. ..« o+« .+ . 3,411,238.]26 37,335,
° Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here > Eand complete T o S
3 lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34, T Rt LR i
E 27 Unrestricted netassets. « « « ¢ ¢ ¢ o ¢ o o v s v o 0 000 e e et e e e 1,219,034. 1,291,211.
& 28 Temporarilyrestricted netassels . « v o v v v o o vt v v e
| 29 Permanently restricted netassets ... ...... A )
u§_ Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here > D
5 and complete lines 30 through 34,
al30 Capital stock or trust principal, or currentfunds. . . . . . . e e
§ 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipmentfund . . . . .. ‘e
<. | 32 Retained eamings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds. . . . . . . ..
3| 33 Total net assets o fund balances. . .« . ..o v oot et e 1,219,034, 33 1 291,211,
34 Total liabilities and net assetsfiundbalances . . . . . . .. ... .0 ... ... . 4.630,272.] 34 5,228,546,
BAA Form 990 (2014)
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Form 990 (2014)  HOUSING OPP., MG, ASSIST., & BFFRCT. NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 12
Tt XI' |Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O conlains a response ornote toany line inthisPart Xl. « . « ¢ o« o v 00 o0 o v om0 oo s o v o p 0 2 ” ﬂ
1 Total revenue (must equal Part Vill, column (A), line12) . . .« o v v v vt J T A A AT AR R 1 1,060,413,
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), 1IN 25) « « + v o v o v v o v e e e e 2 988,236,
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtractline2fromline 4. . « « o v v oo v e e e oo e e A 72.177.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, COUMN (A))e o o v o0 0w v a v v 4 1,219,034,
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments. . . . . . .. O 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities. . . . . . . . A A BN 6
7 INVeSIMENtEXPENSES .« « « + + o s o s o o s o s o oo oo e e e e s e e e e 7
g Priorperiod adjustments . . . ¢ ..o i i e e e e e e e e e 8
9 Otherchanges in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) . e e e e e e oo 9
10 Net assets or fund balances al end of year. Combine Iinesalhroughg(must equal Part X, line 33,
column(B))e « ¢ o v ot oo oo i e e PP e e e s e e e s e e e e e s e e e . 110 1,291,211.
Part:XIl:: Fmanc:al Statements and Reportlng

Check if Schedule O conlains a response ornote to any linginthisPad Xll . . - » « o+ ¢ o o 0 v o v o -+

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 890: DCash @Accrual DOlher

Ifthe organizalton changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked 'Other,’ explain
in Schedule O.

2a Were the organization’s financial statements compxled or reviewed by an independent accountant?. « « « . oo o b b e . 2al | x°

1f"Yes,’ check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were complled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis DConsohdated basis DBoth consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . F T

1f"Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audlted on a separate
basis, consolidated bass, or both:

Separate basis DConsolidated basis DBoth consolidated and separate basis
¢ If 'Yes' to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,

review, or compilation of its financlal statements and selection of an independentaccountant? . . .« . v v 00 v e e 2¢ X
:f lge #rga{ﬂzatlon changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain oAl
n Schedule - 2| I
3 a As aresult of a federal award, was lhe organizalion required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single
Audit Actand OMB Clrcular A-1332. « ¢« o o o oo e v v v oo s e e et e e e e 3a X
b If 'Yes,” did the organization underga the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audll

or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . . . . . . W e s e e s e n e e 3b

BAA Form 990 (2014)
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Public Charity Status and Public Support OMB No. 1545-0047
SCHEDULE A

Complete If the organization s a section §01(c)(3) organization or a section
(Form 990 or 890-E2) 4947(2)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 2014

» Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

onto Publlc.

.‘:Op
» Information about Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions Is R
P Ravemie Semes at wwwfirs.gov/form990. .~ /nspection”- -
Name of the organization Employer Tdentification number
HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & EFFECT. NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180

Partl | Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.)
1 A church, convention of churches, or assoclation of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)X(1).
A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(H). (Attach Schedule E.)
Ahospiltal or a cooperalive hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ili).
A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b){1)(A)(ili). Enter the hospital's
name, city, and state:

DAn organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in section
170(b)(1)(A)iv). (Complete Partil.)

Afederal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(V).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a govemnmental unit or from the general public described
in section 170{b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part IL.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v1). (Complete Part Il.)

E An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33-1/3% ofits supPort from contributions, membershi/) fees, and gross receipts
from activities related to its exempt functions — subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33-1/3% of its support from gross
investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 {ax) from businesses acquired by the organization after
June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part lll.)

10 An organization organized and operated exclusively 1o test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one
or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box In
lines 11a through 11d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e, 11§, and 11g.

a Type 1. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controfled by its supporied organization(s), typically by giving the supported
D organization(s) the gower 1o regularly appoint or elect a majority of the glreclors or trustees of the suppgrling grggr?lzallgn. Youptgmst
complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b DType 11. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having control or
management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supporte organization(s). You
must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c DType 11 functionally Integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, its supported
organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d D Type Il non-functlonallﬁ integrated. A supporting organization o erated in connection with its supported organization(s) that is not
functionally integrated. The organization generally must saisfy a d stribution requirement and an attentiveness requirement (see
instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V. :

e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that is a Type I, Type It, Type Ili functionally
integrated, or Type !l non-functionally integrated supporiing organization.

£ Enter the number of supported organizations . . . - . .« ¢ 0o v o v s e e e e s e s e e e e e e :]

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

o~ ON

o o ~N o n

(i) Name of supported 1) EIN i) T nizal A t of i 1) Am of othe!
organizafon ¢ '(aﬁsé?feg':}: l?)es 1t3gn orgagi?alusog‘ﬁsled ggpp:r‘&z:eolngm::\ys) su(pvpzm (s::?rlulr:cﬁo:\s)

above or IRC section in your goveming

(see instructions)) document? '
Yes No

(A)
(B)
(©)
(D)
(E)
Total S (AT TR S
BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 890 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014
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Schedule A (Fbrm 990 or 990-EZ) 2014 HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & BFFECT. NBIGHBORNOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 2

Partll |Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A){(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part lll, If the
organization fails Yo qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1l.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year b) 2011 c) 2012 d) 2013 o) 2014 f) Total
beginning in) > (a) 2010 {b) 20 (c) {d) (e) (
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. SDo ot
include any ‘unusual grants.) .

2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended
onitsbehalf . .+« « « v o

3 The value of services or
facilities furnished by a
govemnmental unit to the
organization without charge. . .

4 Total Add lines 1 through3 . .

5 The portion of total
contributions by each person
(other than a govemnmental
unit or publicly supported
organization) included on line 1
that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f) . .

6 Public support. Subtractlines | .. i
fromlined . .. .. oo oo R N

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year
beginnin gyin) 1 y (a) 2010 (b) 2011 {c) 2012 (d) 2013 (e) 2014 (f) Total

7 Amounts from line4 .. ..

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received
on securities loans, renls,
royallies and income from
similarsources . . . .+ . ..

9 Netincome from unrelated
business activities, whether or
not the business is regularly
carried ON .« . o o o 4 e e e

10 Other income. Do not include
galn or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explainin

PatVl) « . oo v i v oo ns
11 Total surport. Add lines 7
through10 ... . v« v o v o v L IR .| SR E R R
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc (see instructions) . . . . . e .
13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for he organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here. - . . . . . . . e s USRS e > []
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2014 (line 6, column (f) divided by linetl,column(f) « « - -« « v e vt e v .| 14 %
15 Public support percentage from 2013 Schedule A, Part Il, line 14 . . . . . . e e et ceeees |18 %

16a 33-1/13% support test — 2014. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and the line 14 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... « « =« oo v v v e et ee v e e v P D

b 33-1/3% support test ~ 2013, If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. « « ¢ v v v e e e e » D

47a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2014, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10%
or more, and If the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances’ test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how
{he organization meels the facls-and-circumstances’ test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . ... ..... > EI

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2013, if the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15is 10%
or more, and if the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances’ tes, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the

organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances’ test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . « « o v v v v .o o>
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see Instructions . . . . . »
BAA ’ Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 890-EZ) 2014 HOUSING OPP,, MTG. ASSIST., & EFFECT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 3

--|Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2) )
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 9 of Part 1 or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails
to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.) :

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year {or fiscal yr beginning in) > (a) 2010 (b) 2011 (c) 2012 (d) 2013 (e) 2014 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions
A s mat include
recejved.
any ‘'unusualgrants.). . . . . - 868,387. 287,549, 389,863, 357,078, 469,844.| 2,372,721,
2 Gross recelpts from admis-
sions, merchandise sold or
services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is
related to the organization's )
tax-exempt purpose . . . . . - 333,899, 389,151. 392,174, 606,719. 506,959.| 2,228,902,
3 Gross receipts from activities
that are not an unrelated trade
or business under section 513 <
4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and
either pald to or expended on
fisbehalf. « « ¢« « « « v o0 v
5§ The value of services or
facilities furnished by a
govemmental unit to the
organization without charge. . .

6 Total Add lines 1 through$ . . |1,202,286. 676,700. 782,037. 963, 797. 976,803.] 4,601,623.
7 a Amounts included on lines 1,
2, and 3 received from
disqualified persons . . . . . .

b Amounts included on lines 2
and 3 received from other than
disqualified persons that
exceed ihe greater of $5,000 or
1% of the amount on line 13
fortheyear. . . .+ « ¢« « o oo

cAddlnes7aand7b .. ... .

8 Public support (Subtractline , d — . B
7cfromiine6) . « . . o . .. . ) : L R AR -] 4,601,623.
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal yr beginning in) > {a) 2010 (b) 2011 (c) 2012 (d) 2013 {e) 2014 ! {f) Total
9 Amountsfromline6 .. ... .11,202,286. 676,700. 782,037. 963,797. 976,803.] 4,601,623.
10a Gross income from Interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royallies and income from
SIMIArsOUrCes « « « o « o o v v o
b Unrelated business taxable
income (less section 511
taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 . .
¢ Addlines 10aand10b . . . . .
11  Netincome from unrelated business
activilles not included in fine 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly camriedon . . . . . . . . 415,467, 5,968. 51,497. 58,768. 75,752, 607,452,
12 Otherincome. Do notinclude

gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explainin

PartVL) = « v v v v v v v oo
13 Total support. (Add lines 9,
10c,1tand12) . . . . . ... 1,617,753, 682,668. 833,534.]11,022,565.11,052,555.1 5,208,075.
14 First five years. if the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifih tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box andstop here. « . . « . . . . . . . . e e et e e e e e, » [
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2014 (line 8, column () divided by line 13, column () - - . .. .. . e e 15 88.34 %
16 Publlggpporl percentage from 2013 Schedule A, Part lil, line 16. . . . . . . e e e e e e 16 88.01 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2014 (line 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column e oo cee e | 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2013 Schedule A, Partlfl, line 17 . . . . . . s et e te s s e ey .. | 18 %
19a 33-1/3% support tests — 2014, If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33-1/3%, and line 17
is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . .. ... » Izl
b 33-1/3% support tests — 2013, If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 192, and line 16 is more than 33-1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . ... .»
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions. . . . . . .. ... »
BAA TEEAQ403 07/17/14 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2014 HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & EFFRCT. NBIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 4

'PartilV. |Supporting Organizations

(Complete only if you checked a box on line 11 of Part I. If you checked 11a of Part |, complete Sections
A and B. If you checked 11b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 11¢ of Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 11d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s goveming documents? .
If 'No,’ describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by class or purpose, describe

the designation. If historic and conlinuing relationship, explain . . . . . . T T T AT ..

2 Did the organization have an)' supported organizaliori that does not have an IRS determination of status under section
500(a)(1) or (2)7 If ‘Yes,’ explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported organization was

described in section 509(a)(1)or(2) « . . . - - -« e e e I I A “ee

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If 'Yes,' answer (b)
and(Q below. « o o v v v i e s e e e e v e e e e e e

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), ;75). or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If 'Yes,’ describe in Part VI when and how the organization

made the determination . . . . . . e et e e e e e e e e e

¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? /f 'Yes,’ explain in Part VI what controls the organizatlon put in place to ensure SUChUSe « « « « v v« v o v o e

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (‘foreign supported organization’)? /f 'Yes' and

if you checked 11a or 11b In Part |, answer (b) and (c) below. . ..... e e et e e e e e e

b Did the organization have ullimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign supported
organizalion? If 'Yes,’ describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion despite being controlled
or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations . . .« -« oo o e e e e e

¢ Did the organizalibn support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination under
sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1¥ or (2)? If 'Yes,’ explain in Part VI what controls the organization used to ensure that

all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) puposes . . . . . et v

§a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If 'Yes,’ answer (b)
and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, Including () the names and EIN numbers of the supported
organizations added, substituted, or removed, (ii) the reasons for each such action, (lij) the authority under the
organization's organizing document authorizing such action, and (iv) how the action was accomplished (such as by
amendment to the organizingdocument) « « « « « v « v o o o oo st et e e e e e e e e .

b Type|l or Type It only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already designated in the
organizalion's organiZing document? « + v v . . oo v e e e e e e e e

¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s controi? . . . . . . . . e e

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facllities) to
anyone other than (a) its supported organizations; (b) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited by one
or more of its supported organizations; or (c) other supporting organizations that also support or benefit one or more of
the fiing organization's supported organizations? If 'Yes,' provide detail inPartVl . . ...... e e e

.....

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(defined in IRC 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35-percent controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? If ‘Yes,’ complete Part | of Schedule L (Form990) . . « v v v ¢« v v o v o v s

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 77 If 'Yes,’
complete Part |of Schedule L{FOMM990). « « + v v e« e v e v oo v vt vaenn e

¢ ¢ 8 s s s s s s e s w

9a Was the organization controlled directl¥ or indirectly at any time during the tax year b;éone or more disqualified persons
as defined In section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))?
If 'Yes,'provide detaflin PartVl . . . .« v o e v i v v e .

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9(a)) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which the
supporting organization had an interest? /f 'Yes,’ provide dei

¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9(a)) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit from,
assets In which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes,’ provide detail In Part VI

40a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of IRC 4943 because of IRC 4943(f) (regarding

certain Tx e Il supporting organizations, and all Type 1Il non-functionally integrated supporting organizations)? /f ‘Yes,’
answer (. fbelow ..... e et e e e e e s e e e e e . .

b Did the organization, have any excess business holdings In the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to determine
whether the organization had excess business holdings.,) . « « « « « « « « .+ - cees s e

........ . e e s 4 ® s s s s 8 s e e e b e

gilinPartVl. . « o« v v v i o

Yes | No

R

BAA TEEA0404 07/17/14 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014

75

CAM # 17-0708
Exhibit 2
Page 90 of 192



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2014 _ HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & BRFECT. NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page §
orting Organizations (continued)

Yes | No
11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons? F PR LR
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, elther alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c) below, the e
goveming body of a supported organization? - . « « o . oo b ol e e J P Ik k]
b A family member of a person described in (a) above?. . . . . oo .o e v e et e s e e e . 111b
¢ A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If'Yes'to a, b, or ¢, provide detail in Part VI . . .. . ... |11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

_ Yes No»

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supporied organizations have the power to regularly appoint
or elect at least a majority of the organizalion’s directors or trustees at all times during the tax year? If ‘No,’ describe in
Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities.
Ifthe organization had more than one supported organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove
directors or trustees were allocated among the supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, If any,
applied to such powers duringthe tax year « « « « « o v« v« oo v v ¢ e e e e e e e e e

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supg/orted organizalion(s
that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If 'Yes,’ explain in Part Vi how providing suci
benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the
supporting organization. . . . . W e e s e s s e e et e e s e e e e e e e v o o e e e s o w e e e e v e

Section C. Type |l Supporting Organizations

' Yes' No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors or trustees
of each of the organization's supporied organization(s)? /f ‘No,” describe in Part VI how control or management of the :
supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed the supported organization(s) . . . . . . 1

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (1) a writien notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior lax
year, (2) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recenlly filed as of the date of notification, and (3) copies of the e
organization's goveming documents in effect on the dale of notification, to the extent not previously provided? . . . .. ... 1

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees elther (i) appointed or elected by the supported R ¥ :
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the govemln? body of a supporied organization? If ‘No,’ explain in Part VI how IR I R
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). . . . . . . . .. 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization’s supported organizations have a significant
volce in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organizalion’s income or assets at
all times during the tax year? If *Yes,’ describe in Part VI the role the organization's supported organizalions played
in this regard « « . . . o o v e e s e e e s P I e o s s e s s s v s e e 0t v s e

Section E. Type lll Functionally-Integrated Supporting Organizations

4 Check the box next to the methad that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions):
a D The organizalion satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b D The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c D The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).

2 Aclivities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes | No

a Did substantially all of the organization's aclivilies during the tax Year directly further the exempt purposes of the
supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? /f 'Yes," then in Part VI identify those supported
organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, how the organization was
responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined that these activities constituted
substantially all ofits activities . « « « « « v v o i o0 et et e e ot e e e e e

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activilies that, but for the organization’s involvement, one or more of
the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If ‘Yes,’ explain In Part VI the reasons for
the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged In these activilles but for the
organization’s involvement . . . . . . . . ... T I e

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or trustees of

each of the supported organizations? Provide defailsinPart V. . . . « « « « e v o v v v v v eien v e e
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each of its oAl
supporied organizations? If 'Yes,’ describe in Part VI the role played by the organizationinthisregard . . . . . .« ... .. 3b
BAA TEEA0405 07/18/14 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014 HOUSING 0PP., MIG. ASSIST., & BFFECT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 6
PartV_ | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 Check here If the organization salisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on November 20, 1970. See instructions. All
other Type il non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A — Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year ©) Cronay
4 Netshortdermcapitalgaln . .« v o o v o v v o oot e e e e 1
2 Recoveries of prior-yeardistributions « « ¢« « o« o oo oo e e e 0 2
3 Othergross income (see Instructions). + - -« « « o+ - - - - e e ceo |3
4 Addlinesithrough3. « ¢ o ¢« ¢ o0 oo oo e e e e e e s e e s e e e e 4
§ Deprecialionanddepletion.. . . . .« 0 oo ¢ 00 v e r e . e e ae e e 5
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection of gross
income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of property held for
production of income (see instructions) . . . . o - - - - -+ . - e e e e 6
7 Otherexpenses (seeinstructions) . . « « « e v @ 0 o o o0 - - v . e e 7
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5,6and 7fromlined) « . .« .o ... .. |8
Section B — Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ®) g‘;,',{g;,‘;g ear
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see instructions for short A TR
tax year or assels held for part of year): . T
a Average monthly value of securities . . . . . . e e e e e s e e e e 1a
b Average monthly cashbalances . . . . . . .. ... . R R 1b
¢ Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets . « ¢« « « « « o o e o v v 0o oo« o ic
d Total (add lines 1a,1b,and 1¢). . . . . . . . . e 1d

e Discount claimad for blockage or other
factors (explain in detall in Part VI):

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets « « .+ . oo o s oo .. |2

3 Subtractline2fromiine1d . . « v ¢ v o o v v s o000 P i
4 Cashdeemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
seeinstructions) . .« . . . . . et s e e e e e e e R 4
5 Netvalue of non-exempt-use assels (subtract line 4 fromline3) ......... ceo | B
6 Mulliplyline5by.035. « «c v o v oot e et s e e ve. |6
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions . . . . .. .. 0.0 .. T 7
8 Minimum Asset Amount(addline7toline6) . . . . . <« .« o oo o0 e s .. ses |8
Section C — Distributable Amount Current Year
1 Adjusted net income for prior year {from Section A, line 8, Column Aeeveeenea. |1
2 Enter85%oflinet. . ....... R e o v s e e s e s 2
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Seclion B, line 8, ColumnA) . . . . . . . . |3
4 Enlergreateroffine2orlined . . . . o oo oo oo oo ooy ... |4
5 Incomelaximposed inprioryear. . « « ¢« o « o ¢ ¢ o o 4o oo T . |5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to emergency
temporary reduction (seeinstructions) . . . . . . . .00 o0 e b vees | B e e
7 gl;eec;'(1 gﬁr& 1‘2 (rlgsicurrent year is the organization’s first as a non-funcl@nally-integraled Type Il supporting organization
BAA

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014

Page 7

[Part'V..| Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (confinued)

Section D — Distributions Current Year
1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes « « « « « « v o o v e v v 0o e e e
2 Amounts paid to perform aclivity that directly furlhers exempt purposes of supported organizations,
In excess of income fromactivity . . . . ... R Y R
3 __Adminisirative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supporied organizations . . < . . . .o 00044 .
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assels « « « ¢« ¢ o o000 e e e e e e e e
5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approvalrequired). . . . . .. ... . .. . e ..
6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). Seeinstructions « « « « . .. . . . . . et e e e
7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1through 6 « « « « v o v v v 0 v v 0 v v v o v oo o s 0t a0t v 000 0 00 o
8 Dislributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization Is responsive (pruvlde delails
in Part VI). See instructions. . . . . . e et e e e e et e et e
9 Distributable amount for 2014 from SectionC,line6 . . . . . . . . . o o e e i e .
40 LineB8 amountdividedbylineQamount . . . . .. ... . ot e i et e e s e e
L » . ) 0 (i) (i)
Section E — Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Underdistributions Distributable
Amount for 2014

1 Distributable amount for 2014 from Section C, line 6

.....

Distributions Pre-2014

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2014 (reasonable
cause required — see instructions)

--------------

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2014:

e From 2013

f Total oflines 3athroughe . . . . .. ... ... ..........

g Applied to underdistributions of prioryears . . . . ... ...

h Applied to 2014 distributableamount . . . . .. ... ... ...

i_Canyover from 2009 not applied (see instructions) . . . . . . .

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h,and 3ifrom3f . ..........
4 Distributions for 2014 from Section D,

line 7:

a Applied to underdistributions of prioryears . . . . . . . .

b Applied to 2014 distributableamount . + . « « v . .o v e,

¢ Remainder. Sublract lines4aand4bfrom4 . ............

§ Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2014, Iif any.
Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2 (if amount greater than
zero, see instructions)

----- o 4 4 0 6 3 & a s s e s s s s 4 s s e

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2014. Subtract lines 3h and 4b
fromline 1 (if amount greater than zero, see instructions) . . . . . . .

7 __Excess distributions carryover to 2015. Add lines 3j and 4c .

8 Breakdown of line 7:

d Excess from 2013 e

@ Excess from 2014

BAA

TEEA0407
. E
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Sch_edule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2014 HOUSING OPP., MIG. ASSIST., & BRFRCT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 8

‘| Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part i, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b;
and Part 1l line 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions).

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014
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Schedule B ) OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990, 980-E2 H

Or990.PF) d Schedule of Contributors 2014
Depariment of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF

Intemal Revenua Servica » Information about Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, 950-PF) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990.

Name of the organization . Employer Identification number
HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & EFFECT. NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180

Organization type (check one):

Filers of: Section:’

Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c){ 3 ) (enter number) organization

D 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
[[] 527 potiticat organization

Form 990-PF . D 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation
' 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation
D 501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule

Note. Only a section 501(c)(7). (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

For an org}amzation filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or
property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and Il. See instructions for determining a contributor’s total contributions.

Special Rules

EFor an organization described in seclion 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that mel the 33-1/3% support test of the regulations
under sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)?:I). that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 890-E2), Part 11, fine 13, 16a, or 16b, and that
received from a%one contributor, during the E?”’ total contributions of the ‘?{Faler of (1) $5,000 or (2) 2% of the amount on (i)

Form 990, Part Vi1, line 1h, or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | an

DFor an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor,
during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational
purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Paris 1, I, and lll.

DFor an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor,
during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than
$1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were recelved during the year for an exclusively religlous,
charitable, etc., purpose. Do not complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies fo this organization because
It recelved nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more duringtheyear . . .. .. >

Caution: An organization that is not covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules does not file Schedule B (Form 880, 890-EZ, or
990-PI?. but it must answer 'No' on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF,
n

Part |, line 2, to cerlify that it does not meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).
BA;\9 OFS;. Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 890, 990EZ, Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2014)
or 990-PF,

TEEAO701 11/13/14
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Schedule B (Form 990, 980-EZ, or 890-PF) (2014)

Page 1 of 1 of Part1

Namie of organization

Employer identification number

HOUSING OPP., MTG, ASSIST., & EFFECT. NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180
Partil Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.
(a) {b) (c) (d)
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution
’ contributions
1__ |7IM MORAN_ FOUNDATION _ _ _ _ ____ __ person  [X]
"""""""""""" Payroll I:]
200 JIM MORAN BOULEVARD _ __ __ _____ e I 89,579, Noncash [ ]
Complete Part Il for
DEERFIELD BEACH ______________FL_33442 ____ o noseh contnbutions.)
(a) : (b) {c {d)
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution
: contributions
2__ |UNITED WAY OF BROWARD COUNTY _______________. person
Payroll D
1300 S ANDREWS AVE_ _ _ _ _ _ ____ e $_____50.000.| Noncash [ ]
Complete Part Il for
FORT LAUDERDALE ______________FL_33316_ ____ ek soninbutions.)
{a) (b) (c) (d)
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution
contributions
3_. |THE WILLIAM WATTS FOUNDATION _______________._ Person  [x]
. Payroll D
P.O. BOX 39238 _ _ _ _ _ e $_____212,500.| Noncash |[]
) Complete Part I for
FORT LAUDERDALE ______________FL_33339_____ onaa contbuions.)
(a) (b) () (d)
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution
contributions
4__ |COMMUNITY FQUNDATION HOF BROWARD COUNTY _____ __._ Person %]
| Payroll D
910 E, LAS OLAS BOULEVARDR, SUITE 200 ________. $_____22.500.| Noncash [ ]
FORT LAUDERDALE ______________FL_33301_____ o comanbutions.)
a ’ (c) (d)
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution
contributions
s__ |woemww, INe. Person (]
Payroll [ |
209 NORTH BIRCH ROAD _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ o $_____210.000.[ Noncash [ ]
. (Complete Part Il for
FORT LAUDERDALE __ _ ___________FL_ 33304 _ ___ noncash contributions.)
(a) b) c d
Number Name, addréss, andZIP+4 T(ot)al - Type of c(:o)ntrlbutlon
contributions
6__ |mamx wmrTED oo Person  [x]
Payroll D
7815 NW 148TH STREET _ _ _ _ ___ o $_____12,500.| Noncash [ ]
R (Complete Part il for
HIALEAW _ __________________FL_ 33016 _-_ __ Honcash contributions.)
BAA TEEAO702 07117114 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2014)
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. . OMB No, 1545-0047
SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements
(Form 990) » Complete If the organization answered 'Yes,’ to Form 990, 201 4

Part IV, lines 8, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11¢, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b, —
Department ofthe Traas > Attach to Form 990. /OpanitolP !
D ot Servjee » Information about Schedule D (Form 990) and its Instructions Is at www.irs.gov/form990. RepEctIo: 1
‘Namie of the organization Empioyer identitication number

HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & EFFECT. NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, IN@5-0870180

7[Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other §im§lar Funds or Accounts.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

1 Totainumberatendofyear . .. .......
2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year) . . . .
3 Aggregatevalue of grants from (during year) . . . . . .
4 Aggregate valueatendofyear. . .. ... ..

§ Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization’s property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . . . v v v v v v oo ve v e s . DYes D No

6 Didthe or%anizalion inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring
impermissible private benefit? . . . . .. oo . e R N Cie e o« o []yes D No

Partiili¥l| Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) HPreservaﬂon of a historically Important land area

Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a cerlified historic structure
Preservation of open space

2 Complele lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the
last day of the tax year.

Held at the End of the Tax Year

a Total number of conservationeasements . . . . « <« ¢ v o 0 v oo s c e et seases e | 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . . . cr et e e e vee | 20
¢ Number of conservation easements on a cerlified historic structure includedin(@ . ... .. ... 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a historic

structure listed in the National Register . . . . . e e e e e e e R I 1. :

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
tax year >

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement Is located >
§ Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations,

and enforcement of the conservation easements itholds? . ... ... .. SRR e e s ‘e DYBS D No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, Inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
»

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
>3
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B
andsection 170(N)(@)BY([)? « « ¢« « ¢ e v v v e e vt o oo u e e s e e s s e s e e e - .( .)(.i). e DYes DNo

9 In Part X!Il, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization’s accounting for
conservation easements. ’ .

Partillli] Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 8. '

1 a Ifthe organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide,
in Part XII, the text of the footnote to ils financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in Its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the
following amounts relating to these items:

() Revenue included in Form 990, Part Vill, line 1. . . . . . . .. . v v e r e e e e e e e e >3
(1) Assetsincluded in Form 990, PartX . . . . . et e e e e e e e e e I )

2 Ifthe organization recelved or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following
amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

a Revenue included in Form 990, Part VIIl, line1. . . . . e e I
b Assets included in Form 990, PartX ... .. ... ce e e e e e C et e e e e »8
BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, TEEA3301 10/28/14 Schedule D (Form 990) 2014
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2014 _HOUSING OPP.
Partilli] Organizations Maintaining

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records,
items (check all that apply).

INC.

WTG. ASSIST., & BFFECT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS,

Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or
check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection

65-0870180 Page 2

a Public exhibition d Loan or exchange programs
b| |Scholarly research ‘ e | |Other
c Preservation for future generations

4 Provide adescription of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in

Part Xill.

§ During the year, did the organization solicit or receive
1o be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained

donations of ar, historical treasures, or other similar assets
as part of the organization’s collection?. . . . . . - -

.. Yes No

PartiVa Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.
line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21,

Complete if the organization answere

d Yes to Form 990, Part IV,

1 a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included

on Form 990, Part X?. . . . . .
b If 'Yes,’ explain the arrangement in Part X!

PR e s s 0 e 0 0 o e . e v e v 0 e e b e

Il and complete the following table:

" e e e e

[_—_I Yes DNo

s e e 0 @ 0w

Amount
¢ Beginning balance « . . . . . oo .. . e e e e e .o e i¢
d Additions duringtheyear . . . . . . o e et e e . . 1d
e Distribulions duringtheyear . . . .. .. .. e e e e P X )
fEndingbalance. . « <« « o oo e e e e e e e e . . At
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account fiability? . . . . . . U Yes No
b If'Yes,’ explain the arrangement in Part XIHi. Check here if the explanation has been provided in PartXlt. o« « v o oo v oo v v eee l::

{Partivel| Endowment Funds. Complete if the or anization answered "Yes' to Form 990

, Part IV, line 10.

(a) Cusrent year {b) Prior year

(c) Two years back

(d) Three years back

{e) Four years back

1 a Beginning of year balance . . .

b Contributions . . .

¢ Net investment earnings, gains,
and losses

------- CECRERY

d Grants or scholarships . .

v oe e

e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs e

f Administrative expenses . . . .

g End of year balance

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment > %
b Permanent endowment >
c Temporarily restricted endowment > %
The percentages in lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.

T

3a Are there endowment funds notin the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by:
(1) unrelated organizations
(i) related organizations . . B I
b If*Yes' to 3aii), are the refated organizations listed as required on Schedule R? ......
4 Describe in Part Xlil the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.

......... P R A I B ]

. e

..

Yes No

.| 3a(l)
3a(li)
.| 3b

PartiVii] Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (). Cost or other basis (b{)Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
(investment) asis (other) deprecialion
1aLal.'ld..... ...... v e e e . 2.480,000.i§ ; 3 PR 5. 480,000.
bBUldings - <+ e ee e ERERERE 3,042,964, 428,670. 2,614,294.
c Leasehold improvements. . . . . . . . . .
d Equipment . .+ . . ... REEEE 35,398, 34,317, 1.081.
eOlher. ........ t e s e e e e e v e e e e 3,.500. 3,500.
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column B), lin@ 10C.) « « v « o v o s o e > 5,098,875.
BAA
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2014 HoUSING OPP. , MTG. ASSTST., & RRFECT. NRIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 3
PartiVili Investments — Other Securities. ,
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (b) Book value {c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value
(1) Financial derivalives . « « . . . . . . e e e e
(2) Closely-held equity interests . . . . . . . . e e
(3) Other

e e - —— —— " ——— — — - — o e

e e e — ——— o ———— — (= o = e =

AN e e e o e e o e o e e e e S S

N o e e o o o e e = =

L e e o o o e . o v S o e S s e S eSS

lnvestmnts — Program Related. . .
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part 1V, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Description of investment type {b) Book value {c) Method of valualion: Cost or end-of-year market value

organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

{(a) Description (b) Book value
(1) DEPOSITS 24,026.
(2)_
3
(4)
(5)

6)

(8)

()]

(10)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), lne16.) « « « « v + « s o« R
PartiXei| Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11

{a) Description of liabllity (b) Book value i

1 Federal income taxes

(2) ,INES OF CREDIT 34,424,

(3) TENANT’ S SECURITY DEPOSITS 24.026;\

f. See Form 990,
R

“@
(€]
©)
(4]
(8)
@
(10)
(1
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 930, Part X, column (B) fine 25.) . . - * : ) . ;
2. Liability for uncentain tax positions. fn Part XIll, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reponts the organization's iabiity for uncertain

tax positions under FIN 48 {ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been providedinPartXlll. « « ¢ o v o w v e oo e ae el e e e D
BAA TEEA3303 0872514 Schedule D (Form 990) 2014
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D (Form 990) 2014 HOUSING OPP,, WIG. ASSIST., & BPFECT. NBIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 4
TReconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Schedule

1 Tolal revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements « « « « ¢ ¢ o0 0. e e e e
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part Vill, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments. « « + v v oo e e o m im0 e 2a

b Donated services and use of facilities. « « « - <« v e o v - e e e ceo ) 2b

¢ Recoveries of prioryeargrants « « « « « « « - e e e Weeeeaee} 20

d Other (Describe in PartXil) « . « - -« -« I A «.oe | 2d

o Addlines2athrough2d « . « ¢ v o e o v s e v e oo n R

3 SublractlineZefromlinM.............................................
4 Amounts included on Form 980, Part VIM, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill, line7b. . . » - - - ... 4a
b Olher (Describe in PartXlll) « - o v oo v e e e e e s e Weeeesees] 4b
cAddlinesdaand4b .. .. .. ..o e e e s e e s et

5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Partllin@12). « o« o o o v o v oo o oo v o0 5
Part:Xil Recongciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. -

4 Totalexpenses and losses per audited financial stalements. « .« « oo oo e e et et e
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:
a Donated services and use of facilities. . - . . e e e e e e e e ... | 2a
bPlioryearad]uslments............................... 2b
cOtherlosses « « « ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ o v o et e e e e a e eeserese] 2¢€
d Other (DescribeinPart XlllL) « « o v v oo v o evoceee e e I 1
eAddlnes2athrough2d . .« « ¢ oo v 0o e e e e s
3 Sublractine2efromiined . . « ¢« v v v v o e e s e et e e e e e
4 Amountsincluded on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b. . -« « - - ...] 4a
b Other (Describe inPart XNL) -« « < o 0 0 v o - e e e e s e e e e s e ...| 4b
CAddinesd4aand4b . . . .. oo e e e s e e s e s e e e e e e e e e
§ Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Partl, in@18) « o o o e o o oo oo oo« o

[ParEXIN] Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3,5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V,
fine 4; Part X, line 2; Part X1, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information,

BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2014

TEEA3304 10/28/14
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| omBNo. 15250047

2014
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W

{ &moll_l}dbllcf

SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete if the organization answered "Yes' to Form 990, Part 1V, lines 17, 18, or 19, orif the
- organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

o " - S N
inieman Rovem Semice . » Information about Schedule G (Form 990 or 90-EZ) and its instructions is at www./rs.gov/form990. _ || l"gfq,pfz;fﬁg ! 3'_‘1&
Name of the organizalion ) ’ Employer Identification number

HOUSING OPP., MITG. ASSIST., & EFFECT. NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. ~ |65-0870180

Parle Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 17.
= Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part,

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.

a Mail solicitations e Solicitation of non-government grants
b Internet and email solicitations f Solicitation of government grants
c Phone solicitations g | |Special fundraising events
d [ ]in-person solicitations
2a Did the organization have a wrilten or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directars, trustees or key
employees listed in Form 990, Part Vi) or entily in conneclion with professional fundraising services? . <+« ¢ o o o0 0 e DYes DNo

b If "Yes, list the ten highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

(1) Name and address of individual (1) Activi fv) Gross receipls (v) Amount paid to vi) Amount paid to
or entity (fundraiser) Y haﬁﬁ’gﬂgﬁ"‘f,‘,‘lﬁ,ﬁ,’m ( from acﬂvllyp 2or retained by) ( (or retalneg by)
of conlriiutions? fundralfer lls(tﬁd in organization
column .

Yes No

9

10

Total . . .o o0 0 0 oo P I I I I ST A AT s oo ”

3 Ic;:'slti ca;lniti:tges in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified It is exempt from registration

_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
e e e e e e e e et e e e o e e e St e o o e e e e
_________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________

BAA ForPaperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 980-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014
TEEA3701 09/116/14
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Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2014  HOUSING OPP,, MTG. ASSIST., & EFFECT.

Partillfl| Fundraising Events.

Complete if the organization answered

NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS,
‘Yes' to Form 990

, Part IV, fine 18, or reported

ING, 65-0870180 Page 2

more than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b.
List events with' gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events Ed) Tolal evenls
add column (a)
GOLF TOUR. FUNKY RUN NONE thfough column ‘c»
ER (event type) (event type) (total number)
v
E| 1 Grossreceipts ........ e 76,256. 34,262. 110,518.
u —
E
2 Less:Contributions « «+ « « « ¢ v 0 v 0.
3 Gross income (line 1 minus line2). . . . . 76,256. 34,262. 110,518.
4 Cashprizes.. .. ...... .
5 NoncashprizeS . .. ..coooe oo
D .
'E 6 Rent/facility costs . «  « v v o v o .
c
T 7 Food andbeverages . ... ... ....
E
X' | 8 Eneralnment. . ........ ceee
E
g 8 Otherdirect expenses. « « « + + « + - « - 21,442, 13,324, 34,766.
s
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 8incolumn(d). . . .+« » « v e e v s B N 34,766,
11 Netincome summary. Subtract line 10 fromline 3, column(d). . + « v+ ¢ ¢ - c « o+ - - . TR 75,752,

$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

Gaming. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, fine 19, or reported more than

Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column(d) . . .. ...

N O )

a) Bingo (b} Pull tabsfinstant ¢) Other gamin (d) Total gamin,
g (a) Bing bingo/progressive (e) g 9 (add colugmn (a
‘é bingo through column (c))
N
u .
E 1 GrOSSTEVENUE « « v « « « v o v o o .
2 CashprizeS. - « « o ¢ o v o v 0 o oo
b X
} Bl 3 Noncashprizes. .. ....oonnnnn
EN
c.§
TEl 4 Renbfaciltycosts. . . ..........
5 Otherdirectexpenses. . « « « « ¢« s o - .
| |Yes % 1] |Yes % || _|Yes % : ‘%%%:g
6 WVolunteerlabor . . . . . se e e e No No No b
7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d). . . >

“ v

9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming acliviies:

a Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states?

b If 'No,’ explain:

......

— - ————— — ———— ———— —— — — - — —ty T (ot Gt e Smp G St e GNe e W S S = ——

@ e o - — > - T - ——— - - — S S S e A GRS G M S G W e S e ve St GuS R AP S e Gd e e G S G G M G Y e Smp S G e T v b ewe S e e

—-——— - ——— — ———— T - S — " — e " a Smn S M — e 0 . M- —— . W W M e G e e Owe G s S e

TEEA3702 (09/16/14
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Schedule G (Form 990 or 980-EZ) 2014 HOUSING OPP., MIG. ASSIST., & BFFECT. NBIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180 Page 3
11 Does the organization operale gaming activiies with nonmembers? . . . .. . e e e re s e e e

12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficlary or trustee of a trust or a member of a partnership or other entity formed to

administer charitable @aming? « « « « « « o« s e v v oo e e e e DYes [Jne
13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in: .
aTheorganization'sfacility . « « « v ¢ v v v v v v e e v o e e F I I . .| 13a %
bAnoutside facility. . « « « v o v et e i e e O IR . </ 13b %
14 Enterthe name and address of the person who prepares the organization’s gaming/special events books and records:
Name ™ o mmmE—————— e
AddIesS ™ e — e m S ———
46a Does the organization have a contact with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue? . s « « « « .+ » DYes DNo

b If 'Yes,” enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization ~ * S and the amount
of gaming revenue retained by the third party > $ .
¢ If'Yes,’ enter name and address of the third party:

—__..-_—._.—.__—_.-_.—_———.—..._.__—_..._—..._._._—_-._-.-.——_—._——.——_——.—__..-._-__

16 Gaming manager information:

_————————..——__—_—_—_————_.——...—_—__——_...——.———————.——_—_——_——.——_—.—..

Description of services provided >

e o - - — — —— o - e S - e S S T S e W W W e e e S D e e e e eSS eSS S

D Director/officer DEmployee D Independent contractor

17 Mandatory distributions

a s the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to retain the
stale gaming license? i DYes DNo

b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt org anizations or spentin the
organization's own exempt activilies during the tax year > S
=] Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part1, line 2b, columns (jii) and (v),

and Part IIl, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional
information (see instructions).

.

BAA ' TEEA3703 09/16/14 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ |_ome No. 15450047
{Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to spacific questions on
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
» Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ,

Departm » Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ and Its instructions is YRONITO, LY
D o Sanice. atwwvs.lrs.gov/fonnwo. ) LianSpaction .
Name of the organization Employer identification number
HOUSING OPP., MTG. ASSIST., & EFFECT. NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC. 65-0870180

BOARD MEMBERSHIP IN THE ORGANIZATION SHALL AT ALL TIMES BE LIMITED TO
Pt VI, Line 6 THOSE PERSONS WHO HAVE BEEN ELECTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

THE BOARD SHALL APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF ALL DIRECTORS. THE BOARD MAY
REMOVE ANY DIRECTOR AT ANY TIME FOR ANY REASON WHICH THE BOARD, IN ITS
Pt VI, Line 7a SOLE DISCRETION, DEEMS TO BE IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE ORGANIZATION.
THE BOARD RESERVE TO THEM SELVES THE ARTICULATION OF AND MEDIATION OF
THE OPERATING PHILOSOPHY AND MISSION STATEMENT OF THE ORGANIZATION.
INCLUDED WITHIN THIS RESERVED POWER SHALL BE ALL DECISIONS REGARDING
Pt VI, Line 7b MAJOR POLICY CHANGES AND LONG RANGE PLANNING.
THE FORM 990 RETURN IS REVIEWED BY THE PRESIDENT/CEO AND THE ACCOUNTANT
BEFORE IT IS SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THEIR REVIEW AND
APPROVAL. UPON APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE FORM 990 IS THEN
Pt VI, Line 11lb FILED WITH THE IRS.
ENFORCEMENT OF CONFLICTS POLICY OF THE ORGANIZATION REQUIRES ALL
: OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS TO FILL OUT AN ANNUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Pt VI, Line 1l2c STATEMENT. .
THE PRESIDENT/CEO’S SALARY IS APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL REVIEW AND APPROVE ANY FUTURE SALARY REQUESTS OF
Pt VI, Line 15a OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOYEES.
THE PRESIDENT/CEO'S SALARY IS APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL REVIEW AND APPROVE ANY FUTURE SALARY REQUESTS OF
Pt VI, Line 15b OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOYEES.
Pt VI, Line 19 NO DOCUMENTS ARE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC.

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ, TEEA4901 08r18/14 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014
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- @HOMES

A Charitadble Organization m W
2017 Board of Directors =0
<<
Name Title Board Company/Address Contact Info
Member
Board
Eric X. Servaites Co-Chair Since Stonegate Bank Office: (954) 315-5506
. . . Executive Vice President eservaites@stonegatebank.com
AmmEoH.Om.Han 2011 1430 N. Federal Hwy.
of Institution Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33304
Serving Our
Area)
Board Since Princeton Kitchen & Bath, Inc. Office: (954) 344-9155
Brad Brewster Co-Chair 2011 Owner Cell: (954) 732-5414
4980 NW 1015T Ave. brad@princetonkb.com
‘Coral Springs, FL. 33076 —
N (@)
President
Katherine S. Barry Director Since CEO H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. Office: (954) 563-5454
: (Representative 1998 1998-2016 Cell: (954) 803-6464
of Low Income 2665 NE 26™ Terrace kbarry@homesfl.org
Residents) Ft. Lauderdale, FL. 33306 :
Since Blue Sky Environments Interior Décor Office: (954) 341-1401 ext. 217
: Owner & Interior Designer bmurtaghnash@bseid.com
Barbara Director 2014 13798 NW 47H Street, Ste. 308 Imorrison@bseid.com
Murtagh-Nash Sunrise, FL. 33325 ,
Since Aviation Professionals Group Office: (954) 763-4848
Rick Asper Director 2003 Chairman Cell: (954) 328-2149
3000 NE 30TH Place, Ste. 107 ricka@aviation-professionals.com
Ft. Lauderdale, FL. 33306
Juan Rojas Treasurer Since 2801 NE 10tk Terrace Cell: (305) 613-1699
Community 2009 Wilton Manors, FL juanersmia@icloud.com

Resident
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Area)

. Name Title Board Company/ Address Contact Info. e 2
Member o
Emilie Tracy. P.A. =
Emilie Tracy Director Since Attorney at Law Phone: (954) 524-1401 >
2015 1323 SE 3RP Avenue Emilie@emiliemtracypa.com
Ft. Lauderdale, FL. 33316
Family Success Office
Marie McGinley Secretary Since Administrative Manager Office: (954) 357-5683
(Community 2014 Broward County Human Services Cell: (954) 249-5753
Resident) 1517 N. Andrews Avenue MizMallow@aol.com
Ft. Lauderdale, FL. 33311
Board
Patricia Bessemer Vice-Chair Since BankUnited, Senior V.P. Office: (305) 231-6536 ~
(Sentor Officer 2016 Banking Credit Officer Cell: ((786) 338-8846 *
of Institution 7765 NW 148TH Street pbessemer@bankunited.com
Serving Our Miami Lakes, FL. 33016
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ HOM.ES, INC)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

SEPTEMBER 30,2015

% RLMolina, LLC

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.ES., INC.)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE(S)
Independent Auditors’ Report 1
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Statement of Financial Position , 3
Statement of Activities 4
Statement of Cash Flows 5
Notes to Financial Statements 6-15
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Schedules of Functional Expenses 16
COMPLIANCE SECTION
Independent Accountants’ Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements .
Performed in Accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards 17-18
Schedule of Findings and Responses 19
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RLMolina, LLC

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

4000 Hollywood Boulevard, Suite 555-South, Hollywood, FL 33021
Telephone: 305.390.0561 | Fax: 786.353.0786

www.rimolina.com

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors

Housing Opportunities Mortgage Assistance
& Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc.

Fort Lauderdale, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Housing Opportunities
Mortgage Assistance & Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc.,, d/b/a H.O.M.E.S,, Inc,, (a Florida Not-for-
profit corporation), ("H.O.M.ES,, Inc."), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2015 and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements of H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. as of September 30, 2014, were audited by other auditors
whose report dated February 3, 2015 expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements _

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to H.O.M.E.S,
Inc’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of H.O.M.E.S,, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors' Report (Cont’d.)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Housing Opportunities Mortgage Assistance & Effective Neighborhood
Solutions, Inc., d/b/a H.O.M.E.S,, Inc,, as of September 30, 2015 and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. :

Other Matters

Supplementary Information .

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of
HO.M.ES,, Inc. taken as a whole. The accompanying statement of functional expenses for the year
ended September 30, 2015 on page 16 are also presented for purposes of additional analysis and also
are not a required part of the financial statements of H.0.M.E.S., Inc.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 24,
2016, on our consideration of H.O.M.E.S, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering H.0.M.E.S., Incs internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

EﬁWoﬁrm‘, LLG

March 24, 2016
Hollywood, Florida

% RLMolina, LLC

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.

(d/b/a/ H.O.M.E.S,, INC.)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $ 28,990
Tenant' rent receivable, net 3,795
" Grantsreceivable 25,889
Total Current Assets 58,674
Non-current Assets:
Cash, tenants' security deposits 24,026
Deferred financing fees, net 46,971
Property, furniture and equipment, net 5,098,875
Total Non-Current Assets 5,169,872
Total Assets $ 5,228,546

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CurrentLiabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses / $ 38,311
Accrued interest payable 11,976
Refundable advances 22,274
Notes payable - related party 10,000
Mortgage and promissory notes payable, current 151,956
Lines of credit 34,424
Total Current Liabilities 268,941
Long-Term Liabilities:
Mortgage and promissory notes payable : 3,644,368
Tenant's security deposits payable 24,026
Total Long Term Liabilities ~ 3,668,394
Total Liabilities 3,937,335
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted . 1,291,211
Total Net Assets 1,291,211
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 5,228546

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.ES., INC.)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Support:
Government grants
Other grants
Contributions
Fund-raising income, net of direct costs ($34,766)
Trift store sales, net of expenses ($35,131)
In-Kind salary

Total Support
Revenue:
Rental income, net
Development fees

Other income
Loan forgiveness

Total Revenue
NetAssets Released From Restrictions:
Restrictions satisfied by payments
Total Net Assets Released From Restrictions

Total Support and Revenue

EXPENSES

Program Services:
Supportive housing and self sufficiency program
Residential and commercial rental program
Homeownership program
Neighborhood revitalization program

Total Program Expenses
Supporting Services:
Advocacy and community awareness
General and administrative

Total Supportive Services
Total Expenses
Increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of the year
Net Assets At End Of The Year

Unrestricted

Temporarily

Restricted Total

$ 223223 $ 223,223

57,500 172,107 229,607
17,014 17,014
75,752 75,752

(12,413) (12,413)
93,750 93,750
231,603 395,330 626,933
283,442 283,442
91,262 91,262
7,858 7,858
109,537 109,537
492,099 - 492,099
395,330 (395,330)
395,330 (395,330)

1,119,032 - 1,119,032
483,266 483,266
327,022 327,022

56,143 56,143
47,866 47,866
914,297 - 914,297
46,366 46,366
86,192 86,192
132,558 - 132,558

1,046,855 1,046,855
72,177 . 72,177

1,219,034 - 1,219,034

1,291,211 _$ - $ 1,291,211

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.ES., INC.)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Changes in net assets $ 72,177

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
tonet cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 94,354
Amortization 3,370
Provision for doubtful accounts 2,400
Forgiveness of debt : (109,537)

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Tenants’ rent receivable (433)
Grants receivable : (25,889)
Cash, tenants’ security deposits (4,107)
Deferred financing fees , (10,570)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

° Accounts payable and accrued expenses 26,029
Accrued interest payable 5,140
Refundable advances (34,454)
Tenants’ security deposits payable 5,328

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 23,808

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchase of property, furniture and equipment (752,990)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (752,990)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Payment on note payable - related party (15,000)
Payment on mortgage and promissory note payable (44,608)
Proceeds from line of credit - 18,956
Proceeds from mortgage and promissory note payable 673,940

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 633,288

Net decrease in cash (95,894)

Cash, at beginning of year 124,884

Cash, At End Of Year $ 28,990

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Interest paid $ 83,609

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

100
CAM # 17-0708
Exhibit 2
Page 115 of 192



HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.E.S., INC.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Note 1 - Organization

The Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc, d/b/a
H.OME.S, Inc. ("H.O.M.E.S,, Inc.") is a Florida not-for-profit corporation, established on October 15,
1998 to provide affordable housing to low-income residents and to participate in neighborhood
revitalization projects in blighted transitional neighborhoods in Broward County, Florida.

The mission of H.0.M.E.S,, Inc. is to provide quality community and economic development, benefiting at
risk and disadvantaged residents and neighborhoods in Broward County, Florida by providing the
following programs:

* Supportive housing and self sufficiency program - providing subsidized rental apartments
for up to 25 young adults ages 18 to 24 (and their children) who have aged out of the
state's foster care and relative care system, together with various types of
programmatic support (including paid internships, job and life coaching, financial
capability classes, and placing youths in school) with the goal of helping this at risk

~ population achieve self-sufficiency.

* Residential and commercial rental program -providing quality rental apartments and
homes affordable to low-income families and quality office spaces affordable to local
small businesses.

* Homeownership program - H.O.M.ES,, Inc. is one of four development partners in the
BAND Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) within Broward County,
administering Federal funds aimed at preventing neighborhood deterioration caused
by foreclosures. Foreclosed homes are purchased from the banks, renovated, and then
resold to qualified low and moderate income families who have completed a free course
on financial counseling and homeownership education and saved a 3.5% down
payment. Buyers are eligible for up to $40,000 in NSP fuinds to assist with their home
purchase and obtain mortgages from local financial institutions. '

* Neighborhood revitalization program - Working with local business and civic groups and
city government to develop and implement a plan for improving and transforming the
Central City CRA (the area where H.O.M.E.S,, Inc.'s offices and property are located) in
Fort Lauderdale, Broward County, Florida.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) sets generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAP”) to ensure consistent reporting. References to GAAP issued by the FASB in the accompanying
footnotes are to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (the "ASC").

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with FASB ASC 958, Not-For-Profit
Organizations. The financial statements of H.0.M.E.S,, Inc. have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America. Presented below is a summary of significant accounting principles followed in the preparation
of the accompanying financial statements. .
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.E.S., INC.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd.)

Financial Statement Presentation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with FASB ASC. In accordance with these
. standards, net assets, revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified as unrestricted, temporarily
restricted, or permanently restricted, depending on the existence and /or nature of any donor
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of H.0.M.E.S,, Inc. are classified as follows:

Unrestricted net assets - are the part of net assets that are neither permanently nor
temporarily restricted by donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - result from contributions and other flows of assets whose -
use is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be
removed by actions of H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. pursuant to those stipulations. When a donor restriction
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and are
reported in the statement of operations and changes in net assets as net assets released from
restriction. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as
received are reported as unrestricted contributions in the financial statements. There were no
temporarily restricted net assets at September 30, 2015.

Permanently restricted net assets - result from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by the passage of time
nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of H.O.M.E.S. Inc. There were no
permanently restricted net assets as of September 30, 2015.

The primary source of revenue for H.0.M.E.S,, Inc. consists of grants which, absent a specific restriction
by the grantor, are considered to be available for unrestricted use. Grants revenue includes only that
portion of the grants that was earned prior to the balance sheet date. All grants funds received as of the
statement of financial position date which is considered to be applicable to future periods are reflected
as deferred revenue on the statement of financial position or temporarily restricted net assets, where
applicable.

A secondary source of revenue for H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. is the rental fees it collects from its housing and
commercial tenants for services consistent with its primary business functions of operating its
residential and commercial activities/services.

Additionally, H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. also generates income from development fees through its Homeownership
Program.

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been detailed in the
accompanying Schedule of Activities.

Salaries and other expenses which are associated with a specific program are charged directly to that
program. Salaries and other expenses which benefit more than one program are allocated to the various
programs based on the relative costs incurred. Administrative and other support expenses are allocated
to the various programs based on each program's salary expense.
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.E.S., INC.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d.)
Cash

Cash consists of demand deposits that, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. H.0.M.E.S., Inc. has
not experienced any losses in such accounts. H.0O.M.E.S,, Inc. considers investment with maturities of
three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents unless they are held as part of the
endowment portfolio or in trust for annuity obligations.

Cash, Tenants’ Security Deposits

Cash, tenants’ security deposits represent unexpended cash advanced received from funding sources to
be used specifically for program functions beyond the statement of financial position date.

Grants Receivable

Amounts reflected as grants receivable represent the differences between the grant awards (federal,
state and local) and contractual revenue earned and cash receipts related to these awards and revenue.
Grants revenue is recognized to the extent that these funds are earned. H.0.M.E.S,, Inc. believes that the
concentration associated with its grants receivable is mitigated by the fact that the majority of the
grants receivable at year end are due mainly from federal, state and local governmental agencies.

Tenants’ Receivable, Net

Tenants’ receivables arise in the normal course of business with rental real estate properties. H.O.M.ES.,
Inc. records bad debts using the direct write-off methods, which for H.0.M.E.S,, Inc., is not materially
different than methods acceptable under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Rents are due
the first of every month and considered delinquent after five days. Delinquent receivables are written
off based upon a review of outstanding receivables, historical collection information, existing economic
conditions, and mission. For the year ended September 30, 2015, total bad debt expense was $2,400.

Property, Furniture and Equipment

Purchased property, furniture and equipment are recorded at cost. Major additions and improvements
. are capitalized to the property and equipment accounts, while repairs and maintenance items, which do
not improve or extend the useful life of the respective assets, are expensed as incurred. Donated
property and equipment are recorded at the estimated fair market value at time of donation.
Depreciation of property and equipment is provided by the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Building and Improvements 39

Rental Property _ 35

Furniture and equipment 5-7
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.E.S., INC.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd.)

Impairment of long-lived assets

H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. accounts for long lived assets in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 360,
Property, Plant and Equipment. FASB ASC 360 requires that long lived assets be reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the
carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.
If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to be
disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

No impairment charges were recorded for the year ended September 30, 2015.

‘Compensated Absences

H.OM.ESS, Inc's policies provide for granting of a specific number of days of paid time off (PTO) for
vacation and sick leave. In addition, these policies provide for paying an employee for unused PTO upon
termination. Compensated absences are accrued when earned and calculated at the current salary rates.

Refundable Advances

H.O.M.E.S, Inc.’s policy is to record restricted or unearned grant awards as refundable advances until
expended or earned for the purpose of the grant, at which time it becomes unconditional and is
recognized as revenue. Unearned or unexpended grant awards (from the Jim Moran Foundation) as of
September 30, 2015 totaled $22,274.

Grants and Contract Revenue

A significant portion of H.O.M.ES,, Inc's revenue originates from federal, state and local grants and
contracts. Costs incurred under each of the programs are subject to approval and subsequent audits by
the respective agencies. Funding under certain existing grants may be reduced or increased at the |
discretion of the grantor agencies. Grants and contracts are considered exchange transactions and are
recorded as unrestricted revenue when. earned. Grant funds received prior to the incurrence of the
qualifying expenses are deferred and reported as refundable advances on the Statement of Financial
Position.

Contributions

H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. accounts for contributions in accordance with FASB ASC 958-605, Not-for-Profit Entities
= Revenue Recognition. In accordance with FASB ASC 958-605, contributions received are recorded as
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permaneritly restricted support, depending on the existence
and/or nature of any donor restrictions. All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted
use unless specifically restricted by the donor. Contributions with temporary restrictions that are
received and used within the year are included in unrestricted activities. When a restriction expires
(that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the accompanying
statement of operations and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.E.S., INC.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont’d.)

Donated Goods, Facilities and Services

H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. receives various types of donated revenue, including professional services (from its CEQO
_as In-Kind), donated goods/materials (for the Thrift store) and certain operating facilities. Donated
facilities, materials (including furniture/equipment) are reflected as support in the accompanying
statements of activities at their estimated fair value at date of receipt. Contributed professional services
are recognized if the services received create or enhance goods and long-lived assets or require
specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided through donation. Donated services are recognized when meeting the
following criteria;

a. The services performed are a normal part of the program or supporting services and would
otherwise be performed by salaried personnel.

b. H.0.ME.S, Inc. exercises control over employment, activities, and duties of the provider of the
service.

c. Thereis a measurable basis for determining the value of the service.

During the year ended September 30, 2015, H.O.M.E.S., Inc. received inkind service from its CEO in the
amount of $93,750.

Rental Income, Net

Rental income, net includes monthly rent and any tenant rent subsidies collected from tenants for the
years ended September 30, 2015. This amount is reduced by any vacancies and concessions that
occurred in 2015, Rental payments received in advance are deferred until earned. All leases between the
H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. and its tenants are operating leases.

Development Fees

H.OM.ES., Inc. recognizes development fee income as development of the related projects are
completed under a percentage of completion method or based on the attainment of certain objectives as
defined in the developer agreement. A portion of the fee is recognized at closing and a portion of the fee
is deferred until the project reaches stabilization in the situations where H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. is required, as
the developer, to support the project’s operations without reimbursement until stabilization is achieved.
Development fees expected to be paid from development proceeds, primarily property debt and
investor capital, are recorded as development fees receivable. HO.M.ES., Inc. received $91,262 for
development fees for the year ended September 30, 2015.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The actual outcome of these estimates
could differ from the estimates made in the preparation of the financial statements.
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.ES., INC.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’'d.)

Risk Management

H.0M.E.S,, Inc. is exposed to risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; material disasters; and product liability. H.0O.M.E.S,, Inc.
carries commercial insurance for risks of loss.

Income Taxes

H.0.M.E.S,, Inc. was organized as a not-for-profit corporation and has received an exemption under the
provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income
taxes is provided for in the accompanying financial statements. In addition, H.0.M.E.S,, Inc. has also been
determined by the Internal Revenue service not to be a "private foundation” within the meaning of
Section 509(a) and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). The
FASB ASC interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

Under this guidance, H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if
it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities,
based on the technical merits of the position. Examples of tax positions include the tax-exempt status of
H.OM.E.S, Inc. and various positions related to the potential sources of unrelated business taxable
income (UBIT). The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position are
measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. There were no unrecognized tax benefits identified or recorded as liabilities
for fiscal year ended September 30, 2015.

H.OM.E.S,, Inc. files forms 990 in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. Management believes that H.0.M.E.S,, Inc.
is generally not subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service for fiscal years before
September 30, 2012.

Allocation of Administrative and Indirect Costs

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services. Management and
general administrative expenses include those expenses that are not directly identifiable with any other
specific function but provide for the overall support of H.0.M.E.S,, Inc,, Such expenses are allocated on
the basis of occupancy of square footage. Depreciation and amortization is allocated on the basis of
usage of the related property and equipment.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the 2014 financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to
conform to the presentation in the 2015 financial statements.
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC,

(d/b/a/ H.0.M.E.S., INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd.)

Subsequent events

Under FASB ASC, subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the consolidated
statement of financial position date but before the financial statements are issued or ready to be issued.
H.0.M.E.S, Inc, recognizes in the financial statements the effect of all subsequent events that provide
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position, including estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. H.O.M.E.S,,
Inc,’s financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions
that did not exist at the date of the statement of financial position but arose after the statement of
financial position date and before the financial statements are issued. H.0O.M.E.S,, Inc., has evaluated the
subsequent events through March 24, 2016, which is the date the financial statements were available to
be issued.

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with GAAP, H.O.M.ES,, Inc,, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or the price paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. GAAP establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes
the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most
observable inputs be used when available. The standard establishes a three-level hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives
the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The levels of the hierarchy and those investments
included in each are as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities
traded in active markets.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active,
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability and market-corroborated
inputs.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable for the asset or liability and are
significant to the fair value measurement.

The following table presents certain H.O.M.E.S, Inc,’s assets and liabilities that are measured and
recognized at fair value on a recurring basis classified under the appropriate level of the fair value
hierarchy as of September 30, 2015:

Fair Value

Measurements Using:
Assets/Liabilities Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Line of Credit $ 344243 34424 § $
Total § 34424 § 34424 § §
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.ES., INC.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Note 3 - Property, Furniture and Equipment
Property, furniture and equipment consist of the following as of September 30, 2015:

Description: 2015 Useful Life
Land $ 2,480,000
Building and improvement _ 3,042,964 39 years
Furniture and equipment 35,398 5-7 years
Vehicles : 3,500 7-10 years
5,561,862
Less: Accumulated depreciation (462,987)
Property and Equipment, Net $ 5,098,875

Depreciation expense for the year ended September 30, 2015 was $94,354.

Note 4 - Lines of Credit

Unsecured line of credit to Stonegate Bank, maturing January 27, 2016, with maximum borrowings of ,
$35,000 and monthly interest payments at prime based variable rate, 5% per annum at September 30,
2015. Balance outstanding at September 30, 2015 was $34,424.

Note 5 — Mortgage and Promissory Notes Payable

As of September 30, 2015, mortgages and promissory notes payable under H.O.M.E.S., Inc. were as
follows:

Note payable to Bank United, maturing March 25, 2019, With monthly
payments of $10,425 including fixed interest at 4.31% per annum, col
lateralized by a first mortgage on H.0.M.E.S,, Inc.’s owned property. $ 1,841,072

Note payable to City of Fort Lauderdale, collateralized by a mortgage on
H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. owned property (1212, 1216, 1218 & 1222 NE 6th Ave., build
ings only) with payments of $1,183 commencing August 2014 including
interest at 3% per annum. Deed restrictions require use of property for
residential rental to lower income persons, using SHIP funds. 171,323

Note payable to City of Fort Lauderdale, (pass through SHIP funds),
collateralized by mortgage on H.0.M.E.S, Inc. owned property, (1212, 1216,
1218,& 1222 NE 6th Avenue) with payments deferred for 18 years (due
January 2030) at which time the loan will be forgiven if all conditions have

been met. 184,563

Note payable to City of Fort Lauderdale, (pass through SHIP funds), collateral

ized by mortgage on H.O.M.E.S,, Inc.’s owned property, (1228 NE 61 Avenue

and 1233 NE 7t Avenue) If all conditions are met, beginning in February

2012, loan will be reduced by one-fifth each year and after five years the loan 39,071
- will be completely forgiven.

(Continues on the next page)
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& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.0.M.E.S., INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Note 5 ~ Mortgage and Promissory Notes Payable (Cont'd.)

Notes payable to City of Fort Lauderdale using CHDO funds, collateralized by
mortgages on H.O.M.E.S., Inc. owned property, (1122 NE 1st Avenue -
$106,450. 1317 NW 2nd Avenue - $108,115). Payments are deferred for 20
years through June 2034 at which time the loans will be forgiven if all the
conditions are met. Deed restrictions require use of property for residential
rental purposes.

Notes payable to City of Fort Lauderdale using CHDO funds, collateralized by
mortgages on H.O.M.ES., Inc. owned property, (1341 N. Andrews Avenue,
June 2014 - $254,865; and 1113 NE 2 Avenue, June 2014 - $212,780).
Payments are deferred for 20 years through June 2034 at which time the
loans will be forgiven if all the conditions are met. Deed restrictions require
use of property for affordable housing purposes.

Two notes payable to Broward County using SHIP funds, collateralized by
mortgages on H.0.M.E.S,, Inc.’s owned property, (1212, 1216,1218 & 1222 NE
61 Avenue, buildings only). Payments are deferred for 30 years from April
2009 ($160,000) and January 2010 ($45,200) at which time the loans will be
forgiven if all the conditions are met. Deed restrictions require use of
property for residential rental to lower income persons.

Note payable to Broward County, (pass through HOME funds), collateralized
by mortgage on H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. owned property , (1101-1111 NE 17 Court)
with payments deferred for 30 years (due September 2045) at which time
the loan will be forgiven if all conditions have been met.

Note payable to Gibraltar Private Bank & Trust Company, maturing
September 1¢, 2020, With monthly payments of $2,570 including fixed
interest at 4.50% per annum, collateralized by a mortgage on H.0.M.E.S,, Inc.’s
owned property (1101-1111 NE 17 Court). '

Total Mortgage and Promissory Notes Payable

214,565

467,645

205,200

269,940

402,945

3,796,324

Future estimated aggregate maturities of mortgages and promissory notes payable are approximately

for the year ending September 30, as follows:

Year Amount
2016 $ 151,956
2017 151,956
2018 151,956
2019 151,956
2020 151,956
Thereafter 3,036,544
3,796,324

Current portion {151,956)
Total $ 3,644,368

For the year ended September 30, 2015, interest expense amounted to $ 88,749.

109

\

CAM # 17-0708
Exhibit 2
Page 124 of 192



HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.ES., INC.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Note 6 - Concentration

From time to time, H.0.M.E.S., Inc. maintains its cash and cash equivalents in deposit accounts at several
financial institutions that may have exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") limits
of $250,000. Management monitors these balances and believes they do not represent a significant
creditrisk to H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. for the year ended September 30, 2015.

Note 7 - Commitments and Contingencies
Grant and Property Use Restrictions

Many of the properties owned and operated by H.O.M.ESS., Inc. were developed using monies provided
by grants and restrictive, low or zero interest rate loans. The terms of these loans restrict the use of the
property and generally require it be rented to low-income qualified tenants for the period of the grant
-or related loan term. Failure to comply with the terms of the grant or the loans would result in a
requirement to repay a portion or all of the proceeds received.
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,

& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.

(d/b/a/ H.O.M.ES., INC.)
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Program Services Supporting S
Supporting  Residential/ Home . Advocacy & Gener:
Housing Commercial ~ Ownership  Neighborhood Total Program  Community And
Description Youths Rental Program  Revitalization Services Awareness . Administr:
Salaries and labor costs $ 233783 $ 8L676 $ 30942 $ 22102 $ 368503 § 22102 $ 34
In-Kind salary 9,375 16,406 16,406 16,406 58,593 16,406 18
Payroll taxes 14,833 6,365 1,330 1,099 23,627 271 6
Employee benefits 35,243 15,124 3,160 2,611 56,138 643 14
Total Salaries and Benefits 293,234 119,571 51,838 42,218 506,861 39,422 74
Interest 44,141 . 44,608 - - 88,749
Repairs and maintenance 28,964 31,009 - - 59,973 -
Property taxes 12,827 3,056 . - 15,883 -
Insurance 15,495 33,060 - - 48,555 -
Utilities 15,997 27,175 - - 43,172 -
Office 10,172 10,172 1,695 3,392 25431 5,086 3
Legal andaccounting fees - 3,218 - - 3,218 . 4
Telephone 2,388 1,592 1,194 1,194 6,368 796
Bank and credit card charges 1,350 1,350 - - 2,700 '
Storage - 2,091 - - 2,091
Transportation 9,697 - - - 9,697 -
Computer expense 1,416 1,416 1,416 1,062 5310 1,062
Total Operating Expenses 435,681 278,318 56,143 47,866 818,008 46,366 84
Bad debt expense - 2,400 - - 2,400
Depreciation 45,327 45,327 - 90,654 1
Amortization - Deferred Financing 2,258 977 - - 3,235
Total Expenses $ 483266 § 327,022 § 56143 $ 47866 $ 914297 $ 46366 $ 86
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% RLMolina, LLC

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

4000 Hollywood Boulevard, Suite 555-South, Hollywood, FL 33021
Telephone: 305.390.0561 | Fax: 786.353.0786

www.rlmolina.com

Independent Auditor’'s Report On Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting And On Compliance And Other Matters Based On
An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance

With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors

Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance,
& Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc.

Fort Lauderdale, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the
Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc,, d/b/a H.O.M.E.S,,
Inc, (a Florida Not-for-profit corporation), ("H.0.M.E.S,, Inc.") which comprise the accompanying
statement of financial position as of September 30, 2015, and the related statements of activities and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the accompanying financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated March 24, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered H.O.M.E.S,, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of H.0.M.E.S,, Inc.’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of H.0.M.E.S,, Inc.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Cont'd.)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether H.0.M.ESS,, Inc.'s accompanying consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the management of H.0O.M.E.S, Inc. in a separate letter
dated March 24, 2016.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
H.OM.E.S, Inc.’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering H.O.M.E.S,, Inc.’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

2L 7o &wa. , L LC.

March 24, 2016
Hollywood, Florida
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
(d/b/a/ H.O.M.ES., INC.)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Section I - Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of
noncompliance related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with
Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing Standards.

There were no significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related
to the financial statements identified during the audit for the year ended September 30, 2015.

Section Il - Current Year Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

Not applicable for the current year

Section IV - Financial Statements Finding of Prior Audit Findings

No ﬁndihgs were reported.

Section V - Federal Awards Summary of Prior Audit Findings

No findings were reported.

Section V] - Management Letter Comments

A management letter was issued.

-

115

CAM # 17-0708
Exhibit 2
Page 131 of 192



HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
d/b/a/ HO.M.E.S,, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
and Independent Auditor’s Report
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CHARLES A. NICHOLS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, °
& Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc.

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, &
Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc., d/b/a H.O.ME.S,, Inc. (“H.O.M.E.S.”, a nonprofit organization)
which comprise the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2014 and 2013 and the related
statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and of cash flows for the years then
ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits. I conducted my
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those

standards require that I plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial .
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Jjudgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of H.O.M.E.S. as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its net assets and its cash

flows fonthe years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
StatAmerica.

£ Vet g 1A

CHARLES A. NICHOLS, C.P.A,,P.A.

February 3, 2015

2200 Northeast 26" Street » Suite E» Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33305 « (954) 564~4333 * Fax (954) 564-2444
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE, & EFFECTIVE
NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
d/b/a H.O.M.E.S., Inc.

Statements of Financial Position
September 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
ASSETS
ASSETS: .
Cash $ 124,884 § 88,071
Cash - held in trust 19,920 19,193
Rent receivable . 3,362 7,579
Loan closing cost net of amortization of $3,370 36,400 -
Property and equipment, net 4,445,706 4,049,436
TOTAL ASSETS § 4,63 0272 § 4,164,279
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 12,282 § 19,671
Rental security deposits 18,698 17,850
Accrued interest payable ' 6,836 7,541
Deferred revenue 56,728 78,463
Related party loans 25,000 240,830
Debt 3,291,694 2,749,589
Total liabilities . 3,411,238 3,113,944
NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted : 1,219,034 1,044,075
Temporarily restricted - 6,260
Total net assets 1,219,034 1,050,335
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS §  4,630272 $ 4,164,279

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE, & EFFECTIVE

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Support:
Grants and contributions
In-kind salary
Fund-raising events, net of direct costs
Revenue, resale store, net of expenses
Total support
Revenue:
Program service:
Development fees
Rental income
Total program service revenue
Other - forgiveness of debt
Total revenue

Net assets released from restriction-
satisfaction of program restriction

Total support and revenue

EXPENSES:
Program services:

Real estate rental programs:
Supportive housing for foster youths
Residential and commercial rental

Homeownership program

Neighborhood revitalization program

Total program service expenses
Supporting services:
Advocacy & community awareness
Management and general
Total supporting services
Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
d/b/a H.LOM.E.S., Inc.

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2014 2013

~ Temporarily Temporarily :

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 57,080 $ 299,998 357,078 $ 63,407 $ 326,456 $ 389,863
104,802 - 104,802 125,000 - 125,000
59,768 - 59,768 52,497 - 52,497
(26,297) - (26,297) (23,122) - (23,122)
195,353 299,998 495,351 217,782 326,456 544,238
117,667 - 117,667 46,998 - 46,998
217,216 - 217,216 194,601 - 194,601
334,883 - 334,883 241,599 - 241,599
235,367 - 235,367 99,536 - 99,536
570,250 - 570,250 341,135 - 341,135

306,258 (306,258) - 345,819 (345,819) -
1,071,861 {6,260) 1,065,601 904,736 (19,363) 885,373
433,827 - 433,827 363,615 - 363,615
223,500 - 223,500 164,891 - 164,891
62,693 - 62,693 43,510 - 43,510
34,277 - 34,277 25,796 - 25,796
754,297 - 754,297 597,812 - 597,812
32,352 - 32,352 57,321 - 57,321
110,253 - 110,253 116,362 - 116,362
142,605 142,605 173,683 173,683
896,902 - 896,902 771,495 - 771,495
174,959 (6,260) 168,699 133,241 (19,363) " 113,878
1,044,075 6,260 1,050,335 910,.834 25,623 936,457
$1,219,034 - 1,219,034 $1,044,075 $ 6,260 1,050,335



HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE, & EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC., d/b/a HO.M.ES,, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Year Ended Scptember 30, 2014

Program Services
Real Estate Rental ‘
Supportive Residential/ Home Neighbor- Total Advocacy & General Total
Housing Commercial Ownership Hood Program Community and Supporting

Account Name Foster Youths Rentals Program Revitalization Services Awareness - Aministrative Services Total

Salaries and labor (note 1, $245,151 $56,769 $18,749 $11,162 $331,831 $13,374 $59,609 $72,983 $404,814
contributed services)
In-kind salary 26,200 10,480 26,200 20,960 83,840 10,480 10,480 20,960 104,800
Payroll taxes 11,344 2,909 1,146 580 15,979 975 4,406 5,381 21,360
Emplyee benefits 11,660 2,990 1,178 596 16,424 1,002 4,528 5,530 21,954
Total salaries and benefits 294,355 73,148 47,273 33,298 448,074 25,831 79,023 104,854 552,928
Mortgage interest 50,595 21,900 - - 72,495 3,020 - 3,020 75,515
Repairs and maintenance 16,907 32213 - - 49,120 - - - 49,120
Property taxes 2,750 2,750 - - 5,500 - - - 5,500
Insurance 5,646 33,524 - - 39,170 - - - 39,170
Utilities 20,524 22,693 - - 43,217 2,522 - 2,522 45,739
Office 979 979 12,722 979 15,659 979 14,681 15,660 31,319
Loan closing cost amortization 2,258 977 - - 3,235 - 135 135 3,370
Legal and accounting - - - - - - 5,650 5,650 5,650
Telephone 4,497 - 2,698 - 7,195 - 1,798 1,798 8,993
Bank and credit card charges - - - - - - 2,978 2,978 2,978
Computer expense - - - ~ - - 4,572 4,572 4,572
Total expenses before

depreciation 398,511 188,184 62,693 34,277 683,665 32,352 108,837 141,189 824,854
Depreciation 35,316 35,316 - - 70,632 - 1,416 1,416 72,048
Total expenses $433,827 $223,500 $62,693 $34,277 3754,297 $32,352 $110,253 $142,605 $896,902

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE, & EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC., db/a HO.ME.S., INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Year Ended Scptember 30, 2013

X Program Services
Real Estate Rental :
Supportive Residential/ Home Neighbor- Total Advocacy & General Total
‘ Housing Commercial ~ Ownership Hood Program Community and Supporting

Account Name Foster Youths Rentals Program Revitalization Services Awarcness Aministrative Services Total
Salaries, labor and payroll taxes $191,317 $35,751 $0 $0 $227,068 $33,885 $68,999 $102,884 $329,952
In-kind salary 31,250 12,500 31,250 25,000 100,000 12,500 12,500 25,000 125,000
Emplyee benefits 10,485 888 - - 11,373 5,768 9,542 15,310 26,683
Total salaries and benefits 233,052 49,139 31,250 25,000 338,441 52,153 91,041 143,194 481,635
Mortgage interest 60,821 26,325 - - 87,146 3,631 - 3,631 90,777
Repairs and maintenance 11,745 23,054 - - 34,799 - - - 34,799
Insurance 9,572 25,653 - - 35,225 - - - 35,225
Utilities 12,403 5,369 - - 17,772 741 - 741 18,513
Office 796 796 10,344 796 12,732 796 11,936 12,732 25,464
Loan closing costs 2,622 5,145 - - 7,767 - - - 7,767
Legal and accounting - - - - - - 5,650 5,650 5,650
Telephone 3,194 - 1,916 - 5,110 - 1,277 1,277 6,387
Bank and credit card charges - - - - - - 3,000 3,000 3,000
Computer expense - - - - - - 2,278 2,278 2,278

Total expenses before

depreciation 334,205 135,481 43,510 25,796 538,992 57,321 115,182 172,503 711,495
Depreciation 29,410 29410 - - 58,820 - 1,180 1,180 60,000
Total expenses $363,615 $164,891 $43,510 $25,796 $597,812 $57,321 $116,362 $173,683 $771,495

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE, & EFFECTIVE
NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
d/b/a HO.M.E.S., Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in net assets: $ 168,699 $ 113,878
Adjustments to reconcile change in net asssets
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 80,978 65,559
Forgiveness of debt - (235,367) (99,536)
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables 4,217 (5,324)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (7,389 1,180
(Decrease) in deferred revenue . (21,735) (1,594)
(Decrease) in accrued and other liabilities (584) (146)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (11,181). 74,017
CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES -
Acquisition of property and equipment (473,878) (293,606)
CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
(Increase) in loan closing costs (39,770) -
Borrowing of debt 561,642 214,571
Net cash provided by financing activities 521,872 214,571
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 36,813 (5,018)
CASH - beginning of year 88,071 93,089
CASH - end of year $ 124,884 § 88,071

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 76220 $ 91,035

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
d/b/a HO.M.E.S,, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 1 — Organization and Summag;» of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization — Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc.,
d/b/a HO.M.E.S., Inc. (“H.O.M.E.S”) is a Florida not-for-profit corporation, established on October 15, 1998
to provide affordable housing to low-income residents and to participate in neighborhood revitalization
projects in blighted transitional neighborhoods in Broward County, Florida.

The mission of H.O.M.E.S is to provide quality community and economic development, benefiting at risk and
disadvantaged residents and neighborhoods in Broward County, Florida by providing the following programs:

= Supportive housing for aged-out foster youths — providing subsidized rental
apartments for up to 25 young adults ages 18 to 24 (and their children) who have aged
out of the state’s foster care and relative care system, together with various types of
programmatic support (including paid internships, job and life coaching, financial
capability classes, and placing youths in school) with the goal of helping this at risk
population achieve self-sufficiency. :

* Residential and commercial rental program — providing quality rental apartments and
homes affordable to low-income families and quality office spaces affordable to local
small businesses.

* Homeownership program — HO.M.E.S. is one of four development partners in the
BAND Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) within Broward County,
administering Federal funds aimed at preventing neighborhood deterioration caused
by foreclosures. Foreclosed homes are purchased from the banks, renovated, and
then resold to qualified low and moderate income families who have completed a free
course on financial counseling and homeownership education and saved a 3.5% down
payment. Buyers are eligible for up to $40,000 in NSP funds to assist with their home
purchase and obtain mortgages from local financial institutions.

"  Neighborhood revitalization — Working with local business and civic groups and city

government to develop and implement a plan for improving and transforming the

_ business districts of the 13" street corridor (the area where H.O.M.E.S.’s offices and
property are located) in Fort Lauderdale, Broward County, Florida.

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by H.O.M.E.S. in the preparation of
the accompanying financial statements, ‘
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
d/b/aH.O.M.E.S., Inc. '

Notes to Financial Statements - continued
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Temporarily restricted net assets are grant and
contributions that have been limited to use by donors for a specific time period or purpose. Permanently
restricted net assets are donations that have been restricted to use by donors and are to be maintained into
perpetuity by H.O.M.E.S.

Revenue Recognition — All contributions are considered available for H.O.M.E.S.’s general program
unless specifically restricted by the donor. Amount received that are reported as temporarily or
permanently restricted support and increase the respective class of net assets. Contributions received
with temporary restrictions that are met in the reporting period are reported as unrestricted support
and increase unrestricted net assets. Investment income that is limited to specific uses by donor .
restriction is reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions are met in the same

reporting period as the income is recognized.

Property and equipment - H.O.M.E.S. capitalizes, at cost, all expenditures for property and equipment in
excess of $500. Contributed assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date of donation.
Expenditures which materially increase value, change in capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Depreciation is provided on
the straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the assets over 5 to 27.5 years. Depreciation expense for
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $77,608 and $65,559, respectively.

Donated Merchandise to Resale Store — Substantially all inventory in the resale store is donated. The value
of donations and the cost of merchandise sold are not included in the accompanying statement of activities
and changes in net assets,

The apartments of the supportive housing for aged-out foster youths are furnished with merchandise donated
_to the resale store. The value of these donations are not included in property and equipment in the
accompanying statements of financial position.

Contributed Services — The fair value of contributed services is recorded as public support and
expense when such services meet the following criteria:

a) The services performed are a normal part of the program or supporting services and would
otherwise be performed by salafied personnel. ’

b) Control is exercised over the employment and duties of the individuals donating services.

¢) The services performed are comparable to salaried positions. :

During the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, the only volunteer services which met the
- above criteria was the services of H.O.M.E.S.’s chief executive officer (CEOQ) who received below
market salary ($22,838) for the year ended September 30, 2014 and no compensation for her
services for the year ended September 30, 2013. The estimated value of her services were $104,802
and $125,000 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively and is included as in-
kind salary revenue on the accompanying statements of activities and changes in net assets and in-
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
d/b/a HOM.E.S., Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements - continued
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

kind salary expense on the accompanying statements of functional expenses for the years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, ,

Income Taxes — HOM.E.S. qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under section 501c (3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income tax is reported in these financial statements.

Tax return years that remain open for examination for Federal taxes are fiscal years ended September 30,
2013, 2012 and 2011.

Management Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications — Certain amounts in the 2013 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
2014 presentation.

NOTE 2 — Property and Equipment
Propertyband eQuipment at September 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of the following:

2014 2013

Land and building, rental property 4,777,291 $4,303,043
Office furniture and equipment 38.898 39.698

Total 4,816,189 4,342,741
Accumulated depreciation (370.483) (293,305)
: Property and equipment, net $4,445,706  $4.049.436

NOTE 3 - Related Party Transactions

At September 30, 2013 notes payable from H.O.M.E.S.’s CEO aggregated $215,830 and were unsecured, due
on demand and carried no stated interest rate. During the year ended September 30, 2014 these notes payable

were forgiven and are included as other revenue — forgiveness of debt in the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets.

NOTE 4 — Mortgage Notes Payable

Mortgage notes payable consists of the following:

2014 2013
Note payable to Stonegate Bank, maturing May 25 2014,
with monthly interest payments at prime based variable
rate, 5% per annum at September 30, 2013, collateralized
by a first mortgage on all H.O.M.E.S. owned property. $ - $1,776,233
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
- & EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
d/b/a H.O.MTE.S., Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements - continued
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
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Note payable to Bank United, maturing March 25, 2019,

With monthly payments of $10,425 including fixed

Interest at 4.31% per annum, collateralized by a first

Mortgage on H.O.M.E.S. owned property 1,884,625 -

Unsecured line of credit to Stonegate Bank, maturing
April 27 2015, with maximum borrowings of $35,000
and monthly interest payments at prime based variable
rate, 5% per annum at September 30, 2014. 15,165 31,635

Note payable to City of Fort Lauderdale, collateralized

by a mortgage on H.O.M.E.S. owned property (1212,

1216, 1218 & 1222 NE 6" Ave., buildings only) with

payments of $1,183 commencing August 2014 including

interest at 3% per annum. Deed restrictions require use

of property for residential rental to lower income persons,

using SHIP funds 171,323 169,248

Note payable to City of Fort Lauderdale, collateralized

by mortgage on H.O.M.E.S. owned property, (1234 NE 6th

Avenue, building only). Loan is interest free and payments

are deferred until January 2015, at which time the loan

will be forgiven if all conditions have been met. HO.M.E.S.

has agreed to use the property as a new business employing '

" low income persons using CDBG-R standards. . 90,000 90,000

Note payable to City of Fort Lauderdale, (pass through
SHIP funds), collateralized by mortgage on H.O.M.E.S.
owned property, (1212,1216,1218,& 1222 NE 6" Avenue)
with payments deferred for 18 years (due January 2030)

at which time the loan will be forgiven if all conditions have

been met. 184,563 184,563

Note payable to City of Fort Lauderdale, (pass through

SHIP funds), collateralized by mortgage on H.O.M.E.S.

owned property, (1228 NE 6" Avenue and 1233 NE 7"

Avenue). If all conditions are met, beginning in February

2012, loan will be reduced by one-fifth each year and

after five years the loan will be completely forgiven, 58,608 78,145
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
d/b/a HOM.E.S., Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements - continued
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
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Notes payable to City of Fort Lauderdale using CHDO

funds, collateralized by mortgages on H.O.M.E.S.

owned property, (1122 NE 1* Avenue — April 2013,

1317 NW 2™Avenue — May 2013, 1341 N. Andrews

Avenue - June 2014 and 1113 NE 2"'Avenue — June 2014).

Payments are deferred for 20 years through June 2034

at which time the loans will be forgiven if all the conditions

are met. Deed restrictions require use of property for

residential rental purposes. 682,210 214,565

Two notes payable to Broward County using SHIP funds,

collateralized by mortgages on H.O.M.E.S. owned property,

(1212, 1216,1218 & 1222 NE 6" Avenue, buildings only).

Payments are deferred for 30 years from April 2009

($160,000) and January 2010 ($45,200) at which time the

loans will be forgiven if all the conditions are met. Deed

restrictions require use of property for residential rental to

lower income persons. 205,200 205,200

Total mortgage notes payable $ 3291694 § 2,749,589
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HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES, MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE,
& EFFECTIVE NEIGHBORHOOD SOLUTIONS, INC.
d/b/a H.O.M.E.S., Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements - continued
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 5 —Resale Store

Resale store revenue and expenses for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of the following;:

2014 2013
Sales 36469 - 51,039
Expenses: :
Salaries and payroll taxes , 37,098 46,106
- Benefits 3.081 8.753
Total personnel costs 40,179 54,859
Depreciation 5,560 5,559
Repairs and maintenance 2,114 -
Office supplies and expense 2,345 3,275
Marketing 1,654 3,002
Utilities 3,173 3,565
Telephone 1,858 1,480
Computer expenses 1,374 1,364
Cost of merchandise 4,509 1,057
Total expenses 62,766 74,161
Net resale store income (loss) $ (26297) $.(23,122)

NOTE 6 — Subsequent Event

In accordance with FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, HO.M.E.S has evaluated all subsequent events
requiring recognition and disclosure in the financial statements through February 6, 2015, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued, H.O.M.E.S has determined that there are no material events
that would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. :
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ATTACHMENT
B3:

Copy of the most recent

Agency audit/monitoring report
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ATTACHMENT

B4

Organizational

Chart
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HOM.E.S.

A Charitable Organlization

KATHARINE S. BARRY
FOUNDER , PRESIDENT & CEO

Katharine founded H.OM.E.S., Inc. as a 501(c)(3) charitable
organization in 1998, and has been its full-time CEO since.
H.O.M.E.S. mission is to provide quality community and economic
development benefitting at-risk and disadvantaged neighborhoods
and residents in Broward County.

N ey

A member of The Florida Bar since 1980, she practiced law until 1994. Since then, she has worked
exclusively in the non-profit arena of community and economic development - including neighborhood
revitalization, and affordable housing construction, renovation, homebuyer education, sales, and
rental management. '

In 2008 under Katharine's leadership, H.O.M.E.S. purchased 2.3 acres of miscellaneous blighted
buildings and vacant lots along 13" Street in Ft. Lauderdale. This became an integral part of an entire
neighborhood redevelopment effort for the 13" St.Corridor, and now constitutes the main H.O.M.E.S,,
Inc. “campus” of residential and commercial property. In 2008, she helped establish the 13" Street
Alliance (serving as President 2008-11), to bring neighborhood businesses, residents and civic
associations together to accomplish its commercial redevelopment. Numerous neighborhood
improvements have since been made, and the City of Ft. Lauderdale. and Broward County have
created the new Central City CRA for the area (on which Advisory Board Katharine serves).

In 2009, H.O.M.E.S. opened a Supportive Housing & Self-Sufficiency Program for 18 — 24 year old
youth aged out of the state foster care system. HOMES’ furnished apartments house up to 23
extremely low-income at-risk youth, and their small children. They attend school & financial capability
classes, participate in group counseling, work in part-time paid internships, receive job coaching, and
learn life skills they need to become self-sufficient contributing members of the community. In 2011,
Katharine's vision of opening the Funky Flamingo 2nds thrift shop of gently used home furnishings
was realized. I's colorful truck picks up furniture weekly to keep the youth apartments furnished, and
to sell in the store.

Katharine served (2002-2006) as founding President of BAND (Broward Alliance for Neighborhood
Development, Inc.), Broward’s only local intermediary and advocate for non-profit housing and
communitity development activities, remained on its Board through 2010, and currently participates on
BAND's NSP Development Team — utilizing federal funds to purchase, rehab, and resell foreclosed
homes, and provide buyers with financial counseling and homebuyer education. In 2010, she joined
the Board of the Florida Alliance of Community Development Corporations, and currently serves as
Chair.

A sixth-generation and die-hard Floridian, Barry grew up in Alachua County, spent a college decade in
Tallahassee, has a get-away cabin on the Sante Fe River, and has lived in Fort Lauderdale for the
past 33 years. She is the mother of two grown children and a dog, and has been married for 33 years.

690 NE 13" Street, Suite 102
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33304
Office Phone: (954) 563-5454
e-mail: kbarry@homesfl.org
Website: www.homesfl.org
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Linda M. Taylor

2571 NW 15% Court, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311
(954) 552-0225 cell
Itaylorconsult@gmail.com

OBJECTIVE

Consultant/full time contract position with foundation, private or public sector in Resource
Business Development and Planning, economic or housing development.

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

Thirty (30) years’ experience in providing direct service to consumers; Fifteen years’
experience in affordable housing and economic development

Proven ability in workshop facilitation, marketing and sales; utilizing effective
development and management methods

Strong organizational and supervisory skills; team leader/player in collaborative
environments; experience working in multi-cultural settings

Excellent oral and written communication skills with multi-media experience
Computer proficient, Microsoft Office XP Professional (Windows XP) and ‘the Internet

PROFESSIONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Professional and Administrative

Created social entrepreneurship project for nonprofit (Funky Flamingo Seconds)
Managed $1.5 million dollar organization as Chief Operation Officer; Responsible for
daily activities of agency promoting affordable housing for low to moderate income
persons

Managed outreach activities for local Neighborhood Stabilization Programs for Non
Profit facilitating 15 million in program funding

Increased operational budget of Housing and Financial Literacy Programs via grants
from public and private source

Managed staff, agency partnerships, consultants, volunteers, and interns for program
related activities :

Prepared loan packages for partner lenders and funding packages for Florida Housing
Coalition subsidy assistance for buyers of Broward Affordable Neighborhood
Development home purchases

Developed and managed governmental, community and corporate relationship
building in the area of affordable housing

Created local government and community based collaborative partnerships

Assisted in the acquisition of land for residential new construction scattered lot
project

Communications

Orchestrated collaborative effort of multi agency AFI grant application and day to day
management of IDA program. Wrote press releases, handled advertising of program
and pubilic lottery process

Coordinated outreach and intake of over 500 applicants for the two phases of the
IDA program

Managed distribution of thousands of newsletters and flyers chronicling community
economic and housing development activities, events and successes
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Created Memorandum of Understandings (MOU) between local affiliate organizations
and U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Coordinated Outreach activities for Neighborhood stabilization Program via BAND

Development

Managed outreach, advertising and sales of single family home scattered lot project
in Washington Park, Broward Estates and Hollywood (Broward County, FL)
Prepared home owners for purchase, walk through, punch list, and post issue
resolution between Urban League of Broward County the developer, the contractor
and the buyer

Acted as a liaison between the buyer, the contractor, the lender and the subsidy
source

Grant Writing/Consulting

Wrote applications and acquired funding from HUD, State of Florida, Broward County
Community Development, John L. and James S. Knight Foundation, Consumer
Action, City of Lauderhill, City of Fort Lauderdale and the U.S. Department of
Children and Families, Jim Moran Foundation, BB&T Bank, TD Bank, Citibank,
Community Foundation of Broward, local banks and others

Outsourced the home buyer workshop to local municipalities creating a revenue
stream for Urban League of Broward County

Program/Project Development

Created Affordable, Supportive Housing Program for Youth aged out of Foster and
Relative Care (2" largest provider of beds for TIL youth in Broward County)
Prepared guidelines for NSP, IDA, Home Ownership and Financial Literacy Program
Tracked and reported program outcomes to funding sources

Recruited trained and supervised staff ‘

Identified community need, created pipeline of buyers at varying stages of readiness
Created educational and counseling program graduating nearly one thousand (1,000)
families

Directed IDA program activities targeting poverty level participants for economic
development initiative focused on home ownership, entrepreneurial and educational
goal setting

Training

Facilitated monthly Financial Capability Training Classes for youth aged out of foster
and relative care

Facilitated “Train the Trainer” in the area of Financial Literacy for internal (staff) and

more than twenty (20) external not-for-profit organizations

Assisted National Black Caucus With Ownership Wealth Monthly forums on home
ownership for potential buyers

Facilitated Community Based Monthly meetings on Credit and Home Ownership to
shelter residents

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Chief Operation Officer H.0.M.E.S. Inc. 2014 - present

Consultant H.O.M.E.S. Inc. 2006 - 2014
Piney Grove Boys Academy 2013 - present
Liberia Economic Social Development 2010 - present
Urban League of Broward 2006 - 2007

Broward Alliance for Neighborhood
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Development 2006 - present

Habitat for Humanity of Broward 2012 - 2013
The Shepherds Way 2007 - 2008
Team Leader Urban League of Broward County, Inc. 1999 - 2006
Sales Metropolitan Life Insurance Co. 1997 - 1999
Jr. Citi Executive Citicorp 1993 - 1997

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS

Bridges Out of Poverty 2014
Neighborworks National Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling 2012
Neighborworks Financial Capability » 2012
Neighborworks Home Ownership Certification 2005 & 2003
Neighborworks Financial Literacy Certification 2005
Certified Financial Literacy Trainer Consumer Action 2002
Certified Financial Literacy Trainer University Of Chicago, Ext. 2003
Certified Housing Counselor, FIorida Housing Coalition 1999
American Homeowners Educational Counseling Institute 2001
Mortgage Loan Origination Certificate Miami Dade Community 2001
Predatory Lending Awareness Training, United Way & FAU 2000 & 2002, respectively
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Sonny C. Lopez

841 NW 468" Ave
Coconut Creek, FL 33321

C 954-851-5166

sonnygarzon@hotmail.com

Experienced Senior AP/AR/Payroll Administrator/Accountant/Tax Preparer

Skills:

Bilingual: English/Spanish

Microsoft Office, QuickBooks Premier, Peachtree, SAP

Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable :
Federal and State taxes, individual and corporation, partnership and trust income
tax returns (1120, 1040)

Payroll processing and check disbursement

Management Skills and decision maker

Inventory control including ordering and procurement

Contract negotiation, preparation and review

Operation skills

Human Resources, employee benefits, deductions, EEOC

Cash and Funds management, reconciliation, deposits, ledgers
Non profit and profit accounting background '
Property management experience _
Compliance with GAAP and all federal, state and local requirements

Experience:

H.O.M.E.S. INC May 10/2010 - Present
Chief Financial Officer

Non-Profit Organization

Responsible for Property Management Accounting (Commercial & Residential).
Responsible for Cash Flow Management, accounting reconciliation and financial
reporting.

Oversee budgeting, financial forecasting, and cash flow for administration and
programs

Work directly with the CEO on the organization’s financial, budgeting, and
administrative processes—including HR, payroll, and benefits functions to
continuously developing and improving systems

Interface direct with tenants and collection of rents

Budget preparation and forecasting as a Financial Planner

Prepare financial statements for grant applications.

Administrator of all in kind income and expense

Responsible for all the revenue and debt.
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* Responsible for the Selection of the Tenants in residential and commercial
properties.

» Donors expenses management

e Prepare private and public contracts

Trusscorp International June 2005 — August 2009
Senior Accounting

* Responsible for the Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable using QuickBooks.
* Processing payroll for employees and performing human resources functions.

* Prepare Balance, Profit and Lost Statements and Cash Elow

* Responsible for purchasing and negotiation of cost of good sold

* Responsible for all vendors and suppliers

* Handling inventory reports, banking, cash flow, profit & loss reports.

* Prepare and file monthly sales tax and use tax, web caps for worker's compensation.
* Responsible for collections. .

* Prepare financial statements and bank reconciliations.

* Process lien and legal procedures to customers :

* Extensive customer relations in South Florida and Latin America

* Overseeing all duties concerning to the operation of the office.

* Additional to all above process paperwork for US Customs for Import & Export for a
company called Pezco Exporters LLC . (same owner of Trusscorp Int'l)

* Process all reports and records for Pezco Exporters LLC as well,

99 C Stuff o Sept 1999 — April 2004
Staff Accounting

* Processing payroll for almost 400 employees thru ADP, hiring, background check,
schedules, calculate deductions, check employment history and references.

* Responsible for the cash office, and cash flow

* Banking, financial reports, process P & L reports and Balance

* Human resources, workers compensation, goals, budgets.

* Accounts receivable, Accounts Payable, Inventories and Collections.

* Processing financial statements and all activities concerning to the office.

* End of the month reports

Education:

* SAN MARTIN UNIVERSITY, Bogota Colombia Bachelor in Business Administration
1999

* FIU, Financial courses 2007 - 2009

* IRS Certified to process e-file 2008-Present

* FLORIDA COLLEGE English as a Second Language 2000 - 2003
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RESUME
MARGARETTE H. HAYES
7601 Banyan Way
Tamarac, FL 33321

Email: anticgtee@aol.com

Qualifications:

Administrative, managerial and technical experience in the areas of federal and
state contract administration for housing programs and community and economic
development; grant writing; program planning, compliance, development and
design; banking and real estate. These skills afford me the opportunity to provide
highly responsible technical and professional management in the housing,
community and economic development, mortgage, real estate or real estate
development arena. Community Liaison for residents, advisory boards, nonprofit
and for profits agencies.

Education:
1972 B.S. Degree, Business Administration, Florida Agricultural and
Mechanical University, Tallahassee, FL.

Employment History:
2010-Present H.O.M.E.S., Inc.

Project Management (CDBG, HOME and private foundation -
grants) for the development of affordable housing, community and
economic development projects. Grant writer, CHDO Project
Manager and Monitoring & Compliance Officer.

1997-2009  City of Fort Lauderdale, FL
1990-1991

Housing and Community Development Manager and
Housing Programs Supervisor

Administration and coordination of five (5) federal and state
contracts for housing and community development
projects/activities for the City’s Office of Housing and Community
Development with a budget of $10-13 million annually,
supervising a staff of 17.

Organized, implemented and coordinated technical and
professional housing programs, community, economic and
physical development work in conjunction with HUD funded
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Community Development Block Grant (CDBG); Home Investment
Partnership Program (HOME); Housing Opportunities for Persons
with HIV/AIDS (HOPWA); the Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG);
and the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Programs.

Provided administrative and technical guidance for the design and
development of long-range housing programs, contracts, project
plans and the implementation and coordination of related projects
and activities.

Managed the City’s Housing Rehabilitation and Housing
Redevelopment Programs.

Provided oversight of the City’s Citizens Participation programs,
coordinated public meetings, forums and hearings. Also
supervised -the preparation of technical applications for
intergovernmental aid and/or private sector funding in connection
with housing and community development projects.

Served as staff liaison to intergovernmental officials, private
consultants, architects, contractors and developers and citizen
advisory boards and neighborhood based groups.

1996-1997  Broward County Office of Housing Finance
County SHIP Administrator

Administered the five (5) million dollars State SHIP Housing Trust
Fund for Broward County. Coordinated the SHIP Program via
contracts/Interlocal agreements for the Cities of Plantation, Coral
Springs, and Sunrise. Served as the County’s liaison with the
Florida Housing Finance Corporation to ensure program
compliance. Provided technical assistance to the Executive and
Assistant Directors, Housing Manager and development staff.
Provided preparation of budgets and annual reports and monitored
non-profits and sub grantees.

1992-1996  City of Pompano Beach
Community Development Program Specialist

Administration of housing and real estate related projects.
Developed a Request For Proposal, housing contracts and
implemented the development of Novelty Park, a 20 unit single-
family affordable community with a passive community park.
Novelty Park was the result of the City’s redevelopment of the
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Grace Apartments, a dilapidated and blighted migrant farmer
housing community located within the heart of the City. After
creation of the RFP and selection of the contractor, provided
technical assistance to the contractor; secured Section 108 Loan
financing for the relocation of the residents, infrastructure
improvements and construction of the new homes. Also
coordinated mortgage assistance for those re51dents in need of a
mortgage through Bank of America.

Developed preliminary RFP for Valencia Estates in the Collier
City neighborhood for the development of additional affordable
housing units

1990-1991  City of Fort Lauderdale
Housing Programs Supervisor (Temporary)

Administration of housing programs for the City’s Housing and
Community Development Division.

1989-1990 Keyes Company Realtors
Real Estate Salesperson

Real Estate Sales Agent. Wrote sales contracts and expedited real
estate sales.

1975-1988  Glendale Federal Bank (Bank of America)
Assistant Vice President/Branch Bank/Loan Agency Manager

Directed the day-to-day operation of branch bank offices of
Glendale Federal Bank (later merged with Bank of America) in
North Palm Beach and Miami Lakes. Served as Bank liaison for
community and professional organizations. Worked as Mortgage
Loan Agency Branch Manager providing technical assistance for
mortgages to income eligible first time homebuyers.

References will be provided upon request.
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GEORGE BROWN
1233 Northeast 7Avenue
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33304
954-394-4590 HOME
754-366-9928 CELL

adjutantbrown@yahoo.com

Abilities:

e  Work well in a high pressure environment

e Well-organized and efficient

o Skilled at organizing complex projects, identifying
project priorities, and delegating tasks.

o Self-starter, goal-oriented strategist whose
confidence, perseverance and vision promote
success

Experience:
H.O.M.E.S., Inc. _ , 2009 to Present
Ft. Lauderdale
Responsibilities: Facilities manager for approximately 30 properties; interior- painting; hanging drywall; minor
electrical and plumbing; general repairs; exterior-painting; grounds keeping; maintenance and handyman
repairs,young men mentor coach.

T & G Enterprise . 1995 - Present
Lauderhill

Owner operator responsible for purchasing building and maintenance supplies, machinery, equipment and
furniture; executing daily operations of keeping school bath and class rooms clean; cultivate lawns using power
- aerator, and chemicals according to specifications; cleaned, waxed and polished floors by hand and machine;
removed dirt and blemishes from floors using various cleaning solvents and compounds, according to
composition of floors..

Adecco 2006 to 2009
Ft. Lauderdale

Responsibilities: Driver/General Laborer loading and unloading materials, parts and products onto and from
pallets, skids, conveyors, trucks, manually or utilizing hoist; delivered metal parts and stock to designated work
sites for machining, using electric pallet mover, hoist and overhead crane.

Snelling Personnel Services/ Sears Remodeling Team - 2000 to 2005
Ft. Lauderdale

Responsibilities: Supervisor; executed daily operations of sub-contractors and general laborers; supervised
employees, scheduled work hours, resolved conflicts, and negotiated salaries; structured and maintained a
safe and inclusive work place; successfully handled the renovations of more than eight (8) sears stores.

Atrium Personnel Services/ Motorola ‘ 1996 to 2000
Ft. Lauderdale A

Responsibilities: Line worker/ Assembly technician; established and adjusted work procedures to meet
production schedules, using the capacity of machines and equipment; analyzed and resolved work problems
and assisted workers in solving work problems; successfully performed SMT soldering and software
installation Microsoft Office, Windows XP. Nominated and awarded 3 times employee of the month and once
employee of the year.
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Sheraton Yankee Clipper Hotel 1992 to 1996
Ft. Lauderdale
Responsibilities: Housekeeping office manager; facilities and room Inspector; Order supplies from vendors

Best Western Beachcomber Hotel 1986 to 1992
Pompano Beach :
Responsibilities: Head houseman; assistant bellman; executive housekeeper; greeting and checking guest into
hotel rooms; inspect rooms before guest arrival; order supplies from vendors; supervise staff of 35 men and
women. .

Education
C.C. Sweeting High School 1978
Nassau, Bahamas ’
Diploma

Volunteer

Men’s Mentoring Program for aged out foster kids

Boys Scouts

Minister

National Armor Bearer for World Wide Church of God in Christ
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLIC;Y

Purpose:

H.O.M.E.S., Inc. has adopted a Conflict of Interest Policy for the purpose of bringing
clarification and transparency to interactions between the Agency and the programs/projects
undertaken by H.O;M.E.S., Inc. in which staff receives compensation for work performed.
Additionally, this policy helps to avoid conflicts with regard to any ﬁnancie;l benefit and/or
decision making authority related to programs/projects. This policy is intended to
supplement but not replace any applicable Federal, state orlocal Iawé governing conflicts of

interest applicable to nonprofits and charitable organizations.

Apnplication to Interested Parties:
This Policy applies to all “Interested Parties”, who is defined as follows: (1) as to

H.O.M.ES., Inc., the H.O.M.E.S., Inc. Corporation itself, and any staff persons or any officer |
with delegated powers over the affairs and/or funds of H.OM.E.S., Inc.; and (2) as to
H.OM.E.S.,, Inc. any individual principal, staff person, or officer of any organizational
" member, and (3) any spouse, other close relative, close friend or employer of another

Interested Party, or a business entity in which an Interested Party has an interest.
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3. Statement of Policy

al

Duty to Disclose Compensation: In every instance in which an Interested Party
will or may be paid for parﬁcipaﬁng in performing the work involved in a
H.O.M.E.S., Inc. program/project, such compensation and the nature and quantity
of work to be performed in exchange for compensation, shall be disclosed to the
H.0.M.E,S., Inc. President/CEO. It should be noted that the H.O.M.E.S., Inc. By-
Laws allow compensation to be paid only for services performed. |
Approval of Compensa}ion: All compensation paid to an Interested Party shall
be reviewed by and approved by_I—I.O.M.E.S.,,Inc.’s President/CEO.

Recusal of Interested Parties: Before a H.0.M.E.S., Inc. decisioh is made on
compensation of an Tnterested Party, any staff member may ask for recusal of the
Interested Party/Parties proposed to be compensated for the pﬁrpose of avoiding’
the appearance of a conflict of interest. All Interested Paxrties shall recuse '
t-hemselves from any vote taken on the compensation.

Conflicts B;.tween H.0.M.E.S., Inc. and Staff members: H.O.M.E.S, Ine. staff
shall refrain from competing with H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. for grant funds, projects and

programs, without first discussing same with the H.O.M.E.S., Inc. President/CEO.
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4. Determining Whether A Conflict Of Interest Exists

a. Process: Ifany H.OM.E.S., Inc. staff person believes that a Conflict of Interest

has occurred or is about to occur, the same shall be brought to the attention of the

H.O.M.E.S., Inc. i’resident/CEO. If the perceived Contflict is not resolved at this

level to the satisfaction of the above parties, then the issues shall be brought

before the H.O.M.E.S,, Inc. Boarci at a duly noﬁcgd meeting, All facts which bear

on the issue shall be disclosed at such meeting,

b. Substance: Inreviewing whether a set of circumstanced do in fact constitute a

Conflict of Interest, the following should be considered:

1.

Is compensation being awarded disproportionately for work performed or
to be.performéd by the Interested Party being compensated?

Was the process used to select tﬁe Interested Party fair and reasonable?

Were approiariate.disclosmeS« made of any Interested Party relationship and
of proposed compensation prior to award?

Were appropriate votes taken by the Board as set forth in this Policy?

Has any undue influence .beert exerted by an Interested Party over other
parties?

Has any Interested Party acted in a manner which they knew or should
have known would cause-harm to aﬁother, Interested Party?

Has any Interested Party acted in a manner contrary to the provisions or

spirit of this Policy?
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5 Annual Statements: Each staff member and principal officer, shall annually sign a
statement which affirms that siich person (a) has. receiveci a copy of the conflict of interest
policy, (b) has read and understands the policy, (c) has agreed fo comply with the policy, and
(@) understands that the Agency is a charitable organization and that in order to main its federal
tax-exemption, it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more ofits tax-
exempt purposes.

6.  Periodic Review: To ensure that the Agency operates in a manner that is consistent with
its charitable purposes and that it does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its status
as an organization exempt from federal income tax, a pe;riodic review of the conflict of |

interest policy and requirements shall be conducted.
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LINE OF CREDIT

FLORIDA COMMUNITY
LOAN FUND
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EXPERTISE AND CAPITAL TO HELP YOUR PROJECT SUCCEED. |}

December 21, 2016

Ms. Katherine S. Barry
CEO

H.O.M.E.S,, Inc.

690 NE 13™ Street

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304

Re:  Commitment for a $250,000 Revolving Line of Credit to Housing Opportunities,
Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc. (HOMES, Inc.) by
the Florida Community Loan Fund, Inc.

Dear Ms. Barry:

This letter (the “Commitment”) constitutes the Commitment of the Florida Community
Loan Fund, Inc. (the “Loan Fund”) to provide the entity described below as the borrower
(the “Borrower") with a revolving line of credit (the “Line" or "Loan"). The terms and
conditions of the Commitment are as follows:

1. BORROWER: Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood
Solutions, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit 501c(3) corporation.

2. MAXIMUM LOAN AMOUNT: $250,000.00.
3. INTEREST RATE: A fixed rate of five percent (5.00%).

4. MATURITY DATE: The Line shall mature on the date two (2) years from the date of
Line closing. In addition, no individual Property (as defined below) being constructed

shall remain as collateral on the Line for more than twelve (12) months from the date it is
added to the Line.

5. REPAYMENT TERMS: Commencing on the last day of the month following the closing
date of each Property, monthly payments of interest only are due and payable on the last
day of each month, with the principal balance of each Property added to the Line, if not
sooner paid, together with any unpaid interest and fees, due and payable twelve (12)
months from the date added to the Line.

6. LOAN COMMITMENT FEE: One percent (1.0% or $2,500.00) which shall be due and
payable at the acceptance of this Loan Commitment. '

7. COMMITMENT EXPIRATION: This Commitment expires, at the Loan Fund's option, in
ninety (S0) days from the date of this Commitment.

8. SECURITY PROPERTY: First mortgages on residential parcels (the “Land”) and the
improvements located or to-be-constructed thereon (the “Improvements”) on scattered
sites in Broward County, Florida, or other such real estate collateral that the Loan Fund

Main Office: 501 N. Magnolia Ave, Suite 100 W Orlando, FL 32801-1364
407.246.0846 W f: 407.246.0856 B www.fclf.org '
Orlando ® Jacksonville @ Sarasota M Tampa M Fort Lauderdale
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may accept in its absolute and sole discretion. The Land and Improvements are
individually and collectively herein called the “Collateral”, “Home", or “Property”.

_ 9. LOAN PURPOSE: To assist with the purchase and renovation or new construction of
single family properties for sale to low and moderate income families.

10. SPEC LIMIT: Defined as a Home without a pre-qualified buyer and executed sales
contract (“Spec”). Spec Homes may be permitted under the Line in the sole discretion of
Loan Fund and under the following condition: No more than four (4) single-family Spec
properties may be placed under the Line at any one time. Loan Fund reserves the right to
review and approve any proposed Property to be added to the Line.

11. MAXIMUM LOAN TO VALUE: The Loan-to-Value of the Loan may not exceed Eighty
Percent (80%) of the as-is appraised value for acquisition and as-renovated or as-
completed appraised value of all properties under the Loan (see also Term 12.7).

12, LOAN DOCUMENTS AND ITEMS REQUIRED FOR LOAN CLOSING: At Loan closing,
and for each Home that will be Collateral for the Line in the future, Borrower shall
execute the following Loan documents and submit the following items to Loan Fund
pursuant to this Commitment and normal loan closing requirements. All documents and
items shall be satisfactory in form and substance to the Loan Fund. Documents 12.2 and
12.5 below shall only be required to be executed with the first Property closing.

12.1 Promissory Note: including provisions for the collection of late payment charges
of five percent (5%) of the.amount of any late payment, no prepayment penalty
and a default rate of thirteen percent (13.00%).

12.2 Loan Agreement: including (a) provisions for the disbursement of Loan funds
after the initial Loan closing set forth in Term 13; (b) provisions for the general
loan conditions set forth in Term 14; (c) provisions for Spec Homes as set forth
in Term 10, and (d) provision for each Note to mature one year from its effective
date.

12.3 Mortgage and Security Agreement: prowding the Loan Fund with a first lien on
the Collateral and a security interest in all fixtures and tangible and intangible
personal property necessary for the operation of the Property listed above in
Term 8.

124 Title Insurance: a standard, ALTA mortgagee title policy, providing coverage for
the full principal amouint of the Loan amount allocated for each specific
Property added to the Line now or in the future, listing only those title
exceptions acceptable to the Loan Fund.

125 Corporate Borrowing Authority Documents: corporate documents which

- evidence the authorization for the actions to be taken by Borrower in
connection with this Commitment and the Line, including articles of
incorporation, 501 (c)(3) letter from the Internal Revenue Service, by-laws,
corporate borrowing resolutions and current certlflcotes of "good standing”
from the Florida Division of Corporations.

12.6 Purchase and Sale Contracts: a copy of the Purchose and Sale Contract
executed between the seller of the Property and the Borrower, for each Property
acquired for funding with the Line, if applicable.

127 Appraisdls: current (within sixty (60) days of each Property closmg) appraisal of
the Property, reflecting the market value of the Property as-is and as-renovated,

mms-
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conducted by state certified appraisers satisfactory to the Loan Fund. The
Loan-to-Value on the Property shall not be greater than 80% of the as- is
appraised value for acquisition and 80% of the as-renovated or as-completed
appraised value for acquisition and renovation or acquisition and construction,
as appropriate.

12.8 Loan-to-Value Requirement: Borrower acknowledges that Loan Fund was
induced to make the Loan based upon a specific loan-to-value ratio (the
“Original Loan-to-Value Ratio”) and that has been made known that Loan Fund
will conduct periodic reviews of Collateral value. Loan documents will provide
that, if any updated appraisal received by Loan Fund reflects that the appraised
value of the Property has decreased from the onglncl appraised value, and if
such decrease results in a loan-to-value ratio which is higher than the Original
Loan-to-Value Ratio, Borrower shall, within thirty (30) days of Loan Fund's
written request, either: (@) make a principal payment (the “ Prepayment”) under
the Note in an amount sufficient to maintain the Original Loan-to-Value Ratio;
or (b) pledge such additional collateral for the Loan that is acceptable to Loan
Fund in its sole discretion. Any Prepayment shall not entitle Borrower to a
release of any of the Property.

12.9 Survey: recent survey of the Property by a registered surveyor, acceptable to the
Loan Fund, certified, at a minimum, to the Loan Fund, the title insurance
company and Borrower.

12.10 Public/Private Assistance Agreement: a copy of the fully executed agreements
between Borrower and any sources of additional capital to the Property.

12.11 Flood Hazards: evidence as to whether or not the Land is located within an area
identified as having special flood hazards pursuant to the Flood Disaster
Protection Act of 1973. If the Land is located in a special flood hazard areg,
flood insurance naming the Loan Fund as mortgagee will be required.

12.12 Insurance: a) comprehensive general liability coverage for Borrower provided on
an ACORD 25 form with the Loan Fund named as additional insured; b)
builder's risk or an “all risk” non-reporting, completed value property insurance
policy, as applicable, designating the Loan Fund as mortgagee and loss payee,
granting the Loan Fund at least 30 days’ notice of intended cancellation and
provided on an ACORD 27 or 28 form, as gpplicable.

12.13 Compliance with Laws: satisfactory evidence that construction of the
improvements and intended uses of the Property are in compliance with all
applicable laws, regulations and ordinances, including local zoning laws.

12.14 Environmental Site Assessments and Environmental Complionce and Indemnity
Agreement A current (within past 6 months) Phase | Environmental Site
Assessment of the Property performed in accordance with ASTM 1527-13. The
ESA must be prepared by a firm reasonably acceptable to the Loan Fund,
signed and sealed by a Florida licensed professional geologist or engineer (as
well as have the EP Certification required under ASTM 1527-13), and must be
satisfactory in all respects to Loan Fund in its sole discretion. Additional
asbestos, lead based paint and radon reports may also be required in Loan
Fund'’s sole discretion. This Commitment will be null and void if Loan Fund’s
review of the ESA or additional reports indicates any continuing environmental
risk or concerns as determined by Loan Fund. In addition, the Borrower will be
required to sign an agreement indemnifying the Loan Fund from any
environmental hazards that may be present.
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12.15 Sources and Uses of Funds/Cost Breakdown: sources and uses of funds for the

Property, including a detailed breakdown of the cost of constructing or
renovating the Improvements and an itemization of non-construction costs.

12.16 For Presold Properties: a) an executed purchase contract with a purchaser; b)

12.17

evidence of valid and satisfactory pre-qualification by a mortgage lender for an
amount sufficient to purchase the property; c) Evidence of any subsidies
necessary for the buyer to purchase the property; and c) an acceptable and fully
completed affordability study and/or income certification sufficient to verify
qualification as a low to moderate income individual or family.

Miscellaneous: any other Loan documents or items that are customarily
provided in loan transactions of this type.

13. CONDITIONS FOR DISBURSEMENT OF LOAN FUNDS AFTER THE INITIAL LOAN
CLOSING: In addition to the relevant items in Term 12 above for each Home for which
financing is requested, the following documents and items shall be provided and
satisfactory in form and substance to the Loan Fund:

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5
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Construction Documents: a) sources and uses of funds for the Property,
including a detailed cost breakdown of construction or renovation of the
Property by construction trade and non-construction costs; b)
construction/completion timeline; c) plans and specifications; d) contract
between Borrower and architect providing supervisory services; e) fixed price
contract between Borrower and general contractor, if applicable f) completed
value builder’s risk insurance evidence naming the Loan Fund as mortgagee
and loss payee, and granting the Loan Fund at least 30 days notice of intended
cancellation; g) the notice of commencement and required building permits for
each Home with a statement that they have been, or will be, posted on the
Property site prior to the commencement of construction.

Request for Payment: signed by Borrower, setting forth a detailed breakdown of
the Loan disbursement requested, including all supporting documentation and a
signed requisition of the general contractor and approved by Borrower's
supervising architect, if required, all applicable inspections, and, at Loan Fund's
option, Loan Fund's 3" party construction consultant, where applicable and as
provided in Term 13.5.

Sales Contract / Permanent Financing Commitment / Sources and Uses of
Funds: upon sale of a Home, the sales contract between Borrower and the
home buyer, evidence of pre-qudlification for financing from a financial
institution, and evidence of home buyer's household income to verify
qualification as a low or moderate income individual or family.

Owner's Affidavit and Lien Waivers: notarized partial lien waivers executed by
the general contractor, specifying the amount paid in consideration of such
partial release and certification by Borrower that funds disbursed to date by the
Loan Fund have been paid to the appropriate parties.

Construction Consultant's Approval: The Loan Fund reserves the right to
designate a construction consultant to inspect construction work for conformity
with the plans and specifications and approval of Borrower's request for Loan
disbursements. A written report of the results of the consultant’s inspection of
construction work may be required for a disbursement of Loan funds.
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Final Construction Disbursement: Prior to the final Loan disbursement for each
home, the following documents shall be submitted to the Loan Fund, if
applicable: (a) as-built survey; (b) certificate of occupancy; (c) contractor’s final
waiver of lien and certification of completion; (d) final lien waiver from any
subcontractor or supplier having filed a Notice to Owner; and (d) construction
consultant’s final approval, if required.

14, GENERAL CONDITIONS:

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

145

14.6

14.7

Assignments: Neither this Commitment nor any interest in it may be assigned
by Borrower without the Loan Fund's prior written approval.

Einancial Statements: Borrower shall submit annual and, if requested, interim
financial statements. Annual statements shall be audited and include a
Statement of Activities (revenue and expenses) and a Statement of Financial
Position (balance sheet) prepared by a certified public accountant, and
submitted within one hundred twenty (120) days of Borrower's fiscal year-end.
Additional Debt: During the term of this Line, Borrower will not incur any
additional debt without the written permission of the Loan Fund.

Social Impact Reporting: Borrower agrees that regular reporting of community
and social impact criteria will be required as a condition of Loan Fund'’s ‘
financing. This reporting will made no less than annually and may include, but
not be limited to such items as: number of temporary and permanent jobs
created and other job creation details; specific education or social services to
clients; environmentally sustainable outcomes in the project; the pro-active
involvement of the surrounding community in the project; or any other such
information as the Loan Fund deems necessary.

Publicity: The Loan Fund shall have the right to secure printed publicity through
newspapers and other media concerning the project and its financing. Borrower
shall provide the Loan Fund with photographs of the Project and demographic
information regarding the clients who receive housing and other services from
Borrower. ;

Loan Application: The issuance of this Commitment is based upon the accuracy
of Borrower's representations and statements, any loan application and all .
additional information, representations, exhibits and other matters submitted to
the Loan Fund for consideration. The Loan Fund shall have the option to
declare this Commitment to be breached, and therefore, void, if there shall have
been any material misrepresentation or misstatement or any material error in
anything submitted to the Loan Fund.

Expenses: All costs and expenses in connection with the Line, including, but not
limited to, the costs of attorneys, documentary stomp and intangible taxes, the
construction consultant and recording fees, shall be paid by Borrower.

15. RELEASE OF SECURITY PROPERTY: Until the Loan has been paid in full, each
Property shall be released from the Loan Fund upon request and payment to the Loan
Fund of a minimum release amount of the total amount advanced directly for acquisition
and the hard and soft costs of renovation or construction of the Property, plus accrued
interest, to be determined in the sole discretion of the Loan Fund.

December 21, 2016, Page 5 156

EE%.@' :

CAM # 17-0708
Exhibit 2
Page 171 of 192



16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This:Commitment; when accepted, shdll.constitute the-entire
agreement between Lotin-Fund: dnd’ Borrowet; and:it ray nét be dltered-or arherided
unless agreedto in: wntlng by‘the Loan Furid and Borrower.

17. ACCEPTANCE Indicate your dcceptance of Loan Fund's offer: by: sngnmg below and

y thie:original of the Co mitrent: Letter to.us. by January6; 2017, 6

Commltm 't Letter will: GUtOmGItICGl"y terminate without further dction by any: pcrty., The

Loar Fund » priorto closing, make-additional: requnrements inorder to: con jith
_____ or state-regulations, governmental: agencies; and-as the-Lean Fund’s | ega ~counsel

may deem:necessary regarding legal matters,.but not-business matters. It:isfurther

uriderstood and agreed that the terms ahd conditions of this: Commitment Letter will

survive the.closing of the: Loan hereby contemplated.

Return:.a:¢heck forthe Loan:Origination Fee (see Term: 6)-and-one:ofiginal’ Comm:tment
letter to the main ofﬁce of the Logn Fuid. (at 501 North Mdgnoliar. Avenue, Suite 100,
Otlandd, Flotida32801) no. laterthan January 6, 2017.

Sincerely,

FLORIDA GOMMUNyf

Nelson W Black lll |
Chief Lendlng Officer

The undersigned:accepts:the foregoifig commitiment on behdlf of Borrower.

Housing:Opportunities, Mortgage-Assistance; & Effective’ Neighbcrhood Selutions, Inc.

g G

7 Kathenine s, Bcrry T

Date: . /SZZ/?’CH '(*

'-:-.ﬁ;?ﬂ,

Deceinber 21,2016, Page 6 157

CAM # 17-0708
Exhibit 2
Page 172 of 192



LINE OF CREDIT

COMERICA BANK
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Comerich Bank

Master Revolving Note
Daily Adjusting LIBOR Rate
Demand-Optional Advances (Business and Commerclal Loans Only)

AMOUNT NOTE DATE MATURITY DATE
$100,000.00 ON DEMAND

ON DEMAND (or as otherwise provided In this Note), FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned promise(s) to pay.to the order of
COMERICA BANK (hereln called "Bank”), at any office of the Bank in the State of Fiorida, the principal sum of One Hundred
Thousand and 00/100 DOLLARS ($100,000.00), or so miich of sald sum as has been advanced and Is then oulstanding under this
Note, together with Interest thereon as herelnafter set forth.

1

This Note Is a note under which Advances, repayments and re-Advances may be made from time to time, subject to the terms and
condltions of this Note,

AT NO TIME SHALL THE BANK BE UNDER ANY OBLIGATION TO MAKE ANY ADVANCES TO THE UNDERSIGNED
PURSUANT TO THIS NOTE (NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED IN THIS NOTE OR ELSEWHERE TO
THE CONTRARY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, IF BANK SUPPLIES THE UNDERSIGNED WITH A BORROWING
FORMULA) AND THE BANK, AT ANY TIME AND FROM TIME TO TIME, WITHOUT NOTICE, AND IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION,
MAY REFUSE TO MAKE ADVANCES TO THE UNDERSIGNED WITHOUT INGURRING ANY LIABILITY DUE TO THIS REFUSAL
AND WITHOUT AFFECTING THE UNDERSIGNED'S LIABILITY UNDER THIS NOTE FOR ANY AND ALL AMOUNTS ADVANCED.

gu?]ect to the terms and conditlons of this Note, each of the Advances mada hereunder shall bear Interest at the Applicable Interest
ate,

Unless sooner demanded, accrued and unpald Interest on the unpald principal balance of each oulstanding Advance hereunder shall
be payable monthly, in arrears, on the first Business Day of each month. Interest accrulng hereunder shall be computed on the basls
of & year of 360 days, and shall be assessed for the actual number of days elapsed, and In such compulation, effact shall be glven to
any change In the Applicable Interest Rate as a result of any change in the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate or, to the exient applicable, the
Prime Referenced Rate, on the date of each such change,

Upon demand and from and after the occurrence of any Default hereunder, and so long as any such Default remains unremedied or
uncured thereafter, the Indebtedness outstanding under this Note shall bear Interest at a per annum rate of three parcent (3%) above
the otherwise Applicable Interest Rats, which Interest shall be payable upon demand. In addition to the foregolng, a late payment
charge equal to fiva parcent (5%) of each late payment hereunder may be charged on any payment not recelved by Bank within ten
{10).calendar days after the pay due date therefor, but p of payment of any such charge shall not constitute a walver of
any Default hereunder,

In no event shall the interest payable under this Note at any Ume exceed the maximum rafe permitted by law.

THE MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE SHALL NOT EXCEED 18% PER ANNUM OR THE HIGHEST APPLICABLE USURY CEILING,
WHICHEVER IS LESS.

The amount and date of each Advance, Its Applicable Interest Rate and the amount and date of any repayment shall be noted on
Bank's records, which records shall be conclusive evidence thereof, absent mantfest error; provided, howaver, any fallure by Bank to
make any such notation, or any emor In any such notatlon, shall not relleve the undersigned of lis/thelr obligations to repay Bank all
amounts payable by the undersigned to Bank under or pursuant to this Note, when due In accordance with the terms hereof,

The undersigned may request an Advance hereunder elther () upon the delivery to Bank of a written Request for Advance duly
completed and executed by the undersigned (as hereln provided), or (T)) to the extent applicable, pursuant to a request submitted
through Bank's Loan Management System (each a "Request’), In each case, subject to the following: (a) no Default, or any condition
or event which, with the giving of notlce or the running of time, or both, would constilute a Defaull, shall have occurred and bs
continulng or exist under this Note; (b) each such Request shall be delivered to Bank by 11:00 a.m, (Detrolt, Michigan time) on the
proposed date of the requested Advance; () after giving effect to such Advance, the aggregale principal amount of Advances mads
under this Note (excluding refundings and conversions of oulstanding Advances) shall not exceed the Loan Amount; and (d) a
Request, oncs dellvered or submitted to Bank, shall not be revocable by the undersigned; proyided, however, as aforesald, Bank shall
not be obligated to make any Ad urider this Note, ’

In the event that the undersigned Is unable to request Advancas hereunder through the Bank's Loan Management System, Advances
hereunder may be requested by delivery or submisslon to Bank by hand delivery, first class mall, overnight courler, facsimile, emall or
other means of delivery acceptable to Bank, of a written Requast for Advance duly completed and executed by the undersigned.
Ad h der may be req { in the undersigned's discration by telephonic nollce lo Bank, Any Advance requested by
telephonic notlce shall be confirmed by the undersigned that same day by submisslon to Bank of a writlen Request for Advance, as
provided hereln. The undersigned acknowledge(s) that if Bank makes an Advance based on a request made by telaphone, facsimile,
email or other means of delivery (other than by hand delivery, first class mall or ovemight courler), It shall be for the undersigned's
conventence and all risks Involved in the use of any such pracedure shall ba bome by the undersigned, and the undersigned expressly
agree(s) to Indemnify and hold Bank harmless therefor. Bank shall have no duly to confirm the authority of anyone requesting an
Advarice by telephone, facsimile, email or any such other means of delivery, In the event that the undersigned elect(s) to request
Advances by telephonlc notice, facsimile, emall or other means of dellvery acceplable to Bank, the undersigned acknowledge(s) and
agree(s) that Bank may Impose or require such verification, authentication and other procedures as Bank may require from ime to
tme.

Ifthe Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate [s not otherwise available to the undersigned as the basls for the Applicable Interest Rale hereunder
for the principal Indebtedness ding der In 1 with the terms of this Note, the Prime Referenced Rate shall be
the basls for the Applicable Interest Rate hereunder in respect of such Indebtedness for such perlod, subject In all respecs to the
terms and conditions of this Note, The foregoing shall not in any way limit or otherwise affect Bank's right to make demand
for payment of all or any part of the Indebtedness hereunder at any time In Bank's sola and absolute discration or any of Bank's iights
or remedies under this Note upen the eccurrence of any Default hereunder, or any conditlon or event which, with the giving of notice or
the running of me, or both, would constilute a Default.

In the event that any payment under this Note becomes due and payabls on any day which Is not a Business Day, the due date
thereof shall be fed to the n ding Business Day, and, to the extent applicable, Interast shall continue to accrue and be
payable thereon during such extenslon at the rates sat forth in this Note,
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All paymants to be made by the undersigned to Bank under or pursuant'tn this Note shall be In immedialely avallable United States
funds, without setoff or counterclalm, and In the event that any payments submitted hereunder are In funds not avallable untll
collecled, sald payments shall continue to bear Interest until collected,

The undersigned may prepay all or part of the '} of any Indebted under this Note at any time without premium
or per;:lly. Any prepayment hereunder shall also be accompanled by the payment of all accrued and unpald interest on the amount so
prepald,

For any Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate Advancs, if Bank shall designate a LIBOR Lending Offica which malntains books separate from
g%se of the rest of Bank, Bank shall have the option of malnialning and canying such Advance on the books of such LIBOR Lending
ca,

If, at any Ume, Bank determines that, (a) Bank is unable to determine or ascertaln the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate, or (b) by reason of
clrcumstancas affecting the forelgn exchange and interbank markets generally, deposits In eurodollars In the applicable amounis or for
the relative malurities are not being offered to Bank for any applicable Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate Advancs, or (c) the Applicable
Interest Rate will not accuralely or falriy cover or reflact the cost to Bank of malntalning any of the Indebtedness under this Note based
upon the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate, then Bank shall forthwith give notice thereof to the undersigned. Thereafter, untll Bank notifias
the undersigned that such conditions or clrcumstances no longer exlst, the right of the undersigned to request a Dally Adjusting LIBOR
Rate Ad shall be suspended, and tha Prime Referenced Rate shall be the basis for the Applicable Interest Rats for all
Indebtedness hereunder during such period of ime.

If any Change In Law shall make it unlawful or Impossible for the Bank (or Iis LIBOR Lending Office) to make or maintaln any Advanca
with Interest based upon the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate, Bank shall forthwith give notice thereof 1o the undersigned. Thereafter, until
Bank notifies the undersigned that such conditions or clrcumstances no longer exist, the right of the undersigned to request a Dally
Adjusting LIBOR Rale Advance shall be suspended, and thereafler, the undersigned may selsct only the Prime Refarencad Rale shall
ba the basls for the Applicable Intarest Rate for the Indebtedness hereunder.

If any Change in Law shall (a) subject Bank (or Its LIBOR Lending Office) to any tax, duty or other charge with respect to this Note or
any Indebtedness hereunder, or shall change the basls of taxation of payments to Bank (or its LIBOR Lending Office) of the principal
of or Interest under this Note or any other amounts due under this Note in respact thereof (except for changes in the rate of tax on the
ovarall net Income of Bank or its LIBOR Lending Office Imposed by the Jurisdiction in which Bank's principal executive office or LIBOR
Lending Office I3 located); or (b) Impose, modify or deem applicatils any reserve (Including, without Imitation, any Imposed by the
Board of Govemors of the Federal Reserve System), speclal deposit or similar requirement against assets of, deposits with or for the
t of, or credit extended by Bank {or its LIBOR Lending Office), or shall Impose on Bank (or its LIBOR Lending Office) or the
forelgn exchange and Interbank markets any other condition affecting this Note or the Indebledness hereunder; and the result of any
of the foregoing Is to Increase the cost {o Bank of maintaining any part of the Indebtedness hereunder or to reduce the amount of any
sum recelved or receivable by Bank under this Note by an amount deemed by the Bank to be material, then the undersigned shall pay
to Bank, within fiteen (15) days of the undersigned's recelpt of wiitten notice from Bank demanding such compensation, such
addiional amount or amounts as will compensate Bank for such Increased cost or reduction. A ceriificate of Bank, prepared in good
falth and [n reasonable detall by Bank and submitted by Bank to the undersigned, setting forth the basls for determining such
addllional amount or amounts necessary to compensate Bank shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manlfest ervor.

In the event that any Change In Law affects or would affact the amount of capital or liquldily required or expected to be maintained by
Bank (or any corporation controlling Bank), and Bank determines that the amount of such capltal or liquidity is Increased by or based
upon the existence of any obligations of Bank hereunder or the malntalning of any Indebledness hereunder, and such Increase has
the effect of reducing the rate of return on Bank's (or such controlling corporation's) caplial as a consequence of such obligations or
the malntalning of such Indebtedness hereunder to a leve! below that which Bank (or such controlling corporation) could have
achlevad but for such circumstances (taking Into consldsration its policles with respect to capllal adequacy and llquldity), then .the
undersigned shall pay to Bank, within fifieen (16) days of the undersigned’s receipt of writien notlce from Bank demanding such
compensation, additional amounts as are sufficlent to compensate Bank (or such conlroliing corporation) for any Increase in the
amount of capltal and/or liquldity and reduced rate of retum which Bank reasonably delermines to be allocable to the existence of any
obligations of the Bank hereunder or to malntaining any Indebtedness hereunder. A certificate of Bank as to the amount of such
compensallon, prepared In good falth and In reasonable detall by the Bank and submitted by Bank to the undersigned, shall be
conclusive and binding for all purposes absent manifest error. . '

This Note and any other Indebtedness and llabllitles of any kind of the undersigned (or any of them) to the Bank, and any and afl
modifications, renewals or extansions of It, whether Jolnt or several, contingent or absolute, now existing or later arlsing, and howaver

(L 1 and whetk d voluntarlly or Involuntarily, known or unknown, or ofiginally payable to the Bank or to a third parly and
subsequenlly acquired by Bank Including, without limitation, any late charges; foan fees or charges; overdraft Indebtedness; costs
incurred by Bank In establishing, determining, continuing or defending the valldity or priority of any securily Interest, pledge or other
llen or In pursuing any of lts Aights or remedies under any loan document {or otherwise) or In connection with any proceeding lnvolving
the Bank as a result of any financial accommoadation to the undersigned (or any of them); and reasonable cosls and expenses of
atloreys and paralegals, whether Inside or oulslde counsel Is used, and whether any sult or other acllon Is Instituted, and to court
costs if sult or action Is Instituted, and whether any such fees, cosls or expsnses are Incurred at the trial court level or on appeal, In
bankruptcy, In administrative p iings, In probate p dings or otherwise (collectively “Indebtedness"), are secured by and the
Bank Is granted a security Interest in and Ilen upon all lems deposited in any account of any of the undersigned with the Bank and by
all proceeds of these ftems (cash or otherwise), all account balances of any of the undersigned from time to time with the Bank, by all
‘property of any of the undersigned from ime to tima In the possession of the Bank and by any other collateral, rights and properiles
described In each and every deed of trust, morigage, security agreement, pledge, assignment and other securily or collateral
agreament which has been, or will at any ime(s) later be, executed by any (or all) of the undersigned to or for the benefit of the Bank
(collectively "Collateral®), Notwithstanding the above, () {o the extent that any portion of the Indebledness Is a consumer loan, that
portion shall not be secured by any deed of trust or gage on or other rity interest in any of the undersigned's principal
dweliing or ln any of the undersigned's real property which Is not a purchase money security Interest-as to that portlon, unless
exprassly provided to the contrary In-another place, or (i) if the undersigned (or any of them) has (have) given or give(s) Bank a desd
of trust or morigage covering Callfomla real property, that deed of trust or morigage shall not secure this Note or any other
Indebtedness of the underslgned (or any of them), unless expressly provided to the contrary In another place, or () if the undersigned
(or any of them) has (have) glven or glva(s) the Bank a deed of trust or mortgage covering real property which, under Texas law,
conslitutes the homestead of such person, that deed of trust or morigage shall not secure this Note or any other Indebledness of the
undersigned (or any of them) unless expressly provided to the contrary In another place,

If {a) the underslgned (or any of them) or any.guarantor-under a guaranty of all or part of the Indebledness ("guarantor”) () fall(s) to
pay this Note or any of the Indebtedness when dus, by maturity, accalaralion or otherwise, or fal(s) to pay any indebledness owing on
a demand basls upon demand; or (Il fall(s) to comply with any of the terms or provisions of any agreement between the undersigned
(or any of them) or any guarantor and the Bank, and any such faflure continues bayond any applicable grace or cure period, If any;
expressly provided with respect thereto; or () become(s) insolvent or the subject of a voluntary or Involunlary proceeding In
bankrupley, or a reorganization, arrangement or creditor position p. ding, {If a bus entity) (s) dolng business as a
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golng (if a natural p ) dla{s) or b (s) I petent, (if a p hip) dissolve(s) or any general partner of it dles,
becomes Incompatent or becomes the subject of a bankruplcy preceeding, or (if a corporation or a limited liability company) Is the
subect of a dissolullon, merger or consolldation; or (b) any waranty or representation made by any of the undersigned or any
guarantor In connection with this Nole or any of the Indebtedness shall be discovered o be untrue or incomplete; or (c} there Is any
temmination, notice of termination, or breach of any guaranty, pledge, collateral assignment or subordination agreement relating to all
or any part of the Indebladness; or (d} there Is any fallure by any of the undersigned or any guarantor {o pay when due any of lls
indebtedness {other than to the Bank) or in the observance or performance of any term, covenant or condition In any document
evidencing, securing or relating to such indebtadness; or () the Bank deems lise!f Insecure, bellaving that the prospsct of payment or
perfarmance of this Note or any of the Indeblednass Is impalred or shell fear deterioration, removal or waste of any of the Collateral; or
() thera [s filed or Issued a levy or writ of attachment or gamishment or other like judlclal process upon the undersigned (or any of
them) or any guarantor or any of the Collateral, Including, without [imit, any accounts of the undersigned (or any of them) or any
guarantor with the Bank; then the Bank, upon the occurrence and at any Ume durng the continuance or existence of any of these
evenls (each a "Default’), may, at its option and without prior notice to the undersigned (or any of them), cease advancing money or
extending credit to or for the benefit of the undersigned under this Note or any olher agresment betwsen the undersigned and Bank,
terminate this Note as o any fulure llabllity or obfigation of Bank, but without affecting Bank's righls and securlly interests In any
Collateral and the indebledness of the undersigned to Bank, declare any or all of the Indebtedness to be Immediately due and payable
(notwithstanding any provisions contained n the evidence of it to the contrary), sell or fiquidate all or any porilon of the Collateral, set
off against the Indebtedness any amounts owing by thé Bank {o the undersigned (or any of them), charge Interest at the default rate
provided In the document evidencing the relevant Indebledness and-exerclse any one or more of the rights and remedias granted to
the Bank by any agreement with the undersigned (or any of them) or given to it under applicable law, In addition, If this Note Is
secured by a deed of trust or morigag ing real property, then the trustor or mortgagor shall not morigage or pledge the
mortgaged premises as securily for any other indebtedness of obligatlons, This Note, together with all other Indebledness secured by
sald deed of trust or morigage, shall become due and payable Immediately, without notice, at the option of the Bank, (a) If sald trustor
or morigagor shall mortgage or pledge the mortgaged premises for any other Indebtedness or obligations or shall convay, assign or
transfer the mortgaged premises by deed, Instaliment sale contract or other Instrument, or (b) if the tille to the morigaged premises
shall bacome vasted In any olher person or party In any manner whalsoever, or (c) If there Is any disposition (through one or more
transactions) of legal or benaficial titfe to a controliing Interest of sald trustor or morigagor,

‘The undersigned hereby expressly acknowledge(s) and agrea(s) that this Note Is a demand note and matures upon Issuance,
and that the indebtedness hereunder shall be payable upon demand {unless earlier payment Is required in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this Note), and that Bank may, at any tlthe In its sole and absolute discretion, without notice and
without reason and whether or not any Defauit shall have occurred andfor exist under this Note, without notice, demand that
this Note and the Indebtedness hereunder be Immediately pald In full. The Bank may from time to ime make demand for
partial payments under this Note and these demands shall not preclude the Bank from demanding at any time that this Note
be immedlately pald In full, Further, the demand nature of this Note shall not be deemed to be modifled, limited or otherwlise
affacted by any reference to any Default in this Note, and to the extent that there are any referances to any Default(s)
hereunder, such referencas are for the purpose of permitting Bank to accelerate any Indebtedness not on a demand basls
and to recelve Interest at the applicable defauit rate provided In the document evidencing the relevant Indebtedness.

Thie undersigned authorize(s) the Bank to charge any account(s) of the undersigned {or any of them) with the Bank for any and all
sums due hereunder when dus; provided, howsve, that such authorization shall not affect any of the undersigned's obligation to pay
to the Bank all amounts when due, whether or not any such account balances that are malntalned by the undarsigned with the Bank
are insufficlent to pay to the Bank any amounts when dus, and to the extent that such accounts are insufilcient to pay to the Bank all
such amounts, the undersigned shall remaln llable for any deflclencles until pald in full.

If this Nota s signed by two or more pariies (whelher by all as makers or by one or more as an accommadation party or olherwise),
the obligations and undertakings under this Note shall be that of all and any two or more Joinly and also of each severally, This Note
shall bind the undersigned, and the underslgned's respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns,

The undersigned walve(s) presentment, demand, protest, notice-of dishonor, nolice of demand or intent to demand, notice of
acceleratlon or Intent to accelarate, and all other notices, and agree(s) that no extension or indulgence to the undersigned (or any of
them) or release, substitution or nonenforcament of any security, or release or substitution of any of the undersigned, any guarantor or
any other party, whether with or without notice, shall affect the obligations of any of the undersigned. The undersigned waive(s) all
defensas or right to discharge avallable under Sectlon 673,805 of the Unlform Commercial Code and walve(s) all other suretyship
defenses or right to discharge. The undersigned agree(s) that the Bank has the right to sell, assign, or grant parlicipations or any
Interast in, any or all of the Indebledness, and thal, in conneciion with this sight, but without limiting its abliity to make other disclosures
to the full extent allowable, the Bank may disclose all documents and Information which the Bank now or later has relating lo the
underelgned or the Indebtedness, The undersigned agree(s) that the Bank may provide Information relating fo this Note or relating to
the undersigned to the Bank's parent, affillates, subsidiaries ard service providers. ~

The undersigned agree(s) to pay or reimburse to Bank, or any other holder or owner of this Note, on demand, any and ali costs and
expenses of Bank (Including, without limit, court costs, legal expenses and reasonable attomeys® fees, whether Inslde or oulside
counsel Is used, whether or not sult'is Instituted, and, if sult Is instituted, whether at the tdal court level, appeliate level, In a
bankruptey, probate or administrative proceeding or otherwise) Incurred In cilon with the preparation, execullon, delivery,
amendment, adminletration, and performance of this Note and the related documents, or Incurred In collecting or atiempling to collect
this Note or the Indebtednass, or Incurred In any other matter or proceeding relating to this Note or the Indebtedness.

The undersigned acknowledge(s) and agrea(s) that there are no conlrary agreements, oral or written, establishing a term of this Note
and agree(s) that the terms and conditions of this Nate may not be amended, walved or modified except In a wriling signed by an
officer of the Bank expressly stating that the wriling constilules an amendment, walver or madification of the terms of this Nole, As
used in this Note, the word *undersigned® means, Individually and collectively, each maker, accommodation party, endorser and other-
party signing this Note In a simliar capacity. If any provision of this Note Is unenforceable [n whole or part for any reason, the
remalning provisions shall continue to be effective, THIS NOTE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, WITHOUT REGARD TO GONFLICT OF LAWS PRINGIPLES,

For the purposes of this Note, the following terms have the following meanings:

*Advance” means a borrowlnﬁ requasted by the undersigned and made by Bank under this Note, and shall Include a Dally Adjusting
LIBOR Rate Advance and (subject to the terms of this Note) a Prime-based Advance,

“Appiicable Interest Rate® means the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate plus the Applicable Margln, or (subject to the terms of this Note) the
Prime Referencad Rate plus the Applicable Margln, as otherwise detemined In accordance with the terms and conditions of this Note,

“Applicable Margin® means:
[0] In raspect of the Daily Adjusting LIBOR Rate, 4,00% per annum; and

- DAL Master Revolver Demand Nole - Nat! (09/01/46) v. 1.01 3.
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@ in respect of the Prime Referenced Rate, 1.00% per annum.

*Business Day" means any day, other than a Salurday, Sunday or any other day deslgnated as a hollday under Federal or applicable
State statule or regulation, on which Bank Is open for all or substantially all of Iis domestic and International business (Including
dealings In forelgn exchange) in Detrolt, Michigan, and, In respect of notices and determinations relaling to the Dally Adjusting LIBOR
Rale, also a day on which dealings In dollar deposits are also canied on In the London interbank market and on which banks are open
for business in London, England.

*Change In Law" means the occurrence, after the dale hereof, of any of the following: (1) the adoptlon or Introduction of, or any change
In any applicable law, treaty, rule or regulation (whether domestic or forelgn) now or hereafter In effect and whether or notapplicable’to
Bank on such date, or (i) any change in Intsrpretation, adminisiration or Implementalion thereof of any such law, treaty, rule or
regulation by any Govemmental Authority, or (i) the Issuance, making or implementation by any Governmental Authority of any
Interpretatlon, adminlstration, request, ragulation, guldeline, or direclive (whether or not having the force of law), Including, without
limltation, any risk-based capltal guldetines or any Interpretation, administration, request, regulation, guldeline, ar directive relating to
liquidity, For purposes of ths definiilon, (x) a change In [aw, treaty, rule, regulation, Interpretation, edminisiration or Implamentation
shall Inciude, without limitation, any change made or which becomes effeclive on the basls of a law, treaty, rule, regulation,
Interpretation administration or implementation then In force, the effective date of which change Is delayed by the terms of such law,
lreaty, rule, regulation, interpretalion, administration or implementation, and (y) the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act (Pub, L, 111-203, H.R. 4173) and all requests, rules, regulations, guldelines, Interpretations or directives promulgated
thereunder or Issued In connecilon therewith shall be deemed to be a "Change In Law”, regardless of the date enacted, adopted,
Issued or promulgated, whether before or after the date hereof, and (2) all requests, rules, guldelines or directives promulgated by the
Bank for International Setiiements, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (or any successor or similar authority) or the Unlted
States regulatory authorilles, In each case pursuant to Base! 1], shall each be deemed to be a "Change In Law", regardless of the date
enacled, adopted, Issued or Implemented. .

*Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate® means, for any day, & per annum Interest rate which is equal to the quotient of the following:

(a) for any day, the per annum rale of Interest determined on the basls of the rale for deposits in United States Dollars for a
perlod equal to one (1) month appearing on Page BBAM of the Bleomberg Financlal Markets Information Service at or about
11:00 a.m. (London, England ime) {or as soon theraafler as praciical) on such day, or If such day is not a Business Day, on
the Immediately preceding Business Day. In the event that such rale does not appear on Page BBAM of the Bloomberg
Financlal Markels Information Service (or otherwise on such Service) on any day, the "Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate® for such
day shall be determined by reference to such other publicly avallable service for displaying eurodollar rates as may be
reasonably selected by Bank, or, In the absenca of such other service, the *Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate" (or such day shall,
Inslead, be determined based upon the average of the rates at which Bank Is offered dollar deposits at or about 11:00 a.m.
(Detrolt, Michigan time) (or as soon thereaRer as practical), on such day, or if such day Is not a Business Day, on the
Immediately precading Business Day, in the Interbank eurodoliar market In an amount comparable to the principal amount of
Indebledness oulstanding hereunder which Is to bear Interest on the basls of such Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate and for a
pariod equal to one (1) month; .

divided by

(b) 1.00 minus the maximum rate (expressed as a decimal) on such day at which Bank Is requlred to maintaln reserves on "Euro-
currency Liablliles* as defined in and pursuant to Regulation D of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or,
If such regulation or definition Is modified, and as long as Bank Is required to malntaln reserves against a category of
llabilitles which Includes euradollar deposils or Includes a calegory of assels which Includes eurodoliar loans, the rate at
which such reserves are required to be malntalned on such category; s .

provided, howavar, and notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth In this Note, if at any time the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate
determined as provided above would be less than zero percent (0%), then the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate shall be desmed to be zero
percent (0%) per annum for all pusposes of this Nete (the “Dally Adjusting LIBOR 0% Floor), excapt for any portion of any oulstanding
A (s) fer or any principal Indebted outstanding under this Note which, at any such time, ls/are subject to any
Speclfied Hedging Agreament, in which case, the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate for such portion of such Advance(s) and Indebtedness
shall be determined without glving effect to the Dally Adjusting LIBOR 0% Fioor, Each calculation by Bank of the Dally Adjusting
LIBOR Rate shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manlfest error.

;.‘IJ;W Adjusting LIBOR Rale Advance® means an Advance of which the Applicable Interest Rate Is based on the Dally"Adjustin
OR Rate. .

*Govemmental Authority” means the govemment-of the United States of America or any othar natlon, or of any political subdivision

thereof, whether state or local, and any agency, authority, instrumentallty, regulatory body, cour, central bank or other entity

. exercising execulive, leglslative, Judlclal, taxing, regulatory or adminisiralive powers or functions of or pertalning to government
(Including, without fimitation, any supranallonal bodles such as the European Unlon or the European Central Bank),

"LIBOR Lending Office" means Bank's office localed in the Cayman Islands, Brilish West Indles, or such other branch of Bank,
domestic or forelgn, as It may hereafter designate as iis LIBOR Lending Office by notice to the undersigned.

*Loan Amount’ means the face amount of this Note as set forth at the top of Page 1 hereof,

"Prime Rate* means the per annum interest rate established by Bank as lts prime rate for its borrowers, as such rate may vary from
time to time, which rate Is not necessarily the lowast rate on loans made by Bank at any such time,

*Prime-based Advance” means an Advance of which the Applicable Interest Rate Is based on the Prime Referenced Rate, subject to
the terms of this Note,

*Prime Referenced Rate" maans a per annum Interest rate which is equal fo the Prime Rate, but in no event less than two and one-
half percent (2.50%) per annum. :

"Request for Ad " means a Request for Ad issued by the undersigned under this Note In the form annexed to this Note as
Exhibit A"

*Specified Hedging Agreement’ means any agreement or other documentation batwaen the undersigned (or any of them) and Bank
providing for an Interest rate swap that does not provide for a minimum rate of zero percent (0%) with respect to determinations of the
Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate for the purposes of such Interest rate swap (e.g., determines the floating amount by using the “negative

interast rate methed® rather than the “zero Interest rate method” In the case of any such Interest rate swap made under any master
orother d tion published by the Intemnational Swaps and Derivatives Assoclatlon, Inc.),

DAL Master Revolvar Damand Note - Nat'l (08/01/16) v. 1.01 4
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No delay or fallure of Bank In exercising any right; power or privitage hereunder shall affect such right, power or privilege, nor shall any
single or partlal exercise thereof preclude any furl‘ler exerclse thereof, or the exercise of any other power, right or prvilege. The-rights
of Bank under this Note are cumulative and niot exclusive of any right or remedies which Bank would otherwise have, whether by other

Instruments or by law,

THE UNDERSIGNED AND BANK, BY ACCEPTANGCE OF TH!S NOTE, ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IS
A CONSTITUTIONAL ONE, BUT THAT IT MAY BE WAIVED UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED
BY LAW, EACH PARTY, AFTER CONSULTING (OR HAVING HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO CONSULT) WITH COUNSEL OF
THEIR CHOICE, KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY, AND FOR THEIR MUTUAL BENEFIT, WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY
JURY IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION REGARDING THE PERFORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT OF, OR IN ANY WAY RELATED
TO, THIS NOTE OR THE INDEBTEDNESS, :

Florida documentary stamp tax required by law In the amount of $350.00 will be pald directly to the Depariment of Revenus,
Certificate of Reglstration Number 66-8013181004-6.

This Note Is dated and shall be effective as of the date set forth above.
BORROWER:

Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, & Effective
Nelghbothood Solulions, Inc., a Florida Non-Profit Corporation

w S 32

Tile: .@N/?ikeve\"
W Lo —
Tille: _D’l:él—’ /48 Cﬁ

Ell uite 10: —Fort Lauderdsle EL Unlted Siates 33304
Slraet Address City State Counlry Zip Code
For Bank Use Only |
AN CFFICER INITIALS | LOAN GROUP NAME OBLIGOR NAME
BB - Florida Bank lousing Of & Effactive Nelg! d Inc., a
Florida Non-Profit Corparation

LOAN GRQUP NO, CBLIGOR NO, NGTENO, AMOUNT,
95697 l $100,000.00
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ATTACHMENT
B8:

Ewvidence of Sufficient Funding

To carry out project,

It awarded by the City
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FLORIDA COMMUNITY
LOAN FUND
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EXPERTISE AND CAPITAL TO HELP YOUR PROJECT SUCCEED. I}

December 21, 2016

Ms. Katherine S. Barry
CEO

H.O.M.E.S., Inc.

690 NE 13" Street

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304

Re:  Commitment for a $250,000 Revolving Line of Credit to Housing Opportunities,
Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood Solutions, Inc. (HOMES, Inc.) by
the Florida Community Loan Fund, Inc.

Dear Ms. Barry:

This letter (the “Commitment”) constitutes the Commitment of the Florida Community
Loan Fund, Inc. (the “Loan Fund”) to provide the entity described below as the borrower
(the "Borrower") with a revolving line of credit (the “Line” or " Loan”). The terms and
conditions of the Commitment are as follows:

1. BORROWER: Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistance, & Effective Neighborhood
Solutions, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit 501¢(3) corporation.

2. MAXIMUM LOAN AMOUNT: $250,000.00.

3. INTEREST RATE: A fixed rate of five percent (5.00%).

4. MATURITY DATE: The Line shall mature on the date two (2) years from the date of
Line closing. In addition, no individual Property (as defined below) being constructed
shall remain as collateral on the Line for more than twelve (12) months from the date it is
added to the Line.

5. REPAYMENT TERMS: Commencing on the last day of the month following the closing
date of each Property, monthly payments of interest only are due and payable on the last
day of each month, with the principal balance of each Property added to the Line, if not
sooner paid, together with any unpaid interest and fees, due and payable twelve (12)
months from the date added to the Line.

6. LOAN COMMITMENT FEE: One percent (1.0% or $2,500.00) which shall be due and
payable at the acceptance of this Loan Commitment.

7. COMMITMENT EXPIRATION: This Commitment expires, at the Loan Fund's option, in
ninety (90) days from the date of this Commitment. -

8. SECURITY PROPERTY: First mortgages on residential parcels (the “Land”) and the
improvements located or to-be-constructed thereon (the “Improvements”) on scattered
sites in Broward County, Florida, or other such real estate collateral that the Loan Fund

Main Office: 501 N. Magnolia Ave. Suite 100 B Orlando, FL 32801-1364
407.246.0846 W f: 407.246.0856 M www.fclf.org

Orlando ® Jacksonville @ Sarasota m Tampa B Fort Lauderdale
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may accept in its absolute and sole discretion. The Land and Improvements are
individually and collectively herein called the “Collateral”, “Home", or “ Property”.

- 9. LOAN PURPOSE: To assist with the purchase and renovation or new construction of
single family properties for sale to low and moderate income families.

10. SPEC LIMIT: Defined as a Home without a pre-qualified buyer and executed sales
contract (*Spec”). Spec Homes may be permitted under the Line in the sole discretion of
Loan Fund and under the following condition: No more than four (4) single-family Spec
properties may be placed under the Line at any one time. Loan Fund reserves the right to
review and approve any proposed Property to be added to the Line.

11. MAXIMUM LOAN TO VALUE: The Loan-to-Value of the Loan may not exceed Eighty
Percent (80%) of the as-is appraised value for acquisition and as-renovated or as-
completed appraised value of all properties under the Loan (see also Term 12.7).

12. LOAN DOCUMENTS AND ITEMS REQUIRED FOR LOAN CLOSING: At Loan closing,
and for each Home that will be Collateral for the Line in the future, Borrower shall
execute the following Loan documents and submit the following items to Loan Fund
pursuant to this Commitment and normal loan closing requirements. All documents and
items shall be satisfactory in form and substance to the Loan Fund. Documents 12.2 and
12.5 below shadll only be required to be executed with the first Property closing.

12.1  Promissory Note: including provisions for the collection of late payment charges
of five percent (5%) of the.amount of any late payment, no prepayment penalty
and a default rate of thirteen percent (13.00%).

122 Loan Agreement: including (a) provisions for the disbursement of Loan funds
after the initial Loan closing set forth in Term 13; (b) provisions for the general
loan conditions set forth in Term 14; () provisions for Spec Homes as set forth
in Term 10, and (d) provision for each Note to mature one year from its effective
date.

123 Mortgage and Security Agreement: providing the Loan Fund with a first lien on
the Collateral and a security interest in all fixtures and tangible and intangible
personal property necessary for the operation of the Property listed above in
Term 8.

124  Title Insurance; a standard, ALTA mortgagee title policy, providing coverage for
the full principal amount of the Loan amount allocated for each specific
Property added to the Line now or in the future, listing only those title
exceptions acceptable to the Loan Fund. .

125 Corporate Borrowing Authority Documents: corporate documents which
evidence the authorization for the actions to be taken by Borrower in
connection with this Commitment and the Line, including articles of
incorporation, 501 (c)(3) letter from the Internal Revenue Service, by-laws,
corporate borrowing resolutions and current certificates of “good standing”
from the Florida Division of Corporations.

12.6  Purchase and Sale Contracts: a copy of the Purchase and Sale Contract
executed between the seller of the Property and the Borrower, for each Property
acquired for funding with the Line, if applicable.

12.7  Apprdisdls: current (within sixty (60) days of each Property closing) appraisal of
the Property, reflecting the market value of the Property as-is and as-renovated,

.1
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conducted by state certified appraisers satisfactory to the Loan Fund. The
Loan-to-Value on the Property shall not be greater than 80% of the as- is
appraised value for acquisition and 80% of the as-renovated or as-completed
appraised value for acquisition and renovation or acquisition and construction,
as appropriate.

12.8 Loan-to-Value Requirement: Borrower acknowledges that Loan Fund was
induced to make the Loan based upon a specific loan-to-value ratio (the
" Original Loan-to-Value Ratio”) and that has been made known that Loan Fund
will conduct periodic reviews of Collateral value. Loan documents will provide
that, if any updated appraisal received by Loan Fund reflects that the appraised
value of the Property has decreased from the original appraised value, and if
such decrease results in a loan-to-value ratio which is higher than the Original
Loan-to-Value Ratio, Borrower shall, within thirty (30) days of Loan Fund's
written request, either: (a) make a principal payment (the “Prepayment”) under
the Note in an amount sufficient to maintain the Original Loan-to-Value Ratio:
or (b) pledge such additional collateral for the Loan that is acceptable to Loan
Fund in its sole discretion. Any Prepayment shall not entitle Borrower to a
release of any of the Property. .

12.9  Survey: recent survey of the Property by a registered surveyor, acceptable to the
Loan Fund, certified, at a minimum, to the Loan Fund, the title insurance
company and Borrower.

12.10 Public/Private Assistance Agreement: a copy of the fully executed agreements
between Borrower and any sources of additional capital to the Property.

12.11 Flood Hazards: evidence as to whether or not the Land is located within an area
identified as having special flood hazards pursuant to the Flood Disaster
Protection Act of 1973. If the Land is located in a special flood hazard areq,
flood insurance naming the Loan Fund as mortgagee will be required.

12.12 nsurance: a) comprehensive general liability coverage for Borrower provided on
an ACORD 25 form with the Loan Fund named as additional insured; b)
builder’s risk or an “all risk” non-reporting, completed value property insurance
policy, as applicable, designating the Loan Fund as mortgagee and loss payee,
granting the Loan Fund at least 30 days’ notice of intended cancellation and
provided on an ACORD 27 or 28 form, as applicable.

12.13 Compliance with Laws: satisfactory evidence that construction of the
improvements and intended uses of the Property are in compliance with all
applicable laws, regulations and ordinances, including local zoning laws.

12.14 Environmental Site Assessments and Environmental Compliance and Indemnity
Agreement A current (within past 6 months) Phase | Environmental Site
Assessment of the Property performed in accordance with ASTM 1527-13. The
ESA must be prepared by a firm reasonably acceptable to the Loan Fund,
signed and sealed by a Florida licensed professional geologist or engineer (as
well as have the EP Certification required under ASTM 1527-13), and must be
satisfactory in all respects to Loan Fund in its sole discretion. Additional
asbestos, lead based paint and radon reports may also be required in Loan
Fund’s sole discretion. This Commitment will be null and void if Loan Fund’s
review of the ESA or additional reports indicates any continuing environmental
risk or concerns as determined by Loan Fund. In addition, the Borrower will be
required to sign an agreement indemnifying the Loan Fund from any
environmental hazards that may be present.

v
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12,15

12.16

12.17

Sources and Uses of Funds/Cost Breakdown: sources and uses of funds for the
Property, including a detailed breakdown of the cost of constructing or
renovating the Improvements and an itemization of non-construction costs.

For Presold Properties: a) an executed purchase contract with a purchaser; b)
evidence of valid and satisfactory pre-qualification by a mortgage lender for an
amount sufficient to purchase the property; c) Evidence of any subsidies
necessary for the buyer to purchase the property; and c) an acceptable and fully
completed affordability study and/or income certification sufficient to verify
qualification as a low to moderate income individual or family.

Miscellaneous: any other Loan documents or items that are customarily
provided in loan transactions of this type.

13. CONDITIONS FOR DISBURSEMENT OF LOAN FUNDS AFTER THE INITIAL LOAN
CLOSING: In addition to the relevant items in Term 12 above for each Home for which
financing is requested, the following documents and items shall be provided and
satisfactory in form and substance to the Loan Fund:

131

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

Construction Documents: a) sources and uses of funds for the Property,
including a detailed cost breakdown of construction or renovation of the
Property by construction trade and non-construction costs; b)
construction/completion timeline; c) plans and specifications; d) contract
between Borrower and architect providing supervisory services; e) fixed price
contract between Borrower and general contractor, if applicable f) completed
value builder’s risk insurance evidence naming the Loan Fund as mortgagee
and loss payee, and granting the Loan Fund at least 30 days notice of intended
cancellation; g) the notice of commencement and required building permits for
each Home with a statement that they have been, or will be, posted on the
Property site prior to the commencement of construction.

Request for Payment: signed by Borrower, setting forth a detailed breakdown of
the Loan disbursement requested, including all supporting documentation and a
signed requisition of the general contractor and approved by Borrower's
supervising architect, if required, all applicable inspections, and, at Loan Fund's
option, Loan Fund's 3" party construction consultant, where applicable and as
provided in Term 13.5,

Sales Contract / Permanent Financing Commitment / Sources and Uses of
Funds: upon sale of a Home, the sales contract between Borrower and the
home buyer, evidence of pre-qudlification for financing from a financial
institution, and evidence of home buyer's household income to verify
qualification as a low or moderate income individual or family.

Owner's Affidavit and Lien Waivers: notarized partial lien waivers executed by
the general contractor, specifying the amount paid in consideration of such
partial release and certification by Borrower that funds disbursed to date by the
Loan Fund have been paid to the appropriate parties.

Construction Consultant's Approval: The Loan Fund reserves the right to
designate a construction consultant to inspect construction work for conformity
with the plans and specifications and approval of Borrower's request for Loan
disbursements. A written report of the results of the consultant’s inspection of
construction work may be required for a disbursement of Loan funds.
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13.6 = Final Construction Disbursement: Prior to the final Loan disbursement for each

home, the following documents shall be submitted to the Loan Fund, if
applicable: (a) as-built survey; (b) certificate of occupancy; (c) contractor’s final
waiver of lien and certification of completion; (d) final lien waiver from any
subcontractor or supplier having filed a Notice to Owner; and (d) construction
consultant’s final approvadl, if required.

14. GENERAL CONDITIONS:

14.1

14.2

14.3

144

14.5

14.6

14.7

Assignments: Neither this Commitment nor any interest in it may be assigned
by Borrower without the Loan Fund's prior written approval.

Financial Statements: Borrower shall submit annual and, if requested, interim
financial statements. Annual statements shall be audited and include a
Statement of Activities (revenue and expenses) and a Statement of Financial
Position (balance sheet) prepared by a certified public accountant, and
submitted within one hundred twenty (120) days of Borrower's fiscal year-end.
Additional Debt: During the term of this Line, Borrower will not incur any .
additional debt without the written permission of the Loan Fund.

Socidl Impact Reporting: Borrower agrees that regular reporting of community
and social impact criteria will be required as a condition of Loan Fund's
financing. This reporting will made no less than annually and may include, but
not be limited to such items as: number of temporary and permanent jobs
created and other job creation details; specific education or social services to
clients; environmentaily sustainable outcomes in the project; the pro-active
involvement of the surrounding community in the project; or any other such
information as the Loan Fund deems necessary.

Publicity: The Loan Fund shall have the right to secure printed publicity through
newspapers and other media concerning the project and its financing. Borrower
shall provide the Loan Fund with photographs of the Project and demographic
information regarding the clients who receive housing and other services from
Borrower. _ v

Loan Application: The issuance of this Commitment is based upon the accuracy
of Borrower's representations and statements, any loan application and all
additional information, representations, exhibits and other matters submitted to
the Loan Fund for consideration. The Loan Fund shall have the option to
declare this Commitment to be breached, and therefore, void, if there shall have
been any material misrepresentation or misstatement or any material error in
anything submitted to the Loan Fund.

Expenses: All costs and expenses in connection with the Line, including, but not
limited to, the costs of attorneys, documentary stamp and intangible taxes, the
construction consultant and recording fees, shall be paid by Borrower.

15, RELEASE OF SECURITY PROPERTY: Until the Loan has been paid in full, each
Property shall be released from the Loan Fund upon request and payment to the Loan
Fund of a minimum release amount of the total amount advanced directly for acquisition
and the hard and soft costs of renovation or construction of the Property, plus accrued
interest, to be determined in the sole discretion of the Loan Fund.

December 21, 2016, Page 5
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16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Commitment; when accepted, shall:constitute the entire
agreement between Loean Fund and Borrowet; and it i may not be altered or amended
unless agreedto in \writing by the' Loan Fund and Borrower.

17. ACCEPTANCE: Indicate:your dcceptdnce of Loan Fund's offer by: S|gn|ng below and

returning thie original of the Commiitrent Letterto us by January:6, 2017, or this

Commitment Letter will outomatlcclly terminate without furthe ction by any:party. The
Loah Fund' may, priorto closing, make additional requirements.in order to comply with

federal or- state-regulations, governmental- agencies; and as the Loan Fund's: legal counsel
g legal-matters; but not business matters. Itis further

may deem necessary: regardin

understood and agreed that the terms and conditions of this Commltment Letter will
survive the closmg of the: Loanhereby contemplated.

Return a check for the Loan: Origination Fee. (see Term 6) and one original Cornmitment
letter to' the main office of the Loan Fund (at 501 North Magnoha Avenue, Suite 100,
Orlando, Flonda 32801) no.later than January 6, 2017.

Sincerely,

Nelson W B|ack III
Chief Lending Officer

T-Zhe;--undersifg.ned_z;;ocC’epts*the;.fb‘regOinjg.‘commitmentgon behalf of Borrower.
Housing Opportunities, Mortgage Assistarice; & Effective Neighborhood Selutions, Inc.

w A

N Kdth&e:ﬁhé's-.Bdrry:' .
CEO

Date: . ‘2“ (z:z/] oL é -
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ComericA Bank

Master Revolving Note
Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate
Damand-Optional Advances (Business and Commercial Loans Only)

AMOUNT NOTE DATE MATURITY DATE
$100,000.00 ON DEMAND

ON DEMAND (or as otherwise provided in this Note), FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned promise(s) to pay to the order of
COMERICA BANK (hereln called "Bank"), at any ofiice of the Bank in the State of Florida, the principal sum of One Hundi
JThousand and 00/100 DOLLARS ($300,000,00), or so miich of sald sum as has been advanced and Is then outstanding under this
Note, togsther with Interest thereon as herelnafier set forth,

(
This Note Is a note under which Advances, repayments and re-Advances may be made from tIme to time, subject to the terms and
conditions of this Note,

AT NO TIME SHALL THE BANK BE UNDER ANY OBLIGATION TO MAKE ANY ADVANCES TO THE UNDERSIGNED
PURSUANT TO THIS NOTE (NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED IN THIS NOTE OR ELSEWHERE TO
THE CONTRARY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, IF BANK SUPPLIES THE UNDERSIGNED WITH A BORROWING
FORMULA) AND THE BANK, AT ANY TIME AND FROM TIME TO TIME, WITHOUT NOTICE, AND IN iTS SOLE DISCRETION,
MAY REFUSE TO MAKE ADVANCES TO THE UNDERSIGNED WITHOUT INGURRING ANY LIABILITY DUE TO THIS REFUSAL
AND WITHOUT AFFECTING THE UNDERSIGNED'S LIABILITY UNDER THIS NOTE FOR ANY AND ALL AMOUNTS ADVANGCED.

gu?]ecl to the terms and conditions of this Note, each of the Advances made hersunder shall bear Interest at the Applicable Interest
ate,

Unless soonar demanded, accrued and unpald Interest on the unpald principal balance of each oulstanding Advance hersunder shall
be payable monthly, In atrears, on the firat Business Day of each month. Inlerest accrulng hereunder shall be computed on the basis
of a year of 360 days, and shall be assessed for the actual number of days elapsed, and In such computation, effect shall be given to
any change In the Appllcable Interest Rate as a result of any change In the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate or, {0 the extent applicable, the
Prime Referenced Rate, on the date of each such change,

Upon demand and from and after the occurrence of any Default hersunder, and so long as any such Default remalns unremedied or

i thereafter, the Indebted ding under this Note shall bear Interest at a per annum rate of three percent (3%) above
the othervise Applicable Interest Rate, which Interest shall be payable upon demand. In addition to the foregoing, a late payment
charge equal {o five percent (5%) of each late payment hereunder may be charged on any payment not recelved by Bank within ten
{10).calendar days after the payment due date v but p of pay of any such charge shall not constitule a walver of
any Default hereunder.

In no event shall the Interest payable under this Note at any ime exceed the maximum tal'e permitied by law.

THE MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE SHALL NOT EXCEED 18% PER ANNUM OR THE HIGHEST APPLICABLE USURY CEILING,
WHICHEVER IS LESS. !

The amount and dale of each Advancs, ls Applicable Interest Rate and the amount and date of any repayment shall be noled on
Bank's records, which records shall be conelusiva evidence thereof, abSent manifest emor; provided, however, any faflure by Bank to
make any such notatlon, or any error In any such notatlon, shail not relleve the undersigned of ils/thelr obligations to repay Bank all
amounts payable by the undersigned o Bank under or pursuant to this Nole, when due in accordance with the terms hereof.

The undersigned may request an Advance hereunder elther (i) upon the delivery to Bank of & written Request for Advance duly
completed and executed by the undersigned (as herein provided), or (il) lo the exient applicable, pursuant to a request submitted
through Bank's Loan Management System (each a *Request”, In each case, subject to the following: (a) no Default, or any condltfon
or event which, with the giving of notice or the running of me, or both, would conslitute a Default, shall have occurred and be
continuing or exist under this Note; (b) each such Request shall be delivered to Bank by 11:00 a.m. (Delrolt, Michigan time) on the
proposed date of the requested Advance; (c) after giving effect to such Advance, the aggregate principal amount of Advances made
under this Note {excluding refundings and conversions of outstanding Advances) shall not exceed the Loan Amount; and {(d) a
Request, once dellvered or submitted to Bank, shall not ba revocable by the undersigned; provided, however, as aforesald, Bank shall
not be obligated to make any Advance under this Note.

In the event that the undersigned Is unable to request Advances hereunder through the Bank's Loan Management Sysiem, Advances
hereunder may be requested by delivery or submisslon to Bank by hand delivery, first class mall, overnight courier, facsimlle, emall or
other means of delivery acceplable to Bank, of a written Request for Advanca duly completed and executed by the undersigned,
Advances hereunder may be requested in the undersigned's discretion by telephonic nolice to Bank. Any Advance requested by
telephonic notlce shall be confirmed by the undersigned that same day by submisslon to Bank of a written Request for Advance, as
providad hereln. The undersigned acknowledge(s) that if Bank makes an Advance based on a request made by telephone, facsimile,
emall or other means of dellvery (other than by hand dellvery, first class mall or ovemight courier), it shiall be for the undersigned's
convenlence and all risks Involved In the use of any such pracedure shall be bome by the undersigned, and the undersigned expressly
agrea(s) to Indemnify and hold Bank harmless therefor, Bank shall have no duty to confirm the authority of anyone requesting an
Advance by telephone, facsimlle, eémall or any such other means of delivery. In the event that the undersigned eleci(s) to raquest
Advaneas by telephonic notice, facsimile, emall or other means of delivery accaptable to Bank, the undersigned acknowledge(s) and
agme(s) that Bank may Impose or require such verification, authenlicalion and other procedures as Bank may requlre from time to
me.

If the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate Is not otherwise avallable to the undersigned as the basls for the Applicable Interest Rate hereunder
for the principal Indebtedness outstanding hereunder in accordance with the terms of this Note, the Prime Referenced Rate shall be
the basls for the Applicable Interest Rate hereunder In respect of such Indebtedness for such perlod, subject In all respects to the
terms and condliions of this Note, The foregoing shall not In any way whatsosver limit or olherwise affact Bank's right to make demand
for payment of all or any part of the Indebtedness hersunder at any me In Bank’s sole and absolute discretion or any of Bank's fights
or remedies under this Note upon the occurrence of any Default hereunder, or any condition or event which, with the giving of notice or
the running of time, or both, would constitute a Default.

In the event that any payment under this Note becomes due and payable on any day which [s not a Business Day, the due date
thereof shall be ded to th di i Day, and, to the extent applicable, Interest shall continue o accrue and be

LY
payable thereon during such extenslon at the rates set forth In {his Note,
DAL Master Revolver Demand Note - Natl (09/01/16) v. 1.01 - “te

173

CAM # 17-0708
Exhibit 2
Page 188 of 192



All payments to be made by the undersigned to Bank under or pursuant to this Note shall be in Immediately avallable United States
funds, without setoff or counterclaim, and in the event that any paymenls submitted hereunder are in funds not avallable unlll
collected, sald payments shall continue to bear intarest until collected,

The undersigned may prepay all or part of the outstanding balance of any Indebtedness under this Note at any time without premium
or per;:lly. Any prepayment hereunder shall also be accompanied by the payment of all accrued and unpald interest on the amount so
prepald,

For any Dally Adjusling LIBOR Rate Advance, If Bank shall designals a LIBOR Lending Offica which malntains bocks separate from
gn%se of the rest of Bank, Bank shall have the oplion of malntaining and canying such Advance on the books of such LIBOR Lending
ce. .

1f, at any time, Bank determines that, (a) Bank Is unable to determine or ascertaln the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate, or (b) by reason of

. elrcumstances affacting the foreign exchange and Interbank markets generally, deposits In euradollars In the applicable amounts or for
the relative maturities are not being offered to Bank for any applicable Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate Advance, or (c) the Applicable
Interest Rate will not accurataly or falrly cover or reflect the cost to Bank of malntaining any of the Indebtedness under ths Note based
upon the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rats, then Bank shall forthwith glve notice thereof to the underslgned. Thereafter, until Bank nolifies
the undersigned that such conditions or circumstances no longer exish, the right of the undersigned to request a Dally Adjusting LIBOR
Rate Advance shall be suspended, and the Prime Referenced Rate shall be the basls for the Applicable Interest Rate for all
Indebledness hereunder during such period of ime.

if any Change In Law shall make [t unlawful or Impossible for the Bank {or Its LIBOR Lending Office) to make or malntaln any Advance
with Interest based upon the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rats, Bank shall forthwith glva notice thereof to the undersigned. Thereafter, untl
Bank notifies the undersigned that such candilions or circumstances no longer exist, the right of the undersigned to request a Dally
Adjusting LIBOR Rate Advance shall be suspended, and thereafler, the undersigned may select only the Prime Referencad Rate shall
be the basis for the Applicable Interest Rate for the Indebtedness hereunder,

1f any Change In Law shall {) subject Bank (or it LIBOR Lending Office) to any tax, duty or other charge with respact to this Note or
any indebtedness hereunder, or shall change the basls of taxatlon of payments to Bank (or its LIBOR Lending Office) of the princlpal
of or Interest under this Note or any other amounts due under this Note In respect thereof (excapt for changes in the rate of tax on the
overall net income of Bank or Its LIBOR Lending Office Imposed by the jurisdiction In which Bank's principal execulive office or LIBOR
Lending Office Is located); or (b) impose, modify or deem applicable any reserve (including, without limitation, any imposed by the
Board of Govemors of the Federal Reserve System), special deposit or similar requirement against assets of, deposits with or for the
account of, or cradit extended by Bank (or its LIBOR Lending Offics), or shall Impose on Bank (or lis LIBOR Lending Office) or the
forelgn exchange and Interbank markets any other condllon affecting his Note of the Indebtedness hereunder; and the result of any
of tha foregolng 1s to Increase the cost to Bank of maintalning any part of the'Indebtedness heraunder or to reduce the amount of any
sum recelved or receivable by Bank under this Note by an amount desmed by the Bank to ba rmatertal, then the undersigned shall pay
to Bank, within fifteen (16) days of the underslgned’s recelpt of wiitten notice from Bank demanding such compensatlon, such
additlonal amount or amounts as will compensate Bank for such Increased cost o reduction. A cerlificate of Bank, prepared In good
falth and In reasonable detall by Bank and submitted by Bank to the undersigned, setting forth the basls for determining such
additional amount or amounts necessary to compensate Bank shall be concluslve and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

1n the event that any Change in Law affects or would affect the amoynt of capital or liquidlly required or expected to be malntained by
Bank {or any corporation controlling Bank), and Bank determines that the amount of such caplial or liquidity is increased by or based
upon the existence of any obligations of Bank hereunder or the malntalning of any Indebtedness hereunder, and such Increase has
the effect of reducing the rate of ratum on Bani's (or such controlling corporatlon's) capltal as a consequenca of such obligallons or
the malntalning of such Indebtednass hereunder to a leve! below that which Bank (or such controlling' corporation) could have
achleved but for such clrcumstances (taking Into consideration ts policies with respect to capltal adequacy and fquidity), then the
underslgned shall pay to Bank, within fifieen (15) days of the undersigned's recsipt of writien notice from Bank demanding such
. compensation, addltional amounts as are sufficient to compensate Bank (or such controlling corporation) for any increass In the

amount of capltal and/or liquidity and reduced rate of retum which Bank reasonably determines to be allocabls to the existence of any
obitgations of the Bank hereunder or to malntalning any Indebtedness hereunder. A ceriificate of Bank as to the amount of such
compensalion, prepared In good falth and in reasanable detall by the Bank and submitted by Bank to the undersigned, hall be
conclusive and binding for all purposes absent manifest error. :

This Note and any other Indebtedness and liabllities of any kind of the undersigned (or any of them) to the Bank, and any and all
modlfications, is or fons of It, Jolnt or several, contingent or abselute, now existing or later arising, and however
evidenced and whether incurred voluntarily or Inveluntarily, known or unk or origlnally payabla to the Bank or to a third party and
subsequently acquired by Bank Including, without mltation, any late charges; loan fees or charges; overdraft Indebtedness; costs
Incurred by Bank In establlshing, determining, continuing or ‘defending the valldily or priarity of any securily Interest, pledge or other
llen or In pursuing any of its rghts or remedles under any logn document (or otherwise) or in conneclion with any proceeding Involving
the Bank as a result of any financlal accommodation to the undersigned {or any of them); and reasonabla costs and expenses of
attorneys and paralegals, whether inside or outslde counsel Is used, and whether any sult or other action Is Instituted, and to court
costs If sult or action Is instituted, and whether any such fees, cosls or expenses ara Incurred at the trial court level or on appeal, In
bankruptcy, In administrative proceedings, In probate proceedings or otherwise (collectively “Indebtedness”), are secured by and the
Bank Is granted a security Interest In and llen upon all ltems deposlied In any account of any of the undersigned with the Bank and by
all procaeds of these ltems (cash or otherwise), a I of any of the undersigned from time 1o time with the Bank, by all
property of any of the undersigned from time to time In the possassion of the Bank and by any other collateral, rights and properties
described In each and every deed of trust, mortgage, security agreement, pledge, assignment and other security or collateral
agresment which has been, or will at any ima(s) later be, exccuted by any (or all) of the undersigned lo or for the benefit of the Bank.
(collsctively *Collateral®). Notwithstanding the above, (1) to the extent that any portion of the Indebledness Is a consumer foan, that
portlon shall not be secured by any deed of tust or on or other rity interest in any of the undersigned's princlpal
dwelling or In any of the undersigned's real property which s not a purchase money secusity Interest as to that porllon, unless
exprossly provided to the contrary in another place, or (1) if the undersigned (or any of them) has (have) given or give(s) Bank a deed
of trust or morigage covering California real praperty, that deed of trust or mortgage shall not secure this Note or any other
Indebtedness of the undersigned (or any of them), unless expressly provided to the contrary In another placs, or {iil) If the undersigned
(or any of them) has (have) given or give(s) the Bank a deed of trust or morigage covering real property which, under Texas law,
constitutes the homastead of such person, that deed of trust or morigage shall not secure {his Note or any other Indebtedness of the
underslgned (or any of tham) unless expressly provided to the contrary In another place.

if {a) the undersigned (ar any of them) or any guarantor-under a guaranty of all or part of the Indebtedness ("guarantor”) () fail(s) to
pay this Note or any of the Indebtedness when dus, by maturity, acceleralion or ctherwise, or fall(s) to pay any Indebtedness owing on
a demand basis upon demand; or (i) fail(s) to comply with any of the terms or provisions of any t bety the undersigned
(or any of them) or any guarantor and the Bank, and any such fallurs continues beyond any appllcable grace or cure perled, If any;
expressly provided with respect therelo; or () become(s) inscivent or the subject of a y or invol p ding in
pbankruplcy, or a reorganization, arrangement or craditor composttion procaeding, (If a business entity) cease(s) dolng business as a
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golng concern, (if a natural person) die(s) or become(s) incompetent, (If a parinership) dissolve(s) or any general partner of it dies,
becomes Incompatent or becomes the sublect of a bankruptcy proceeding, or (if a corporation or a limited llabliity company) Is the
subject of a dissolutlon, merger or consolldalion; or (b) any warranty or representation made by any of the undersigned or any
guarantor In connection with this Note or any of the In d shall be d d to be untrue or incomplete; or (c) there Is any
terminatlon, nolice of termination, or breach of any guaranty, pledge, collateral assignment or subordination agreemant relaling to all
of any part of the Indebtedness; or (d) there Is any fallure by any of the undersigned or any guarantor to pay when dua any of lis
indebtednass (other than to the Bank) or In the observance or performance of any term, covenant or condition In any document
evidencing, securing or relating to such Indebtedness; or (e) the Bank deams lisalf Ingecure, bellsving that the prospect of payment or
performance of this Note or any of the Indebtedness Is Impaired or shall fear detarioration, removal or waste of any of the Collateral; or
(D there Is filed or Issued a levy or writ of attachment or gamishment or other like judlclal process upon the undersigned (or any of
them) or any guarantor or any of the Collateral, Including, without IImlt, any accounts of the undersigned (or any of them) or any
guarantor with the Bank; then the Bank, upon the cccumrence and &t any time during the contintiance or existenca of any of these
avents (each a *Default*), may, at its oplion and without pricr notice to the undersigned (or any of them), cease advancing money or
extending credit to o for the benefit of the undersigned under this Note or any other agreement between the undersigned and Bank,
terminate this Note as fo any future labillty or obligation of Bank, but without affecting Bank's rights and securlly interests In any
Collateral and the Indebledness of the undersigned to Bank, declare any or all of the Indebledness to be Immediately due and payable
{notwithstanding any provisions contalned in the evidence of [t to the contrary), sell or liguidate all or any porion of the Collateral, set
off agalnst the Indebledness any amounts owlng by thé Bank to the undersigned (or any of them), charge Inferest at the default rate
provided In the document evidencing the relevant Indebledness and exercise any one or more of the rights and remedies granted to
the Bank by any agreement with the undersigned (or any of them) or given fo It under epplicable law. In addition, If this Note Is
secured by a deed of trust or gage’ ing real property, then the trustor or mortgagor shall not miorigage or pledge the
mortgaged premises as securlty for any other Indebtedness or obligations, This Note, fogether with all other Indebledness secured by
sald deed of trust or mortgage, shall become due and payable immediately, without notice, at the option of the Bank, (a) if sald trustor
or morigagor shall morigage or pledge the morigaged premises for any other Indebledness or obligations or shall convey, assign or
transfer the morigeged premlses by deed, Installment sale contract or ‘other instrument, or (b) if the Utle to the morigaged premises
shall become vested in any other person or party In any manner whalsoever, or (<) If there Is any disposition (through ene or more
transactions) of legal or beneficlal title to a controlling Interest of sald trustor or morigagor.

The undersigned hereby expressly ack ledge(s) and agree(s) that this Note Is a demand note and matures upon lssuance,
and that the Indebtedness hereunder shall be payable upon demand (unless eariler payment Is required In accordance with
the terms and conditions of this Note), and that Bank may, at any ime In its sole and absolute discration, without notice and
without reason and whether or not any Default shall have occurred and/or exist under this Note, without notice, demand that
this Note and the Indebtedness h far be Immediately pald In full. The Bank may from time to time smake demand for
partlal payments under this Note and these demands shall not preciude the Bank from demanding at any time that this Note
be Immediately pald In full. Further, the demand nature of this Note shall not be deemed to be modifled, limited or otherwise
affected by any reference to any Default In this Note, and fo the extent that there are any referances to any Default(s)
hereunder, such references are for the purpose of permitting Bank to accelerate any Indebtedness not on a demand basls
and to recelve Interest at the applicable default rate provided In the document evidencing the relevant Indebtedness.

Tha undersigned authoriza(s) the Bank to charge any account(s) of the undersigned (or any of them) with the Bank for any and all
sums due hereunder when due; provided, howsvar, that such authorization shall not affect any of the undersigned's obligation fo pay
to the Bank all amounts when due, whether or not any such account balances that are malntained by the undersigned with the Bank
ara Insufficlent to pay to the Bank any amounts when due, and to the extent that such accounts are insufficlent to pay to the Bank all
such amounts, the undersigned shall remain llable for any deficlencles unti} pald In full.

f this Note Is signed by two or more partles (whether by all as makers or by one or more as an accommodation party o otherwise),
the obligations and undertakings under this Note shall b that of all and any two or more Jolntly and also of each severally. This Note
shall bind the undersigned, and the undersigned's respeciive helrs, parsonal representatives, successors and assligns.

The undersigned walve(s) presenlment, demand, protest, nolica -of dishonor, notice of demand or intent to demand, nollce of
acceleration or [tent to accelerate, and all other notices, and agree(s) that no extenston or Indulgenca to the undersigned (or any of
them) or release, substitution or nonenforcament of any security, or release or substitulion of any of the undersigned, any guarantor or
any other party, whether with or without notlca, shall affect the obiigations of any of the undersigned, The undersigned walve(s) all
defenses or right lo discharge available under 'Sectlon 673,605 of the Unlform Commerclal Code and walve(s) all other suretyship
defenses or right to discharge. The undersigned agree(s) that the Bank has the right to sell, assign, or grant participations or any
Interest In, any or all of the indeblednass, and that, In conneclion with this right, but without limiling ts ability to make other disclgsures
to the full extent allowable, the Bank may disclose all documents and information which the Bank now or later has relating to the
undersigned or the Indebtednass. The undersigned agree(s) that the Bank may provide Information relating to this Note or relating to
the undersigned to the Bank's parent, affillates, subsidlarles aid service providers,

The undersigned agree(s) to pay or relmbursa to Bank, or any other holder or owmer of this Note, dn demand, any and all costs and
expenses of Bank (Including, without fimit, court costs, legal expenses end reasonable attomeys' faes, whether Inside or oulside
counse! Is used, whether or not sult'Is instituted, and, if suit Is Instituted, whether at the Udal court level, appeliate level, In a
bankruptey, probate or administrative proceeding or is¢) dn Al th the preparation, on, delivery,
amendment, administratlon, and performance of this Nots and the related documents, or incurred in collecting or attempting fo collect
this Note or the Indebtadness, or Incurred In any other matter or proceeding relating to this Note or the Indebtedness.

The undersigned acknowledge(s) and agrea(s) that thers are no contrary agresments, oral or written, establishing a term of this Note
and agree(s) that the terms and condltions of this Note may not be amended, walvad or modified oxcept In a wriling slgned by an
officer of the Bank expressly stating that the writing constitutes an amendment, walver or madification of the terms of this Note, As
used In this Note, the word “undersigned® means, Individually and collecilvely, each maker, accommodation party, endorser and other
party slgning this Note in a simllar capaclly. If any provision of this Nole Is unenforceable In whole or part for any reason, the
temalning provisions shall continue 1o be effactive. THIS NOTE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, WITHOUT REGARD TO GONFLICT OF LAWS PRINGIPLES.

For the purposes of his Note, the following terms have the following meanings:

*advance® means a borrowing requested by the undersigned and made by Bank under this Note, and shall Include a Dally Adjusting
LIBOR Rate Advance and (subject to the terms of this Note) a Prime-based Advanca.

“Applicable interest Rate* means the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rale plus the Applicable Margln, or (subject to the tems of this Note) the
Prime Referencad Rate plus the Applicable Margln, as otherwlse datermined in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Note.

*Applicable Margln® means:
(0] in respect of the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate, 4,00% per annum; and

DAL Master Ravolver Demand Note - Natl (08/01/16) v. 1.01 23
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{n In respect of the Prime Referenced Rate, 1.00% per annum,

*Business Day” means any day, other than a Salurday, Sunday or any other day designated as a holiday under Federal or applicable
Stato staluta or regulation, on which Bank Is open for all or substanially ell of s domestic and Internatlonal business (including
deallngs In forelgn exchange) In Datrolt, Michigan, and, In respect of notices and determinations relaling to the Dally Adjusting LIBOR
Rate, also a day on which dealings In dollar deposlis are also carried on In the London Interbank market and on which banks are open
for business In London, England.

*Change In Law" means the occurrencs, after the date hereof, of any of the following: (i) the adoplion or Intraduction of, or any change
In any applicable faw, treaty, ruls o regulation (whether domestic or forelgn) now or hereafter In effect and whether or not applicable’to
Bank on such dale, or ()} any change In Interpretation, administration or Implemsntation thereof of any such law, treaty, rule or
regulation by any Govemmental Autherity, or (i) the Issuance, making or Implementation by any Governmental Authority of any
interpretation, adminlstrallon, request, regulallon, guldeline, or directive {whether or not having the forca of law), Including, without
Iimitation, any risk-based capltal guldelines or any Interpretation, administration, request, regulation, guldeline, or diraclive relating to
liquidity. For purposes of this definfiion, (x} a change in law, reaty, rule, regulalion, Interpretation, administration or Implementation
shall Inciude, without {imitation, any change made or which becomes effeclive on the basls of a law, trealy, rule, regulation,
Interpretation administration or implementalion then In forcs, the effective date of which change Is delayed by the terms of such law,
trealy, rule, regulation, Interpretation, administration or Implementation, and (y) the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Proteclon Act (Pub, L, 111-203, H.R. 4173) and all requests, rules, regulallons, guldelines, Interpretations or direclives promulgated
thereunder or fssued In conneclion therewith sha!l be deamed to be a "Change In Law", regardless of the date enacted, adopted,
Issued or promulgated, whether befora or afer the date hereof, and (2) all requests, rules, guldelines or directives promuigated by tha
Bank for International Setilements, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervislon (or any successor o similar authority) or the United
States regulatory authorities, In each case pursuant to Base! Ill, shall each be deemed tobe a *Change In Law", regardless of the date
enacled, adopled, lssued or implemented. .

*Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate" means, for any day, a per annum Interest rate which 1s equal to the quotient of the following:

(a} for any day, the per annum rate of Interest determined on the basls of the rate for deposits In United States Dollars for a
perlod equal to one (1) month appearing on Page BBAM of the Bloomberg Financial Markets Information Service at or about
. 11:00 a.m, (London, England time) (or as soon thereafter as praciical) on such day, or if such day Is not a Business Day, on
the Immediately precading Business Day. In the event that such rate does not appear on Page BBAM of the Bloomberg
Financlal Markets Informatlon Service (or otherwise on such Service) on any day, the *Dally AdJusting LIBOR Rale" for such
day shell be delermined by reference to such other publicly avallable service for displaying eurodoliar rates as may be
reasonably selected by Bank, of, In the absence of such other senice, the *Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate" for such day shall,
Instead, be determined based upon the average of the rates at which Bank Is offered dollar deposits at or about 11:00 a.m.
(Dalrolt, Michigan time) (or as soon thereafler as practical), on such day, or If such day Is not a Business Day, on the
immediately preceding Business Day, in the Interbank eurodollar market {n an amount comparable to the princlpal amount of
Indebtedness oulstanding hersunder which Is to bear Interest on the basls of such Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate and for a
period equal to one (1) month;

divided by

(b) 1,00 minus the maximum rate (expressed as a decimal) on such day at which Bank Is required to malntaln resetves on "Euro-
currency Liabilitles* as defined In and pursuant to Regulatlon D of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or,
If such regulation or definition Is modified, and as long s Bank Is required to malntaln reserves agalnst a category of
liabliitles which Includi jollar deposils or fes a category of assets which Includes eurcdoliar loans, the rate at
which such reserves ara required to be malntained on such category; .

provided, howavar, and notwithstanding anything to the contrary sat forth In this Note, If at any time the Dally Adjusling LIBOR Rate
determined as provided above would be less than zero percant (0%), then the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rate shall be desmed to be zero
parcant (0%) per annum for all purposes of this Note {the "Dally Adlusting LIBOR 0% Floor"), excapt for any portlon of any oulstanding
A (s) der or any principal bted! outstanding under this Note which, at any such time, ls/are subject to any
Specified Hedging Agreement, in which case, the Dally Adjusting LIBOR Rale for such portion of such Advance(s) and Indebtedness
shall be determined without glving effect to the Dally Adjusting LIBOR 0% Floor, Each calculation by Bank of the Dally Adjusting
LIBOR Rate shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

;-l.?ally Adjusting LIBOR Rate Advance® means an Advance of which the Applicable Interest Rate Is based on the Dally'Ad]usllng
BOR Rate.

*Govemmental Authority® means the govemment-of the Unlted States of America or any other natlon, or of any political subdivision

thereof, whether state or local, and any agency, authority, instrumentality, regulatory body, court, central bank or other entity

. exercising execulive, legislative, judicial, taxing, regulatory or admir ive powers or funclions of or pertalning to government
{Including, without limitation, any supranalional bodies such as the Eurep Unlon or the pean Central Bank).

"LIBOR Lending Office® means Bank's office focated In the Cayman Islands, British West Indles, or such other branch of Bank,
domestlo or forelgn, as it may hereafter designate as lis LIBOR Lending Office by noice to the undersigned.

*L.oan Amount” means the face amount of this Note as set forth at the top of Page 1 hereof.

“Prime Rate" means the per annum Inlerest rate astablished by Bank as Iis prime rate for lts borrowers, as such rate may vary from
time to time, which rate Is not necessarlly the lowest rate on loans made by Bank atany such time.

prime-based Advance® means an Advance of which the Applicable Interest Rete Is based on the Prime Referenced Rate, subject to
the terms of this Note,

“Prime Referenced Rate" means a per annum interest rate which s equal to the Prime Rate, but In no event less than two and one-
half percent (2.50%) per annum.

"Request for A ¥ means a Request for Ad! 1ssued by the undersigned under this Note in the fom annexed to this Note as
Exhiblt "A", .
*Specified Hedging Ag t* means any ag t or other documentalion between the undersigned (or any of them) and Bank

providing for an Interest rate swap that does not provide for a minimum rate of zero percent (0%) with respect to determinations of the
Dally Adjusling LIBOR Rate for the purposes of such [nterast rale swap (e.9., determines the floating amount by uslng the “negative
Interast rate method® rather than the "zero Interest rate method® in the case of any such Interest rate swap made under any master
agreement or other documentation published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Assoclation, Inc.).
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No delay or fallure of Bank in exerclsing any right; power or privilege hereunder shall affect such right, power or privilege, nor shall any
single or partial exerclse thersof preciude any furl‘rer axercise thereof, or the exercise of any other power, right or privilege, Thesights
of Bank under ths Note'are cumulative and not exclusive of any right of remedies which Bank would otherwisa have, whether by other
Instruments or by law.

THE UNDERSIGNED AND BANK, BY ACCEPTANGE OF THIS NOTE, ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IS
A CONSTITUTIONAL ONE, BUT THAT IT MAY BE WAIVED UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED
BY LAW, EACH PARTY, AFTER CONSULTING (OR HAVING HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO CONSULT) WITH COUNSEL OF
THEIR CHOICE, KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY, AND FOR THEIR MUTUAL BENEFIT, WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY
JURY IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION REGARDING THE PERFORMANGE OR ENFORCEMENT OF, OR IN ANY WAY RELATED

TO, THIS NOTE OR THE INDEBTEDNESS,

Florida documentary stamp tax required by law In the amount of $350,00 will be pald directly to the Department of Revenue,
Cerlificate of Reglsiration Number 68-8013161004-6,

This Note fs dated and shall be effective as of the date set forth above.
BORROWER:

Housing Opportunlties, Morigage Asslstance, & Effeclive
Nelghbothood Solutions, Inc., a Flarida Non-Profit Corporation

s S 32

'I;lue: .@MSG\X.G«*'

(L e Lo —
Tite: _D”-é/_’ N cﬂ

690 NE 131h Stree!, Sule 102 s FL Unlted Slales 33304
Sireet Address City State Country Zip Code
For Bank Use Only . |
LOAN GROUP NAME OBLIGOR NAME
88 - Florida Bank Housing Opportunitles, il & Effeclive d Inc., @
Florida Non-Profil Gorporation A

TOAN GROUP NO. OBUGOR NO. NOTENO. AMOUNT,

95807 | $100,000.00
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